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be monitored on an on-going basis and the results must be reported on during the financial year to various role-players to enable

them to timeously implement corrective measures where required.

This report highlights the performance of the Municipality as measured in the Top Layer SDBIP, in terms of its strategic objectives

and National Key Performance Indicators prescribed in Section 43 of the MSA.

1.3 The performance system followed for the financial year 2017/18
a) Adoption of a Performance Management Framework

Performance management is prescribed by Chapter 6 of the MSA and the Municipal Planning and Performance Management
Regulations, 796 of August 2001. Section 7(1) of the Regulation states that “A Municipality’s Performance Management System
entails a framework that describes and represents how the municipality’s cycle and processes of performance planning,
monitoring, measurement, review, reporting and improvement will be conducted, organized and managed, including determining
the responsibilities of the different role players.” This framework, inter alia, reflects the linkage between the IDP, Budget, SDBIP
and individual and service provider performance. The Municipality adopted a performance management framework that was

approved by Council on 26 September 2009.

b) The IDP and the budget

The revised IDP and the budget for 2017/18 was approved by Council on 31 May 2017. The IDP process and the performance
management process are integrated. The IDP fulfils the planning stage of performance management. Performance management

in turn, fulfils the implementation management, monitoring and evaluation of the IDP.

c) The SDBIP

Strategic performance indicates how well the Municipality achieve its objectives and which policies and processes are working. All
government institutions must report on strategic performance to ensure that service delivery is efficient, effective and
economical. Municipalities must develop strategic plans and allocate resources for the implementation. The implementation must
be monitored on an on-going basis and the results must be reported on during the financial year to various role-players to enable

them to timeously implement corrective measures where required.

The municipal scorecard (Top Layer SDBIP) consolidates service delivery targets set by Council/senior management and provide

an overall picture of performance for the Municipality, reflecting performance on its strategic priorities.

The SDBIP converts the budget into measurable indicators of how, where and when strategies, objectives and normal business
process of the Municipality is implemented. It also allocates responsibility to directorates to deliver the services in terms of the

IDP and budget.

1.4 Actual Performance

This report highlights the performance of the Municipality as measured in the Top Layer SDBIP, in terms of its strategic objectives

and National Key Performance Indicators prescribed in Section 43 of the MSA.
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The Municipality utilizes an electronic web-based system on which KPl owners update actual performance monthly. KPl owners

report on the results of the KPI by documenting the following information on the performance system:

Q

The actual result in terms of the target set.

[

A performance comment.

Q

Actions to improve the performance against the target set, if the target was not achieved.

[

It is the responsibility of every KPI owner to maintain a portfolio of evidence to support actual performance results

updated.

Performance results are monitored and reviewed in terms of:

[

Quarterly KPI monitoring sessions held by the Municipal Manager with all managers;

~ Quarterly reports tabled before the Portfolio Committees of the Mayor;

[

Quarterly reports tabled before the Executive Mayoral Committee and Council; and

~ Internal audit submitted their quarterly performance management audits to the Municipal Manager and the
Performance Audit Committee during meetings held as required in terms of Regulation 14(1)(c) of the Municipal

Planning and Performance Management Regulations of 2001 as follows:
o Quarter 4 of 2016/17 — 19 October 2017
o Quarter 1 of 2017/18 — 21 November 2017
o Quarter 2 of 2017/18 — 19 April 2018

o Quarter 3 0f 2017/18 — 21 June 2018

1.5 Individual performance management
a) Municipal Manager and managers directly accountable to the Municipal Manager

The Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act 32 of 2000) prescribes that the municipality must enter into performance based agreements
with the all s57-employees and that performance agreements must be reviewed annually. This process and the format are further
regulated by Regulation 805 (August 2006). The performance agreements for the 2017/18 financial year were signed during July
2017 as prescribed.

The appraisal of the actual performance in terms of the signed agreements takes place twice per annum as regulated. The final

evaluation of the 2016/17 financial year (1 January 2017 to 30 June 2017) took place on 22 March 2017 and the mid-year

performance of 2017/18 (1 July 2017 to 31 December 2017) took place on 26 February 2018.
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1.6 SDBIP (Top Layer)

The purpose of strategic performance reporting is to report specifically on the implementation and achievement of IDP outcomes.
This section provides an overview on the achievement of the Municipality in terms of the strategic intent and deliverables achieved
as stated in the IDP. The Top Layer (strategic) SDBIP is the Municipality’s strategic plan and shows the strategic alignment between

the different documents. (IDP, budget and performance agreements)

In the paragraphs below the performance achieved is illustrated against the Top Layer SDBIP according to the strategic objectives.

The following figure explains the method by which the overall assessment of actual performance against targets set for the
key performance indicators (KPI’s) of the SDBIP is measured:

Category Explanation

KPI Not Yet Measured KPI’s with no targets or actuals in the selected period

KPI Not Met 0% > = Actual/Target< 75%

\
KPI Almost Met - 75% > = Actual/Target < 100%

KPI Met ‘ Actual/Target = 100%
KPI Well Met ‘ 100% > Actual/Target < 150%
KPI Extremely Well Met Actual/Target > = 150%

Table 1.: SDBIP measurement categories

The graph below displays the overall performance per strategic objective for 2017/18:

Overall Performance for 2017/18
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Objective 1 Objective 2 Objective 3 Objective 4 Objective 5

To pursue
Promoting Social Economic Growth
well-being of the and facilitation of
community (504) | job opportunities
(S05)

Measurement Ensuring Ensuring Good Promoting bulk
Category Environmental Governance and infrastructure
Integrity for the Financial Viability development
West Coast (SO1) (s02) services (SO3)

KPI Not Met 0

T :

KPI Met 1

KPI Well Met

KPI Extremely
Well Met

Total

Graph 1.: Overall performance per strategic objective

a) Ensuring environmental integrity for the West Coast

2016/17 Target for 2017/18
Unit of
Measurement Target Actual Annual
Performance
Take quarterly
samples of
bacterial levels of
joutiesate | amberi
TL2 A samples taken 800 1052 200 200 200 200 800 1051
communities and monitored
within in the
district during the
2017/18 financial
year
New New
Develop a Climate | Strategy Performance | Performance
Change Strategy submitted to indicator for | indicator for
13 and su.bmlt to Council for 2017/18. !\lo 2017/18. !\lo 0 0 0 1 1 0
Council for approval by the | comparative | comparative
approval by the end of May audited audited
end of May 2018 2018 results results
available. available.
Due to a lack of funds the Climate Change Strategy will be postponed to the 2018/19 financial year
. . Reviewed Air New New
Review the Air )
. Quality Performance | Performance
Quality L L
Management Plan Management indicator for | indicator for
L4 and submit to Plan subrjmtted 2017/18. !\lo 2017/18. !\lo 0 0 0 1 1 0
. to Council for comparative | comparative
Council for . .
approval by the audited audited
approval by the
end of Mav 2018 end of May results results
v 2018 available. available.
Tenders have been approved and the process will start in August 2018
Develop an Alien Alien Clearing New New
TL5 | Clearing and and Monitoring | Performance | Performance 0 0 0 1 il 0
Monitoring Plan Plan submitted | indicator for | indicator for L
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2016/17 Target for 2017/18

Unit of

Actual Actual
Measurement Target Chia Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4  Annual

Performance

and submit to to Council for 2017/18. No | 2017/18. No
Council for approval by the | comparative | comparative
approval by the end of May audited audited
end of May 2018 2018 results results
available. available.

Due to a lack of funds the Alien Clearing and Monitoring Plan will be postponed to the 2018/19 financial year

Take quarterly
samples in terms
o rotits | numbero
TL6 .. samples taken 1080 1676 270 270 270 270 1080 882
Disinfectants Act .

. and monitored
during the
2017/18 financial

year

. . KPI was not met due to budget constraints. In the next financial year the target will be adjusted to stay within
Corrective action : the budget

Take quarterly
samples regarding
bacterial levels in Number of

TL7 | final sewerage samples taken 210 276 50 50 50 60 210 259
effluent during and monitored
the 2017/18

financial year

Table 2.: Top Layer SDBIP — Ensuring environmental integrity for the West Coast
b) Ensuring good governance and financial viability

2016/17 Target for 2017/18
Unit of

Measurement Actual
2 4
Performance Q Q3 Q

Annual

Compile and Compile and
submit the draft submit the
Annual Report for | draft Annual
2016/17 to Report by the
Council by the end of January
end January 2018 | 2018

TL9

Financial viability
measured in
terms of the
municipality's
ability to meet it's
service debt

TL22 | obligations as at % of debt
30 June 2018 coverage
((Short Term
Borrowing + Bank
Overdraft + Short
Term Lease + Long
Term Borrowing +
Long Term Lease)

45% 21.04% 0% 0% 0% 45% 45% 16.05%
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2016/17 Target for 2017/18

Unit of

Measurement Actual Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Target Annual

Performance

/ Total Operating
Revenue -
Operating
Conditional Grant)

Financial viability
measured in
terms of the
outstanding
service debtorsas | % of
TL23 | at 30 June 2018 outstanding 5% 3.48% 0% 0% 0% 3.80% | 3.80% 8.88%
((Total service debtors
outstanding
service debtors/
revenue received
for services)X100)

KPI not met due to high level of water restrictions. KPI to be revisited during the mid-year of 2018/19.

Financial viability
measured in
terms of the
available cash to
cover fixed
operating
expenditure as at
30 June 2018
((Cash and Cash
Equivalents -
Unspent

Number of
months it tak
Conditional ont 5|t.ta es
to cover fix
Grants -

TL24 Overdraft) + Short operatlhg 3 8.63 0 0 0 8.7 8.7 9.82
expenditure

Term Investment) . .

: with available
/ Monthly Fixed

. cash

Operational
Expenditure
excluding
(Depreciation,
Amortisation, and
Provision for Bad
Debts,
Impairment and
Loss on Disposal
of Assets)).

Number of people
from employment
equity target
groups to be
appointed by 30
TL25 | June 2018 in the
three highest
levels of
management in
compliance with
the

Number of
people
appointed in
the three
highest levels
of management




Unit of
Measurement

Target

2016/17

Actual
Performance

Target for 2017/18

Q2

Q3

(o}
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Corrective action :

municipalityié¥ss
approved
Employment
Equity Plan
The percentage of
the municipality's
personnel budget | % of the
actually spent on municipality's
implementing its personnel
workplace skills budget actually
TL26 1 1.18% 0% 0% 0% 1% 1% 1.22%
plan by 30 June spent on
2018 ((Actual implementing
amount spent on its workplace
training/total skills plan
personnel
budget)x100)
Review the risk Reviewed risk
management
policy strategy ma'nagement
with the pghcy strategy
T127 | implementation | Wit . 1 1 0 0 1 0 1 1
. implementation
plan and submit -
to the risk plar'1 submitted
. to risk
committee by 31 committee
March 2018
Limit the vacancy
rate to less than
15% of budgeted
posts by 30 June
Tlog | 2018 ((Numberof o\ o ney rate 15% 9% 0% | 15% | 0% | 15% | 15% 9%
budgeted posts
filled/Number of
budgeted posts
on the
organogram)x100)
Compile the risk
based audit plan RBAP
and submit to the | submitted to
TL30 Audit Committee Audit 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 1
for consideration Committee
by 30 June 2018
Submit progress
reports on the
implementation Number of
of the RBAP to the | progress
1 Audit Committee reports 6 6 ! 2 ! 2 6 >
during the submitted
2017/18 financial
year

The Audit Committee decided to discuss only the financial statements and performance report during the
meeting held in August 2017, hence why the overall target for the year was not met. The target is however
more than the required quarterly targets prescribed in terms of the legislation
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Corrective action :

<)

2016/17 Target for 2017/18
Unit of
Measurement Target Actual a1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Annual
Performance
Co-ordinate the
it comtee. | Nomber of
TL32 . meetings 4 6 1 1 1 1 4 6
during the coordinated
2017/18 financial
year
Perform quarterly
risk assessments
per the Risk Number of risk
Implementation assessments
Plan and submit performed and
TL33 | report with report 4 4 1 1 1 1 4 4
amendments to submitted to
the risk the risk
committee during | committee
the 2017/18
financial year
Initiate the
meeting of the
S(I)S;:;i;atin Number of
TL34 g meetings 4 4 1 1 1 1 4 4
forum (Technical) | . ...
. initiated
during the
2017/18 financial
year
. District New New
Review the .
. . Economic Performance | Performance
District Economic . s
Development Development indicator for | indicator for
TL38 | Strategy and Strategy 2017/18.No | 2017/18.No | 0 0 1 1 0
. . reviewed and comparative | comparative
submit to Council . . .
submitted to audited audited
for approval by 30 .
Council for results results
June 2018 X .
approval available. available.

REDS reviewed and draft circulated to public stakeholders and business role-players for input and will be
submitted to the following Council meeting. Future review will be carried out in line with the Council meeting
schedule to ensure compliance

Table 3.:

Promoting bulk infrastructure development services

Unit of
Measurem
ent

Target

2016/17

Actual
Performan

(o]

Top Layer SDBIP — Ensuring good governance and financial viability

Target for 2017/18

Qa4

Annual

TL12

95% of the
provincial roads
conditional grant
budget allocation
spent by 30 June
2018 {(Total
expenditure

% of the
budget
spent

95% 100.57%

20%

Q1 Q2 Q3

48%

65%

95%

95%

101.05%
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Unit of 2016/17 Target for 2017/18

Measurem Actual Actual

Target
ent & Performance

Ql Q2 Q3 Q4

divided by the
total approved
budget) x 100}

Grade 16 000

kilometers of Number of

TL13 kilometers 16 000 18 294.63 3000 7 000 1200 16 000 16 000 16 793.64
road by 30 June raded
2018 &
Re-gravel 26.88 Number of

Tl | Klometers of kilometers | o7 1 34.6 0 0 0 26.88 26.88 16.23
roads by 30 June | of road re-
2018 graveled

Lack of approved borrow pits hampered progress of activity significantly. Forced to rework road reserve and
two projects roughly totaling 38 kilometers in progress. To claim the remainder of 1.03 kilometer is a
possibility if needed by a scope change form. To obtain materials from an approved commercial re-gravel
source in the next financial year

Corrective action :

Upgrade 6.448 Number of

kilometers of kilometers
Tl | roadsfrom of road 10.26 8.29 0 0 0 6.45 6.45 5.67
gravel to upgraded

bitumen surface from gravel
by 30 June 2018 to bitumen

Project not completed due to outstanding activities that took the division more time than planned.
Maintenance work is planned on the reseal projects for the next financial year

Reseal 27.24 Number of
TL1g | Klometers of kilometers | 5, / 25.4 0 0 0 27.24 27.24 36.97
surfaced roads of road

by 30 June 2018 resealed

Rehabilitate 2 Number of
kilometers of kilometers
L7 existing roads by | rehabilitat 2 0 0 0 0 2 2 0
30 June 2018 ed
§ Rehabilitation project changed to an upgrade one due to vertical and horizontal alignment changes. This KPI
° ° will not be measured in the next financial year
Comply 100%
with water
quality
parameters as %
per SANS 241 compliance
physical and with the
TL18 | micro water 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 99%
parameters for quality
West Coast Bulk parameter
Water Supply S
during the
2017/18 financial
year
Chlorides were found in river. An off channel dam will be built so that water can run past in future. Last water
Corrective action :
from dam had to be extracted due to extreme drought.
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Unit of 2016/17 Target for 2017/18
Measurem
ent Target PerfA:::'!a:nce o o o &
% average
water loss
Limit average % for last 12
water loss for months
last 12 months to | {(Number
less than 7.5% of Kiloliters
{(Number of Water
Kiloliters Water Purified -
TL19 | Purified - Number of 10% 2.68% 7.50% 7.50% | 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 4.45%
Number of Kiloliters
Kiloliters Water Water
Sold) / Number Sold) /
of Kiloliters Number of
Water Purified _ Kiloliters
100} Water
Purified _
100}
95% of the water
capital budget
spent by 30 June
2%18 {(Kctual % of
TL20 . budget 95% 96.9 15% 25% 45% 95% 95% 80.96%
expenditure
divided by the | P
total approved
budget)x100}
Supplier failed to deliver a valve in time resulting in the under spending in expenditure. The valve will be
° ° delivered in September 2018
The percentage
of the municipal
capital budget
actually spent on
capital projects
by 30 June 2018 % of
{(Actual ital
TL21 | (including ;ap' 95% 95.99% 10% | 35% | 60% 95% 95% 86.73%
commitments) udget
spent

amount spent on
projects /Total
amount
budgeted for
capital
projects)X100}

The pipe replacement tender was stopped due to sub standard pipes and a valve was ordered that will only be
delivered in August 2018. Expenditure will take place in the next financial year

Table 4.:

Top Layer SDBIP — Promoting bulk infrastructure development services
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d) Promoting the social well-being of the community

2016/17 Target for 2017/18
Unit of ——
Measurement Target Actual ) Q3 Qa
Performance
Review the Fire
Master Plan Action
implementation implementation
L8 actiorll plan and plan revieyved 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 1
submit to the and submitted
Mayor for to the Mayor
approval by the by 31 May 2018
end of May 2018
Review and
submit the Disaster
Disaster Management
TL10 | Management Framework 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0
Framework to reviewed and
Council by the submitted
end of May 2018

Corrective action : The Disaster Management Centre post was vacant from December 2017 to April 2018 and resulted in the
’ target not being met. The review has been prioritized and will be completed during the next financial year

Draft the annual
consolidated
operational plan
for social
development
interventions in
the district and
submit to MAYCO
for approval by 30
September 2017

Consolidated
operational
plan for social
development
interventions in 1 1 1 0 0 0 1 1
the district
drafted and
submitted to
MAYCO

TL28

Table 5.: Top Layer SDBIP — Promoting the social well-being of the community

e) To pursue economic growth and facilitation of job opportunities

2016/17 Target for 2017/18

Unit of
nit o Actual

Measurement Actual a1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Target
& Performance

Create full time
equivalent (FTE's) | Number of full

through time equivalent
TL1 expenditure with (FTE's) created 30 59.64 0 0 0 30 30 62.17
the EPWP job by 30 June
creation by 30 2018
June 2018

Create temporary
job opportunities
with man days Number of man
paid through days paid
projects by 30
June 2018

TL11 1000 5896 0 0 0 1200 1200 7418
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2016/17 Target for 2017/18

Unit of Actual

Measurement Actual Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Target Annual

Performance

Host 8 sessions to
promote skills
development and

TL35 | support the L\leusrsr;:rfg Ic'ln;sted 8 8 0 4 0 4 8 8
Tourism SMME

business sector by
30 June 2018

Carry out 32
tourism Number of
TL36 | promotional activities 24 56 8 8 8 8 32 65
activities by 30 carried out
June 2018
Assist 12 Tourism
BEE
entrepreneurs
with starting and Number of
TL37 | Bowine Tourism BEE 12 15 3 3 3 3 12 11
businesses e.g. entrepreneurs

research, business | assisted
plans and skills
development by
30 June 2018

. . Written confirmation was provided but it was not sufficient. In future we will ensure to provide the correct
Corrective action : .
evidence to support the KPI.

Table 6.: Top Layer SDBIP — To pursue economic growth and facilitation of job opportunities

2 COMPONENT E: ORGANISATIONAL PERFOMANCE SCORECARD

The main development and service delivery priorities for 2018/19 is the Municipality’s Top Layer SDBIP for 2018/19 which are

indicated per strategic objective in the tables below:
2.1 Ensuring environmental integrity for the West Coast

Ref KPI ‘ Unit of Measurement Annual Target

Take quarterly samples of bacterial levels of
potable water in towns, farms and communities

TL2 N f samples tak :
within in the district during the 2018/19 umber of samples taken and monitored 900
financial year

13 Review a Climate Change Plan and submit to Plan submitted to Council for approval by the 1
Council for approval by the end of May 2019 end of May 2019

Review the Coastal Management Plan and Plan submitted to Council for approval by the

TL4 | submit to Council for approval by the end of 1
May 2019 end of May 2019
Review the Air Quality Management Plan and Reviewed Air Quality Management Plan

TL5 | submit to Council for approval by the end of submitted to Council for approval by the end of 1

May 2019 May 2019
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Ref KPI Unit of Measurement Annual Target
Take quarterly samples in terms of Foodstuffs,

TL6 | Cosmetics and Disinfectants Act during the Number of samples taken and monitored 900
2018/19 financial year
Take quarterly samples regarding bacterial

TL7 | levels in final sewerage effluent during the Number of samples taken and monitored 250

2018/19 financial year

Table 7.:

Service delivery priorities 2018/19: Ensuring environmental integrity for the West Coast

2.2 Ensuring good governance and financial viability

Ref

TL8

KPI

Compile and submit the draft Annual Report for
2017/18 to Council by the end January 2019

Unit of Measurement

Compile and submit the draft Annual Report by
the end of January 2019

Annual Target

TL11

Financial viability measured in terms of the
municipality's ability to meet its service debt
obligations as at 30 June 2019 ((Short Term
Borrowing + Bank Overdraft + Short Term Lease
+ Long Term Borrowing + Long Term Lease) /
Total Operating Revenue - Operating
Conditional Grant)

% of debt coverage

45%

TL12

Financial viability measured in terms of the
outstanding service debtors as at 30 June 2019
((Total outstanding service debtors/ revenue
received for services) X100)

% of outstanding service debtors

3.80%

TL13

Financial viability measured in terms of the
available cash to cover fixed operating
expenditure as at 30 June 2019 ((Cash and Cash
Equivalents - Unspent Conditional Grants -
Overdraft) + Short Term Investment) / Monthly
Fixed Operational Expenditure excluding
(Depreciation, Amortisation, and Provision for
Bad Debts, Impairment and Loss on Disposal of
Assets)).

Number of months it takes to cover fix
operating expenditure with available cash

TL14

Number of people from employment equity
target groups to be appointed by 30 June 2019
in the three highest levels of management in
compliance with the municipality's approved
Employment Equity Plan

Number of people appointed in the three
highest levels of management

TL15

The percentage of the municipality's personnel
budget actually spent on implementing its
workplace skills plan by 30 June 2019 ((Actual
amount spent on training/total personnel
budget) x100)

% of the municipality's personnel budget
actually spent on implementing its workplace
skills plan

1%

TL16

Review the risk management policy strategy
with the implementation plan and submit to the
risk committee by 31 May 2019

Reviewed risk management policy strategy with
implementation plan submitted to risk
committee
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Ref KPI Unit of Measurement Annual Target

Limit the vacancy rate to less than 15% of
budgeted posts by 30 June 2019 ((Number of

TL1 %V t 159

8 budgeted posts filled/Number of budgeted % Vacancy rate >%

posts on the organogram) x100)
Compile the risk-based audit plan for 2019/20

TL19 | and submit to the Audit Committee for RBAP submitted to Audit Committee 1
consideration by 30 June 2019
Submit progress reports on the implementation

TL20 | of the RBAP for 2018/19 to the Audit Number of progress reports submitted 5
Committee during the 2018/19 financial year
Co-ordinate the functioning of the audit . .

TL21 N f t 4
committee during the 2018/19 financial year umber of gEEGREEQordinated
Perform quarterly risk assessments per the Risk
Implementation Plan and submit report with Number of risk assessments performed and

TL22 ) . . . . . 4
amendments to the risk committee during the report submitted to the risk committee
2018/19 financial year
Initiate the meeting of the district coordinating

TL23 | forum (Technical) during the 2018/19 financial Number of meetings initiated 4
year
Review the District Economic Development District Economic Development Strategy

TL27 | Strategy and submit to Council by 31 March reviewed and submitted to Council by 31 March 1
2019 2019

TLo8 Review and update the organisational structure | Reviewed organisational structure submitted to 1
and submit to Council by 31 October 2018 Council by 31 October 2018

Table 8.:

Service delivery priorities 2018/19: Ensuring good governance and financial viability

2.4 Promoting bulk infrastructure development services

Ref KPI Unit of Measurement Annual Target

The percentage of the municipal capital budget
actually spent on capital projects by 30 June

TL10 | 2019 {(Actual (including commitments) amount | % of capital budget spent 95%
spent on projects /Total amount budgeted for
capital projects) X100}
95% of the provincial roads conditional grant
budget allocation spent by 30 June 2019 {(Total

TL . L % of th 9

30 expenditure divided by the total approved % of the budget spent 95%

budget) x 100}

TL31 S(;?L(_Cj)e 16 000 kilometers of road by 30 June Number of kilometers graded 16 000

TL32 sg-lggravel 38.84 kilometers of roads by 30 June Number of kilometers of road re-graveled 38.84
Upgrade 9.28 kilometers of roads from gravel to | Number of kilometers of road upgraded from

TL33 . . 9.28
bitumen surface by 30 June 2019 gravel to bitumen
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Ref KPI Unit of Measurement Annual Target
TL34 Reseal 25.24 kilometers of surfaced roads by 30 Number of kilometers of road resealed 25.24
June 2019
Comply 100% with water quality parameters as
135 per SANS 241 physical and micro parameters for | % compliance with the water quality 100%
West Coast Bulk Water Supply during the parameters 0
2018/19 financial year
Limit average % water loss for last 12 months to | % average water loss for last 12 months
136 less than 5% {(Number of Kiloliters Water {(Number of Kiloliters Water Purified - Number 59
(o]

Purified - Number of Kiloliters Water Sold) /
Number of Kiloliters Water Purified X 100}

of Kiloliters Water Sold) / Number of Kiloliters
Water Purified X 100}

Table 9.: Service delivery priorities 2018/19:

Promoting bulk infrastructure development services

2.5 Promoting social well-being of the community

Ref KPI Unit of Measurement Annual Target
L9 Review and submit the Disaster Management Disaster Management Framework reviewed and 1

Plan to Council by the end of May 2019 submitted

Draft the annual consolidated operational plan . . .

for social development interventions in the Consolidated operational plan for social
TL17 P development interventions in the district 1

district for 2019/20 and submit to MAYCO by 31
January 2019

drafted and submitted to MAYCO

Table 10.: Service delivery priorities 2018/19: Promoting social well-being of the community

2.6 To pursue economic growth and facilitation of job opportunities

Ref KPI Unit of Measurement Annual Target
fi i i FTE' h

Create .uII tlm? SHglent (. s) thr‘oug Number of full time equivalent (FTE's) created

TL1 | expenditure with the EPWP job creation by 30 30

by 30 June 2019

June 2019
Host 8 sessions to promote skills development

TL24 | and support the Tourism SMME business sector | Number of sessions hosted 8
by 30 June 2019

TL25 Carry out 24 tourism promotional activities by Number of activities carried out 24
30 June 2019
Assist 12 Tourism BEE entrepreneurs with

TL26 star.tlng and growing pusmesses e.g. research, Number of Tourism BEE entrepreneurs assisted 12
business plans and skills development by 30
June 2019
Create temporary job opportunities with man .

L2 12
TL29 days paid through projects by 30 June 2019 Number of man days paid 00
137 Update the SDF and submit to council by 31 Updated SDF submitted to Council by 31 March 1

March 2019 2019

Table 11.: Service delivery priorities 2018/19: To pursue economic growth and facilitation of job opportunities
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Annual Fingncial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
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| AM RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PREPARATION OF THESE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, WHICH ARE SET OUT ON
PAGES 3 TO 98, IN TERMS OF SECTION 128 (1) OF THE MUNIGIPAL FINANCE MANAGEMENT ACT, AND WHICH | HAVE
SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE MUNICIPALITY.

{ CERTIFY THAT THE SALARIES, ALLOWANCES AND BENEFITS UF COUNCILLORS AS DISCLOSED IN NOTE 22 OF
THESE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE WITHIN THE UPPER LIMITS OF THE FRAMEWCRK AS ENVISAGED IN
SECTION 219 OF THE CONSTITUTION, READ WITH THE REMUNERATION OF PUBLIC OFFICE BEARERS ACT, 20 OF
1698, AgID THE MINISTER OF PROVINGIAL AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT'S DETERMINATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH
THIS ACT.
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West Coast District Munliclpality
Annual Finanzlel Statements for the year anded 30 June 2018

Statement of Financiai Position as at 30 June 2018

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2018 20T
Reststed
Asaets
Current Asceta
Cash and cash equivalents 8 260 808077 234 434 001
Trade raceivables from exchange transaciions B 8377 9 3950830
Other recelvables from axchange transactions 4 3847385 28078833
Inventories 3 7030 453 7 087 073
Employee benefit - road recelvable 15 1430222 1 196 386
200503108 274 744 942
Nen-Currant Asaats
investment property 7 4 53g 072 4 572 282
Property, plant and aguipment 8 78718201 76811277
Intangible assals 9 40331883 58203012
Empioyea banefi - road recaivable 18 217280468 16 361937
143 317172 168 038 508
Total Assets £33 820 280 433 783 450
Lisblilttes
Curvant Lisbilittes
Trade payables from exchange transactions 10 16 200467 14494 815
VAT payable 11 1 563 040 1476671
Unspent conditional grants and recelpts 12820 1418 580 1712584
Employee benefite 13 5034 378 8725091
Current portion of long-term liabiitfes 14528 13078773 17003 668
41395218 43412732
Non-Current Liablllties
Medical aid benefits 15 65140804 824765909
Long service swards 18 8004 167 7 280 737
Long term liablliiies 14 27153151 40242583
Distribution Pravision 50 21 358 864 -
121655086 110000228
Total Linbilitiss 163 050 304 153 412061
Net Assstu 210 769 874 280 370 488
Accumulated surplus 17 270788 976 280 370 488
-‘:-‘&
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West Coast District Municipality
Annueal Financlal Stetements for the year ended 30 June 2013

Statement of Financlal Performance

Figuras In Rand Note{s) 2018 2017
Restated
Ravenue
Revenue from sxchangs tranosctions
Sale of water to opsration services 18 84340803 414 320818
Roads agency wervices 42 128521 588 120 592 6568
Other revenue 19 2685034 5200 238
Fens aamead 48 316 768 158 302
Resort Incoma 7 3643 288 3486 960
Finance Income 44 21763463 20726817
Total revenue from exchangs transactions 251 240 743 284 555 802

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

AL TIITOR - GIITHIRAL
S RAT R OUFRELRS [

Other revenus 19 1023 524 1825 405
Actuarial gains recognisad - smployea banefits 15843 2002 226 6 788 061
Actuprial gains recognised - roads receivable 16843 1287 BBG .
Government grants & subsidies 20 93656 168 B8 817 107
Gain on bad dabt provision 18 001 330725
Total revenue from non-sxchange transsctions 8778795 ©7 678 208
‘Totsl revenue 3650019 538 362 233 000
Expenditurs
Employes related costs 21 {164 780 B40) (155 577 554)
Remunerstion of counciliors 22 {5042 248) (B 447 167
Dgpraciztion and smortisation {8 128 753) (7 BB5 0E7)
Finance costs 23 (5474212} (7 276 188)
Materisls and euppliss 47 {37 254 483} (44 B33 186)
Allowancs for impalrment 45 (161187} -
Bulk purchases 24 (24132 677) (B723487T)
‘Transfers and subsidies 49 {1667 071} (1187 207)
General axpenses 25 {111768 631} (81 3980 568)
Total expenditure (350 213 410) (311 781 484)
Actuarial loss on employse bensfits 18 (176 149) -
Loss on disposal of ssseis and llabiities {230 491) (1 144 eB8)
Actusrial loss on road recsivable 15 - (628 821)
(Daficit) ourplus for the yeor {8600 812} 48 TS0670
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West Coast District Municinallty
Annual Financial Statemerts for the year ended 30 June 2018

Statement of Changes in Nat /issets

Figures In Rand

Accumulated  Tofal net
surplus assols

Balsnce at 01 July 2016 Reatated
Changee In net nsssfs

(Deficlt) surplus for the year
Correction of an error - note 26
Corraction of &n emor - note 28

Total changes

Balance at 30 June 2017 Restated
(Defickt) surplus for the year

Balance at 3¢ June 2018

427 330180 427 330 150

48780670 46780870
3366 3 368
(185 743 887) (185 743 687)

(146 058 871) (146 €60 671)

280 370489 280 370 489
{9800512) (9600 512)

270788077 270 780 OT7

5
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Waest Coast District Municlpality
Annual Financial Statements for the yaar ended 30 Juns 2018

Cash Flow Statement

Figures in Rend Nots(s) 2018 2017
Rastatad
Cesh flows from operating activitles
Racalpte
GCash receipts from rete payems, govermant and other 236242 805 216 550 858
Road ssrvices 130685035  BA 547 081
Inmbrost meoms 21763463 20 728 817
388862203 335833537
Paymants
Employes coste {160 072 548) (154 664 063)
Suppliers {153 683 320) (140 221 830)
Finance costs (5474312} (7 276 188)
{828 240 180) (302 162 181)
Net cash flows from pperating activities 27 80422023 33071 M8
Cash flowa from investing activities
Purchaas of property, plant and squipment {8085 B50) (10 B3 H061)
Procseds from sals of property, plant and squipment 61 170 176 €28
Net cesh flows from Investing activities {& 034 720) (10 880 285)
Cash flows from financing nctivitiea
Movament in jong term ilabiiities {17013 227} (15 491 B53)
Net Increcesi{decreass) In cach and cash squivalents B3I74 078 TED128
Cash and cash equivalents et the baginning of the year 234 434 001 226 14 B73
& 209 BOB 077 234 434 001

Caoh and cach squivalents at the end of the yanr

i
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West Coast District Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Accounting Policles

1. Preconiation of Annual Financlal Statements

The annual financial siatements have been prepamed In mccordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised
Aocounting Practios (GRAFP), lssued by tha Aceounting Standards Board in accordance with Seotion 122(3) of the Municipal
Finance Management Aot {Act 58 of 2008).

These annual financial statemants have been prepamsd on an accrual basis of accounting and ame n sccordance with
:mmﬂeul cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otharwise. Thay are presented in South Afcan

in the abgance of an lssued and effective Standard of GRAP, mocounting policles for mutecial tranamctions, aventes or
conditicns ware developad In acoordance with paregraphs B, 10 and 11 of GRAP 3 ss rend with Directive 5.

Assets, liablities, revenues and axpanaes ware not offset, axcept where offsatting ia sither required or parmitted by 2
Standard of GRAP.

A summary of the significant accounting policles, which hava besn conslatently applied In the preparation of thess annual
financial sintements, are diaclosad balow.

These gccounting policias are consistent with the previous period.
1.1 Presentation currency

Thess annual financial stetaments are presented In South African Rand, which is the functional eurrency of the municipality.
Al financial information has bsen rounded 10 the nsaresat Rand,

12 Golng concern acsumption

These annuel financial statements have besn preparec based on the expectation that the municipelity will continue to
cpeate 88 & going concemn for at least the next 12 months,

1.3 Transfer of functions betwsen entities not undsr common control

Definitions

An soquires I8 the municipality and/or the functions that the acguirer obtains control of In & tranafar of funetions.

An acquirer Is the municipality that obteins control of the acquiree or trunsferor.

Azquisition date is the date on which the acquirer obtains control of the acquires.

Contingent consideration is usually, an obligation of the scquiner to transfer additional assets or a residual interest to the
formar owners of an sequires as part of the exchanga for conbrol of the acquirse if epecified future events ocour or
condtions are® met. Howsver, contingent conslderation also may give the mequirer the right to the retumn of previously
trarsforred consideration if specified conditions are met,

Conirol la the power to govern the financial and oparating policias of another entity so as to obtain banefit from its activitios.

Fak value iz the amount for which an aeset could bs exchanged, or a liabifty settled, between knowledgeable, wiliing
parfias in an arm’s langth fransaction.

A function Is an integratad set of sctivitiss that 18 capable of being conducted and managed for purposes of achieving an
entity's chlectives, alther by providing ecenomic benefits or service potentiai.

An uut Is idendiflable if it alther;
ls ceparsble, Le. Iz capable of being saparated or divided frem the entity and sold, tranafarrad, floensad, rantad
or exchanged, eithar individually or together with a rolsted contract, esaat or llabillty; or
s arises from contractusl rights {Including rights arlsing from binding amnuomtnh} or other legsl rights (excluding
rights granted by staluts), regardieas of whather those rights are transferable or separable from the entity or from
othar righta and obfigatione.

A marger ls the estsbiishment of a naw combined entity in which none of the former enfitiea obfaln contrel over any other
and no acquirer can be idertified.
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Waest Coast District Municipzlity
Annual Financiel Stetements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Accounting Policles

1.3 Transfer of functionc betwoen antitiss not under common contrel (continued)

Non-controfling Intarest is the Interest In the net assets of a controlled municipality not atiributable, directly or indirectly, io 8
controlling municipality.

Owmners (for the purposes of this. Standard), ls used broadly to Inolude holders of reskiual intarasts.

A resldusl interest is any contract thet manifests an interast In the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilites. A
reaidusl interest includes contributions from owners, which may be shown es:
*  aqully Instruments or similar forma of unitised caplital;
®  aformal designation of a transfer of rasources (or a class of such transfers) by the parties to the transaction as
forming part of an entity's net assets, elther before the contribution cocurs or at the time of the contribiution; or
* & formal agresment, in relation to the sontrbution, establishing or increaalng an existing finenclal Interest in the
nat assate of an entity.

A transfer of functions Is the recrganisation end/or the re-allocation of functions batwean entitiss by transferring functions
batwaan entrties or Inta another entity.

The scquisition method

Tha munigipality sccourts for each transfer of functions batween anfities not under common control by applylng the
acquisition mathod.

Applying the sequisiion method raquines:

(a) Identifying the acquirer;

(b) determining the acquisition date;

(c} recognlaing and measuring the Identifiable asssts acquired, the liabillties assumed end eny non-controling interest in

the acquiree; end
(d) recognising the difference beiween (c) and the consideration tranefemed io the seller.

Identitying the acquirer

For elaeh transfer of functions beiween entities not under common control, one of the combining entities is Identified as the
acqulrer.

The terma and conditions of a transfer of functions undertaken betwesn entities not under comman control ere sat out in s
binding arrangsment.

Detarmining the acqulrer Inciudes a consideration of, amongst other things, which of the combining entiSes inttiated the
trarsction or svert, the relative size of the combining antities, as well as whather the assats or revenus of one of the
antitfes involved in the tranerction or svent significantly excead thoss of the other entities. If no acquirar can be Identified,
the traneaction or avent 1 accounted for in terms of the Standard of GRAP on Mergers.

Detsrmining the scquisiion date

The acquirer dentifiss the acquisition date, which is the dute on which It obtaine control of the acquiree.

All relevant facts and circumstances are conskiered {n identifying the transfer dats.

Recognising and measuring the identifiable assetu scquired, the liabilitios assumad and sny non-controlling
intsrset In the acquiree

Recognition principle

As of the acquisiion date, the municipality as atquirer recogniass, tha (dantifieble assets scqulred, the liabilities assumed
and any non-controlling Intarest in the zoquiree.

Racognition condltions:
To qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifisbie sassts acquined and liabillies essumed

must meet the definitions of assets and liabilites in the Framewerk for the Preparation and Presentaten of Financial
Statements and the recognition criteria in the applicable Standards of GRAP at the scquisition date.
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West Coast District Municipality
Annual Financial Statemants for the year ended 30 Junw 2018

Accounting Policies

1.3 Tranafer of functiono between entiies not under commaon eonirol {continued)

In addition, fo quallfy for recognition as part of epplying the acquisiion method, the identifiable sssets acquired and
jiabliities assumed must be part of what the municipaiity as scquirer and the acquires {or s former owners) agreed in the
binding arrangamant rather than the result of saparate transactions.

Operating leases:

The municipality as acquirer recognises no assels or liabfities relsted to an operating leasa in which the acquiree Is the

The municipality as scquirer determines whether the terms of sach oparating lease In which the scquirse Is the lesses are
favourable or unfavouratie. The municipality &8 acquirer recognises an intangible ssset If the tarms of an operating lease
qre favoursbie relative to market ferms and a [lablity If the tarme ane unfavourable relative to market terms.

An identfiable Imtangible asset may be associated with an oparating leass, which may be evidenced by markst participants’
willingnese to pay @ price for the lease even If [t is at market terms.

Intangible ssssts:

The municipalty as acquirer separsiely racognises the identifiabla Intanglble assals acquirad In a tranafer of functions. An
intangible asset Is identifiable if It mests elther the separability criterlon or the contractual-lagal right criterion.

Clesaifying or designsiing identifiable assats aoquired and llabiitles assumed In a transfer of functions:

At the acquisition date, the municipality es acquirer classifies or designates the identifieble asests acquired and liabilitias

assumed e necessary to apply other Standards of GRAP subsaquent fo the acquisiion dats. The municipelity a& acquirer

makas those classifications or designations an the basls of the isrms of the binding errangement, acanomic conditions, Its

opamting or accounting policies and other reievant conditions as they exist st the soquisition debe.

Mazaurement principle

Ei\a municipaity as acquirer messures the [dentifiable assats acquired and the llabilltiss assumed at thelr acquisition-date
r valuss.

Non-controlling intarest in an soquines:

For sach transfer of functions, the municipallty as acquirer measures at the acquisition date components of non-controfling

Interests In the soquires that sre pressent cwnership intsrests and entitie thelr holdars to a proporfionate share of the entitys
net assets [n the evant of liquidation at either:

o fairvalue; or
*  the present cwnership instruments' proportionata shamm In the recogniead amounts of the acquires’s ideniifiable
net aasels.

Assets with uncariain cash flows (valustion allowances):

The municipality &s acquirer doss not recognine & separate valuetion allowance as of the acquisiion date for assets
scquired In & fransfer of functions that are measured st thelr soquisition-date fair values becauss the effects of uncertainty
about future cash flows are included In the falr value mesasure.

Assels subject to operating lesses in which the ecquiree ie the fessor:

In measuring the acquisiion-date falr value of an esset such as a bullding or a petent that 1s subject to an operating leass in
which the acquines Is the lessor, the municipality sa acquirer takes into acoount the tsrms of the lease.

Exceptiona to the recognition principles

Contingent lisbllities:

Ths requiremants in the Standard of GRAP on Employee benefits, Contingent asaets and Contingent llabilities do not apply
in determining which contingent liablilites i recognise we of the acquisition date. Instesd, the municipality as acquirer

recognises as of the acquistiion date & contingsnt llubllity assumed in a transfer of functions if it s a present obligation that
arises from past events and its falr value can be measured refisbly.
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West Coast District Municlpality
Annual Financial Statements for the yaar ended 30 June 2018

Accounting Policies

13 Transfer of functions betwosn entitiss not under common contrel {continusd)
Exceptions to both the recognition and measursment principles
Employee banefits:

The municipality as aoquirer racognises and measures a liabliity {or asset, if any) related 1o the acquirea’s employes benefit
amangements in accordance with the Standand of GRAP on Empioyee Banefis,

Indemnification sesats;

The seller In a {ransfer of functions may contractually Indemnify the municipality ss acquirer for the outcome of &
contifigency or uncertainty ralated to all or part of a specific assst or fiabllity. Tha municipality as acquirer recognisss an
indemnifioation aseat at tha sams time that it recognises the indemnified tem measured on the same basle as the
indemnified Hem, subject fo the need for a veluetion allowance for uncollectible amounts. Therefore, I the indemnification
relates to an asset or a llability that is recognised at the acquialtion dete and measured &t its acquisition-data falr value, the
municipality as acquirer recognises the indemnification aseet at the acquisition date maasured at i acquisition-date fair
value. For an indemnification asset measured at fair valus, the sffecis of uncertainty about future cash fows becsuse of
collectability considerations are included In the fal vsiue messure and a separats valuation aliowanca I§ not nacesaary.

Exceptions to the measurement principle
Reacquired rights:

The municipaiity as acquirer measures the value of e reacquired right recognissd as an Intangible asset on the basls of the
remalning contractusl term of the related contract or other binding arangement regardiess of whether mariet participants
wouid consider potential renewals of the contract or other binding arrangernant in determining its falr value.

Assats hald for sale:

The municipalty as acquiner measures an acquired non-cutrent asset {or disposal group) that Ia classifiad as held for ssle
&t the acquisition date in accordance with the Standerd of GRAP on Non-currert aasats held for sale and Discontinued
operations et fair value lesx costa to sell.

Racognising and measuring the difference between the asests scquired and llabilities assumed and the
consideration transfarved {if any)

The municipality as acquirer racognisee the difference batween the assets acquired and liabiliies assumed and the
sonelderation franafarred (If any) ss of the acquisition date in surplus or deficit. This diffsrence Is measured as the mxcess of
{a) aver (b} balow

(a) the aggregate of. g

()] 1:h:. consideration tranaferred (If any) measured In accordance with this Standard, which generally requires acquisition=
date fair value;

{) the amount of any non-centrolling Interest in the acquires measured In accordance with this Standard, and

() n a transfer of functions achleved in stages, the scquisition-date falr value of the antity as acquirer's previously hald
aduity interast In the acquirea,

{b) the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the Identifisble sssate acquired and the llabilities assumed messured In
accerdance with this Standard.

Consideration transfarred

The consideration transferred In a transfer of unctions js measured st fair vaius, which s calculated as the sum of the
scquisiton-date falr values of the asasis transferred by the municipality as scquirer, the labilities Incurrad by the
municipality as acquirer to former cwnars of the acquiree and the residual intarests issued by the entity as acquirer,
Contingent conelderation:

The consideration the municipalify 83 acquirer transfers in exshange for the acquires includss any sssst or limbiltty resulting

from a contingent consideration armangernent. The municipailty as acquirer recognises the apquisition-ciate falr valus of
confingent conelderation as part of the consideration transfarred in exchange for the acquiree.
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Viost Coast District Niunicipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year endad 30 Juna 2018

Ac’countlng Policles

1.2 Trancfer of functions between sntities not under comman control {continued)

The municlpelity as acquirer classifies an obligation to pay contingent consideration as & liablity or ae net assets on the
basis of the definitons of & reskdual interest and & finsnclal llebifily in the Standard of GRAP on Financial [nstruments, or
other applicable Etanderd of GRAP, The municipality as acquirer classifiss as an ssset & right ¢ the return of previously
transferred consideration If specified conditions are met.

A tranafer of functions achisved In stages

A municipalily es acquirsr sometimes obteins control of an scgulres In which & held a residual intereat iImmediately bafore
the acquisiton date.

In & transfer of funclions achieved in stages, the municipaiity as actuirer remessures its previously hald residual Intarest in
the acquires st its acquisition-dete fair value and reocgniees the resuling galn or loss, if any, in surplus or deficl, In prior
reporting pariods, the municipallty as acquirer may have recognised changss in the value of ite residual intereat In the
mcquirae In surplue or deficit. If so, the amount that was recognisad in surpius or deficit s recognized on the same basis as
would be required Iif the municipality as acquirar had dispssad directly of the previously held residual interest.

Measurcment period

if the Inifis! accounting for a tranafer of functions la incomplete by the and of the reporting peroed In which the transfar
oceurs, the municipaiity as acquirer reports in its financial statements provisional amounts for the lteme for which the
acoounting Is Incompieta. During the measurement pariod, the municipality as acquirer retrospactively adjust the provielonal
smcunts recognised at the acquisition deie to reflact new information obtained sbout facts and circumstances that axisted
as of the ecquisition data and, if known, woukd have affectad the measurement of the amounts rscognised as of that date.

Diring the measurement period, the municipailty as acquirer also recognises addiional ansets or {labliities If new
informatfion is obtained about facts and clircumstances that existad as of the sequisition date and, if knovwn, would have
resulted In the recognifion of those assats and liabliities aa of thet date. The measursment period ends a3 soon as tha
municipallty es acguirer receives the information it was zesking about facts and circumstances that existed e of the
pcquisition date or learns that more Information Is not ebteinable. Howaver, the measurement perlod doas not sxesed twn
years from the acquisition dete.

Determining what s part of the tranefor of functions transaction

The municipality s acquirer and the acquires have a pre-axisting relationship or other arangamant befors or when
negotiations for the transfer of functions began, or they mey enter inte a binding arrangement during the negetiations thet is
separate from the transfer of functions. In efther situation, the municipality as soquirer identifias any amounts that are not
part of what the municipality as acquirer and the acquires (ar its former owners) sxchanged In the transfer of functions. The
acquirer racognises as part of applying the acquitition mathod only the consideration transferred (if any} for the acquirse
and the ssests acquired and Habflies assumed by the municipality as acquirer in the franefer of functione as governed by
tha torms and conditions of the binding arrangement.

Eftoctive ssttioment of » pre-exioting refationship bsiween the municipallty ae acquirer and acquircs In a tranofor of
functions

A pra-sxisting relationship between the municipality as acquirer and scquiree may be contractual or non-contractual.

If the tranafer of functions in affect satties a pra-mdeting relationship, the munisipality as aoquirer recognises a gain or loss,
measured as foliows:

{a) for a pre-existing non-contractual relationahip, feir value,

{b) for a pre-axisting contractual relationship, the lesser of {} and {i):

(D the amount by which the binding arrangement is favourable or unfavoursble from the perepective of the municipality as
acquirer whan compared with tarma for currant market transactions for the samae or similar ltams.

(i) tha amount of eny stated setiement provisions in the binding arrengement avallable to the countsrparly lo whom the
contrect is unfavourabls,

¥ i) is less than (i), the diffsrence s Included as part of the tranafer of functions sccounting, The amount of gain or ioss
recognised may depend In part on whather the municipality as @cquirer had previcusly recognised a related aeset or
ebiity, and the reported gain or koss therefors may differ from the amount calculated by applying the above requirements.
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Woest Coast District Municlpality
Annual Financial Statements for the year endad 30 Juns 2018

Accounting Policles

1.3 Transfer of functions between entitisc not under commen control (continued)

A pre-axating relationship may be a contract thet the municipailty as moquirer recognises as & reactjuired right If the
binding arrangament Inchsdes terms that are favourabis or unfavourable when compared with pricing for cument market
trensactions for the same or similar items, the municipality as acquirer recognises, sepsrately from the transfer of functions,
a gain or koag for the sffective settismant of the contract.

Acquisition-related costs;

Acquisiion-reiated costs are costs the municipality as acquirer incurs to affact a fransfer of functions. Those costs include

advisory, legal, accounting, valuation and other professionat or consulting fees, general administretive costs, and costs of

registering and Issuing debt and equity securities (f applicable). The municpaltty as scquirer accounts for acquisitions

related costs as sxpenset in the periods in which the coata ane incurned and the seivices are received, with one exception,

:_? e:[m bowlssue debt or aquity sacurities {if applicable) sre recognised In acoordance with the Standard of GRAP on
ancial instrumenis.

Subssquent measurement and accounting

in general, a municipality as soquirer subsaquenty measure and account for aswets ucquired, Hebfiities assumed or
Incurrad and the residusl interest Issued in a trenefer of functions in accordance with other applicable Standards of GRAP
for those ltems, depending on thelr nature.

Reacquired righte

A reacquired right recognised as an intangitle assst is amortised over the remaining contractusl paticd of the contract in
which the right was granted. A municipality es acquirer that subsequently sells a reacquired right to a third parly includes
the carying amount of the intangible asset in determining the gain or ioas on the sale.

Contingent Rxbilities

After mitial recognition and until the llabllity is settied, cancelled or expires, ths municipality es scquirer measurea a
contingent liabllity recognised In = transfer of functions at the highar of

(a) the ampunt that would be recognised In eccordancs with the Stendard of GRAP on Employee banefits, Contingent
liablities and Contingent assets; and

{b) the amount initially recognised less, if appropriats, cumulstive smortisation recognisad In accordance with the Standard
of BRAP on Revenue from sxchange transections.

At the end of each subsequent reporting perlod, the municipality as acquirer measures an Indsmnification assat that was
recognised et the acquisition date on the same basle as the mdemnified liabliity or asset, subject to any limitations as set In
the binding arrangement on its amount and, for an indemnification asset that Is not subsequently measursd et its falr value,
management's assessment of the coflectability of the indemnification asset. The municipality as acquirer derecognisas tha
Indemnification assst only when it collects the asset, sells It or otharwise loses the right to It,

Contingent conslderation

Some changes [n the fair velue of contingent consideration thet the municipality as acquirer recognisss sfter the acquisition
data may be the result of additional Information that the municipality as acquirer obtained after that date about facts and
clrcumstances thet axisted at the acquiwition date, However, changes resulting from events afisr the acqulsition dats, auch
a5 maeting a performance target, or reaching & miestons on a resaarch and development project, are not measurement
pericd adjustments. The municipality as acquirer accounts for changas In the feir vaius of vontingent conaldsration that are
net measurament period adjustments s follows:

(a) Contingent conswderation classified as nat assets shell not be remeasurad and s subsequent satiement is accounted
for within nef sasels.

(b} Contingand consideration classified &s an ausst or g abillty that

(i) is & financial Instrument and Is within the soope of the Standard of GRAP en Financial inatruments Is measured ut fair
value, with any reaulting gain or [o8s recognissd In surplus or deficlt In mccordanes with that Standard of BRAP.,

() Is not within the scops of the Standard of GRAP an Financial Instrumants ks accounited for in secordance with the
Stendard of GRAP on Employee benefits, Contingent liabllities and Contingent assels or other Standards of GRAP gs
appropriste.
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West Coast District Municlpslity
Annual Fingnela! Statements for the vear ended 30 June 2018

Accounting Policies

1.4 Transfer of functions between entitfes under common control
Definitione
An nequirer Is the municipality that obtaine control of the acquires or transfargr.

Carrying amount of an assat or liability Is the amount at which an assat or liabliity Is racognised in the statemant of financlal
position.
Canfrol is the power to govern the financlal and operating policias of snother municipelity o a3 to barmfit from its activitias,

A funclion Is an integrated set of activities that Is capable of baing conducted and managad for purpeses of achisving an
municipafity’s objectives, efther by providing economic benefits or service potential.

A merger Is tha establishment of 2 new combined entity in which none of the former entities obtaine contral over any other
and no acquirer can be identified.

Trarsfer date Is the date on which the scquirer cbisine control of the function and the transferor loses control of that
function.

A transfer of functions is the rsorganisation and/or the re-allocation of functions between entities by transfening functions
batween aniities or inte ancther municipality.

A transferor s the municipality that rellnquishea control of a function.

Common conirol ~ For a frensaction or evant to occur between entities under commen control, the transaction or avent
naeds to be undertaken between entities within the same sphare of govemment or betwssn sntities that ame part of the
same economic enity. Entities that are ulimately controfied by the same entity before and efter tha transfar of funclions are
within the sarne econcmic entity.

A function is an imsgrated set of adivides tiat 8 capeble of belng vonducied &id Managed for purposes of achieving an
municipality's objectives, efther by providing economic benafils or servica potential, A function conslets of inputs and
procesees applied to those Inputs that have the abllity to create outputs. A function can sither be & part or a portion of an
entity or oen consist of the whole municipelity. Although functiens may have Gutputs, outputs are not required to quallfy 2s a
funclion, The three elements of a function are delined as follows: _ _

. Iltl‘lpl.lt: Any resource that creates, or hae the ability to créate, outputs when one or more processes are applied to

*  Process: Any system, standard, protoes], convention or rule that when applied to 2n input or Inputs, crestes or
has the ability to creale outputs.

»  Quiput: The result of Inpuls and processas applied to achieva and improve efficlsncy. This may ba in the form of
achleving sarvice delivary objactives, or the delivery of gaods and/or sarvices.

identifying the acquirer and trancferor

For each transfer of functions between antities under common conitrol an acguirer mnd transferor are Identified. All relavant
facts and sircumstances are considered In identiylng the acquirer &nd transferor.

The terms and conditions of a franafer of funclions undscisken betwesn entities under common coritrol sre set out In &
binding arrangament. The binding arrangement governing the tarma and conditions of & tranafer of functions may identify
which municipalify to the transaction or event Is the transferor(s) and which municipality is the mcquirer. Where the binding
amangsment does not cisarly identify the acquirer or the tranaferor, the behaviour or actions of the entiies may Indicats
which municipality {a the acquirer and which municipality is the tramsferor.

Determining the eequirer includes a conaidenation of, emongst ather things, which of the entities Inveived In the tanafer of
functions Initiated the transaclion or svent, tha relative alze of the entities, as well as whather the asssis or revenue of one
of the entities involved in the trenesction or event significanty excead theas of the cther entities. if no acquirer can be
identified, the transaction or event is accounted for in terms of the Standard of GRAP on Mergers.

Datermining the transfer date

The acquirer and the transferor kientify the transfer date, which i the date on which the soquirer obteins control and the
transfercr loses control of that function,

All relavant facts and clrcumstances are considered In Identiying the transfer date.

LI
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West Coast District Municlpality
Annuel Financial Staiaments for the year ended 30 June 2018

Accounting Policies

1.4 Transfor of functions betwesn sntitlec under commen control {continued)
Anssets acquired [ranaferred] and liebliities assumed [relinquinhed]
The recognition of asseis and flabilties, is subject to the following conditions:

Tho assets aocquirsd and the liabliiias assumad are part of what had been agreed in tamms of the binding arangement (if
applicable), rather than the result of saperats transactions.

Determining what bs part of the transfer of functions transaction

Where the municlpality end the fransfarer heva & pre-existing relaticnship before or when negatiations for a tranafer of
functions began, or where & binding arrangemaent Is snterad Into during the negoilations that are ssparate from a transfer of
functions, any amounts that ané not part of what were transferred in a tranafer of functions are identified, This pollcy onty
applies to the oonskderation traneferred and the asests acquired and llabfiifes sssumed In & transfer of funcflons as
governed by tha terms and conditions of the binding amangement.

The following factors ame considerad, which are neither mutually exclusive nor Individually conclusive, to determine whether
a transaction te part of a transfar or function or whether the tranaaction s saparate:

*  the reasons for the transaction

s tha timing of the trenaaction

Eufbcﬂvc sstilement of a pre-existing relationship betwesn ihe entity (as scquirer) and transferor in a tranefer of
nctions

A pre-sxisting relationahip betwaen the municipality (as actuirer) and the transferor may bs contractual or non-contractual,
It a transfer of functions in affect seities a pre-existing relationship, the entity (as acquirer) recognises a galn or loss,
mmumd ag follows:
for & pre-axisting non-contractual relationship, falr value.
= for a pre-axisting contractual ralationship, tha lesser of the following:
= the amount by which the binding amangament Is faveurable or unfavourabla from the parspactiva of the
ml&lpﬂw {as acquirer) whan compared with tarms for current market transactions for tha same or similer

»  the amount of gny stated setllement provisions In the binding amangemant avaliable to the counterparly to
whom the contract Is unfevourable.

If the latter |e tous, the differencs is included as part of a transfer of functions accounting. The smount of gain or [oes
recognised may depend in part on whether tha municipality (as acquirer) had previously recognised a related asset or
liabllity, mnd the reported gain or loes therefore may differ from tha amount calculated by applying the sbove requirements,

Other criteria for the entity (as aoquirer)

The assets acquired and liabliities assumed that qualify for recognition as sat out In the binding amangement mests the
definitions of assats and llablities In the Framework for the Preparation and Presentafion of Financial Gtatemanis and the
recognition criteria In the applicable Standards of GRAP at the tranafer dats.

Coste that the municipaiity expacts, but which It Is not cbliged to Incur In tha future to effect Its plan to exit an aclivity of the
transferor or to terminate the employment of, or mlocate the transferor’s employees, is not accounted for as part of the
limbilities at the tranafar date. The municipality dosa not recogniee those costa e part of a tranefar of functione. Instesd, the
municipality recogniess these costs in its annual financial statemenis after the transfer has oocurred, in accordanoe with the
epplicable Btandards of GRAF
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West Coaet District Municipality
Annual Financial Statemants for the year ended 30 June 2018

Accounting Policles

14 Tranafer of functions betwsen antitiss under common control {continued)
Aceounting by the entity as acquirer
initial recognition and mescurement

As of the transfar date, the municipalily recognisas the purchase consideration paid to the transferor and eil the assats
acquired and lisbillies assumed in a transfer of funclions. The assets acquited and Kabillties assumed are measured at
thelr carrylng amounts.

i, prior to the transfer of funciions, the transferor was not applying the acerual basls of accounting, the transferor changes
Its basls of acsounting to the accrual basis of accounting prior io the transfar.

‘The conaideration paid by the municipality can ba In the farm of cagh, cash agquivalents or other asasts. If the consideration
pddl:hln the form of other assets, the municipality de-recognises such assets on the transfer date st their camying
.mg 1]

Tha differance between the carying amounts of the assets acquired, the llabllities assumed and the consideration pald fo
the trensferor, is mcognisad in accumulated surplus or deficit.

Mansurement pariod

if tha initlal accounting for a transfer of functions Is Incompiete by thea and of the reporting peried In which the tranafer
occurs, the municipality reporia in s annusl finanolal atataments provisional amounts for the flems for which tha accounting
Is incomplete. During the measuremeant perlod, the municipallty relrospectivaly adjust the provisional amounts recognised at
tha transfer date to reflact new Information obteined about facts and circumstancesa that existed as of the tranafer dats and,
I known, weuld have affected the measurement of the amounts recognisad ae of that date. The measurement period ends
as soon ae the municipailty recaives the Information # was sseking sbout facts end circumsiances that existad as of the
transier date or leams that more Information Is not abteinable. However, the measurement pered does not exceed two
yoars from the tremsfar date.

Tha municipality considers all relevant factors In determining whether information obiained after the transfer dete shouid
.m;;ltulg an ﬁm:n«ﬂ o the provisionsl amounts recegnised or whether that information resulis from events that ocourmed
transfor date,

The municipaiity recognises an incrsase (decrease} In the provisional amaunt recognisad for an assst (llability) by maans of
decreaaing (Increasing) the excees of the purchase considerafion paid over the carrying smount of the assets acquired and
lablities assumed previously recognisad In accumulated surplus or deflelt. However, new Information obtalned during the
maasurement pariod may somatimes resudt in an adjustment to the provisicnal amount of mare than one asset or Rabilty.

During the measurement period, the municipality recognises adjustments to the provisional amounts as if the sccounting for
the treansfar of funclions had been complaies at tha transfer date, Thus, tha municipality revisas comparative information for
prior periods presented In annusl financial ststements as nesded, including making eny change in depreclation,
amortisation or other income sffecis recogniced in comploting the Indtfal sceounting,

After the maasurement perind ends, the muniaipality revises the sccounting for a transfer of functiohs only to comect an
error in accordanca with the Stendand of GRAP on Accounting Policles, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errots.

Acquicition-rolated costs

Actuisition-related oosis are costs that the municipality incurs to affect the transfer of functions. Thesa coats include
advisory, legal, accounting and otfwr professional or consulting fees, general administrative costs, and costs of registering
end fssuing dabt and aquity sacuriies. The entity accounts for acquisition-related coats as expenses In the pariod In which
the costs are inourred and tha services ars received, with the exception of the costs Inoumed to issue debt or equity
sscurities, which are recognisad In acoordamee with tha Standard of GRAP on Financial Instuments,

Subcsgquent messurement

Tha municipallly subsequently magsure any asasle acqulred and any [abliiies essumed in a transfer of functione in
gcoordance with the applicable Standards of GRAP
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West Coast District Municlpality
Annual Finencial Statemants for the ysar sndad 30 Juna 2018

Accounting Policles

1.4 Transfer of functions between entifiss under common control (continued)

At the transfer date, the municipality classifies or designetes the assets acqulred and Habilites assumed as necessary fo
apply other Standards of GRAP eubaequently. The municipality mekes those classifications or designations on the basis of
the terms of the binding arrangement, scanamie conditiona, its operating or accounting policies and other relevart
conditions that axdst et the fransefer date. An exception Is that the municipaiity ciassifies the following contracts on the basls
of the contractual tems and other factore at the Inception of the contract (or, if the terms of the contrect have besn modified
In a mannar that would change its clasaification, at the data of that moedifioation, which might be the transfer date):
¢ classification of m lsase contract as elther an aperating lease or a finance lagas In sccordance with the Standard
of GRAP on Laesss; and
+  classification of a contract as an Insurence contract In accordance with the Intermutional Financial Reporting
Standard on Insurance Cornvracts.

Accounting by the entity as tranaferor
Derscognition of sssets transferred and lablilities relinquished

Ag of the transfer date, the municipality derecognises from ita ammual financial siaterments, 2l the assats transferred and
[imbilitres retinculshed in a transfar of functions st thelr carrying amounts.

Untll the transfer date, the municipality continues to meaaura these assets and Habliies In accordance with applicabls
Btandards of GRAP.

The consieration received from the scquirer can bs in the form of oash, cash equivalents or other assets. If the
consideration racelvad 18 in the form of other assats, tha municipality measures such asaets at their fair value on the
transfer date in accordance with the applicable Standard of GRAP. The difference batwean the camrying amounts of tha
assets transfarred, the liabilies relinguished snd the consideration received from the acquirer is recognised in acoumulated
surplus or deficit.

1.5 WMergers

Definitions

carr"sirlru esmount of an asset or liabllity & the amount at which an asset or llablltty s recognisad In the statement of financial
position,

Combinad municipality ls & new reporting entty formad from the combination of two or mote entilies
Combining entities are the entities that are combined for the mutual sharing of risks and banefits In & merger.
Caontrol Is tha pawer fo govem the financial and oparating policies of another municipality so s to banefit from Ita activities.

A merger is the establishment of a new combined municipality in which none of the former antitles obtaln control over any
other and no acquirer can ba identified,

Merger date is the date on which entities are combinad fer the mutual aharing of risks and benefita and when the asseis
and llabilities are transferrad fo the combined municipality.

A fransfer of functions is the recrganisation and/or the re-allocation of funcilons between entities by tranaferring functions
batwesn entitfes or Info another municipality. .

A marger is the astablishment of a new combinad municipality In which none of the former ertities obtains control ovar any
other and no acquirer can be idsntifled, As no acquirer can be identified, a merger doas not resuft In an municipality having
or obtuining control over any of the sntities that ars Involved In the transaction or svent, as the combining entities are not
confroliad entitles of sach other, either bafore or aftar the marger,

Identifying the combined entity and combining cniities

For aach merger & combined municipallty and combining entites ls dentified. Al relevant facts and circumstances are
considered In identifying the combinad municipalty and combining municipality,

The bincing armangement usually sets cut which anfiiex are to ba combinad a5 a nasult of tha mergar, and Identifies the
new reporting municipality after the merger.
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West Coast District Riunicipality
Annuz| Financial Statemants for the year endad 30 June 2018

Accounting Policles

1.2 Nergers {continued)
Determining the merger date

Tha combined municipality and the combining entities identity the merger date, which s the date cn which tha new reparting
municipality obtalne control of the assats and llsbBitles and the combining entities losas controf of thelr asasts and liabilities.

All ralevant facts and circumstences are considemsd In kisntifying the merger date.
Aceets acquired [transfsrred] and llabifities casumaed [derecognioed]
The recognition of asssts and Usbilities by the enifty as combined entity are subjest to the following conditicns:

The asseis and liabllities that qualify for recagnition in & merger are part of what had been agreed in terms of the binding
arangament, rather than the nesult of saparats transactions.

Other eriteria for the entity (as the combined saiity)

The aszsts and liabilitias that quality for recognifion as set out in the binding armangement meets the definitions of assets
and liabillties in the Framework for the Preparation and Presarttation of Financlel Statements and the recognifion critera In
the applicable Standards of GRAP at the marger date,

Coats that the antity expeots but which the municipality is not obiiged to Incur in the futura to effact Hs plan to st an activity
of the combining entitfes or to leminate the smployment of, or relocate the combining sntites” smployess, ls not be
accounted for as part of the Kabliies at the merger date. The entily doss not recogniae those costa ae part of a merger.
Inetead, the munitipalty mcognises thees costs In s ennual financial statamants afer the merger has ocourred, in
aceordance with the applicable Standards of GRAP

-,
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West Coast District Municipality
Annual Financigl Statements for the year endad 30 Juns 2018

Accounting Policles

1.6 Margers (oontinued)
Accounting by the entity as the combined entity
Initia] recognition and moasurement

As of the marger date, the municipality recognises all the assets acquired and liabllities assumed. The sssets acquired and
limbilities assumed are measursd st their camrying amounts,

If, prior fo the merger, & combining municipality was not applying the accrusl basis of accounting, that combining
municipality changes lis basis of accounting to the accrual basis of accounting prior to the merger.

The difference between the carrying amoimts of the sasste scquired and the liabllifles assumed Is recognised in
accumulated surplus or deficit.

Meoasurement period

If the inkial accounting for & merger is incomplete by the end of the reporting period In which the merger occurs, the
runicipality repetis In Its annual financial statamants provisional amounts for the items for which the scoounting la
Incomplete. During the measurement period, the municipality retrospactively adjust the provisional amounts recognised at
the merger date to refiact new Information cbisined about facts and clrcumstences that existed as of the merger date and, If
known, would have affected the measurement of the amounis recognised ss of that date. The msasurement pariod ends as
soon as the municipallty receives the Information It was seaking about facta and citcurnstances that existed as of the
menger date or isarns that more information is not obtainable. Howaver, the maasursment pearind does not exceed two
years fram ihe merger dats,

The municipality canaiders all relevant factors in determining whether Information obtained after the merger data should
result in an adjustment to the provisional amoeunts recognisad or whether that information resulte from svents that occurred
afier the merger date. Relevant factors Include the date when additional Information is obtalned end whether the
municipality can identify a reason for a changs to provisional amounts.

‘The municipality recognises an increase (decrease) in the provisional amount recognised for an ssset (llabllity) by meane of
decreasing {increasing) the excess of the purchass consideration pald over the camying amount of the assats acquired and
labilties assumed previcusly recognised In accumulated surplus or defict,

During the measurement pariad, the municipality recognises adjustments to the provislonal amounis as if the sccounting for
the merger had besen complsiad at ihe merger date, Thus, the municipality revises comparativa Informatien far prior paricds
presented In annusl fingnclsl statements as needed, including making any change In depraciation, amortisation or cther
Income effects recognisad In complating the initial acoounting.

After the massurement pariod snds, the municipallty revisss the accounting for & merger only to correct an emor In
accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Accounting Policies, Changes In Accounting Estimates and Errors.

Expenditure Incurred In relation to the merger

Expenditures incurred in relation o the merger are costs that the entity Incurs to effect the merger. These costs include
advisory, legel, seuounting ahd other professional or consulting fess, gensral administrative costs, costs & fumish
Information {0 owners of the combining entities, and salaries and other expenses related to services of employaes Involved
in achiaving the merger. It also inciudes coats or losses Incurred i combining the assets and lebliles of the combining
entities. The municipality eccounts for such expenditure as axpanses [n the period ih which the costs are Incurred.

Subsequent measurament

The municipally subsequently measures any assets acquired and any fisbiliies sssumed In & merger In accordance with
the applicable Standarde of GRAP.

At the merper date, the municipality classifiss or designates the assets acquired and liabllities assumed as necessary o
2pply other Standards of GRAP subsequently. The municlpality makes those classifications or designations on the basls of
the terms of the binding amangement, economic conditions, the operating or mccounting policles and other relevant
conditions as these exist at the mergar date. An exception (s that the municipallly clasalfies the following contracts on the
bagis of the contractual terms and other factors at the Inception of the contract {or, If the terms of the contract have bean
modified in & manner that weuld chengs its classification, at the date of that modification, which might be the merger data):

. e;a;sﬂilpcpﬂon of & lease contract as eithar an operating isase or a finance leass in sccordance with the Standerd

o on Leases; and

i
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West Coast District Municipzlity
Annual Financlal Statemaents for the year ended 30 June 2018

Accounting Policles

18 fergoro (continued)
¢ classification of a contract as an insurance contract in eccordanca with the Intemational Financial Reperting
Standerd on Insurance Contracis.

The annual financiat statemerts of the municipallly are prapared using uniform accounting policies for similar taneactiora
and other events or similar circumstances.

Accounting by entity ac the combining entlty
Argsts trancfarmed and lnbilitiha de-recoghload

As of the memger date, the municipality as the combining eniity tranafer and de-recognise from lts annual financlal
statamonts, all the esssts and lablities de-recognised at thelr carrying amounts.

Untll the marnger dade, the municipallly continuss to mensure these assets and Kabilities in accordance with appliceble
Standarda of GRAP,

The difference between the carrying amounts of the sssety transferred and the liabilites de-recognised are racognisad In
accumnulsted surpius or deficit,

1.6 Investment proporfy

Investmant propadly ls property (land or a buikding - or part of a bullding - or both) held to eam rentals or for capltal
eppreciation or both, rather than for:

*  use inthe production or supply of goods or services or for

¢  adminisirative purposes, or

*  agls In the ordinary courss of operations.

Owner-ocoupled property is propenty held for use In the production or supply of goods or sarvices or for administrative
PEpOBas.

Investment proparly Ia recognised as an asest when, it is probable that the future sconomic benefits or servica potential that
&re assoclated with the Investmant property will flow to the municipality, and the coat or falr valus of the Investment property
can be measurad rellably.

Investment propetty is initielly recognised at cost. Transaction coste are included In the inltiel measurement.

Whulamlnvaltmunt properly |s acquired through a hon-axchange transaction, lts cost is its fulr value as at the dete of
mequisition.

Coats include costs incurred inltially arxi costa incurmed subsaquently to adsd to, orto replaca a part of, or servica & property,
If a replacament part is recognised in the camying emcunt of the investmant proparty, the carmying smeunt of the replaced
part is derecognissad.

Cost model

Invmetmant property ks cared at cost less scournulated depreciation and any eccumuiated Impaiment ioases.

Depreclfdbﬂnn |s provided to write down the cost, lass estimated residual value over the usefut lie of the property, which s
] 1

item Usetul lifo

Propearty - beach development 25 1o §0 yuars

Land Infiniite

Investment proparty is derecopnised on disposal or when the inveatmert proparily is permanently withdrewn from use and
no future aconomic benafits or service potentlal are expactad from Its disposal.

Galns or losses arising from the retirement or disposs! of Investment propsriy Is the difisrence between the net disposal
procesds and the camying amount of the assst and ls recognised In surplus or defick in the pariod of retirament or dispozal.

Compensation from third parties for Invesiment property that was impalred, Iost or glven up is racognised In surplus or
deflolt when the compansation bacomes recelvable, '

&
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West Coast District Municipality
Annual Financisl Statemaenta for the yesr endad 30 Juns 2018

Accounting Policies

1.7 Praparly, plant and equipment

Properly, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets {including Infrestructurs assels) that are held for use in the
production ¢r supply of goods or sarvices, rentel io othars, or for administrative purposes, and are expectad to be used
during more than one period.

The cost of an tem of property, plant and equipment /s recognised as an saset when;
¢ [tls probable that future economic benefits or servics polential associated with the item will flow to the
municipality; and
*  the cost of the tam can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measurad af cost,

The cost of an lem of properly, plant and equipment I the purchage prick and other costs attribuiable to bring the assst to
the location and condition necessary for It to ba capabls of operating in tha manner intended by managsment. Trade
discounts and rebstes sre deducted In arriving at the cost. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the
related equipment Is capitelised as part of that eguipment.

Where an asset ls acquired through & non-exchange trensaction, fts cost is its feir value aa et date of mcquisition.

Where sn itern of properiy, plant and aquipment le acquired in exchange for a non-monetary assst or monetary assats, ora
combination of monetary and non-monstary sseets, the asset acquired is initfafly measured at falr value (the cost). If the
acquined [tem's falr vaiue was not detamminable, it's dearmad cost |s the carmying mount of the assei(s) given up.

Whan significant cemponents of an ttem of property, plant and equipment have differant useful livas, they ars acsauntad for
as separate iterns {(major components) of praperty, plant and eguipment.

Costs Include costs Incurred Initially to ecquire or conetruct an ltem of properly, plant and equipment and costs incurmed
subsequendly tc add to, replace part of, or servies it. if a replacement coat ls racognised In the carrying amount of an Item of
property, plant and squipmaent, the earrying ameurt of the replaced part Is derecogrnised. If expanditure only restores the
arginally assesssd standard of performancs, it is regarded as repairs and malntenance and sre expesnsed. The
enhiancement of en existing assets so that Its use |s expanded or the furthar deveiopmant of an assat ao that its ariginal life
is extendad are examples of subsequent expenditure which shoukl be capitalised.

The initial estimaie of the cosls of dismenting and removing the item and reatoring the site on which It is located s also
included in the cost of proparty, plant and equipment, where the eniity Is cbligated to incur such expenditure, and whare the
abligation arlses as a result of acquinng the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of Inventories.

Recogniien of costs In the camying amount of an tem of progerty, plant and equipment ooases when the item is In the
lacstron and condifion neceasary for it 1o be capable of cperating in the manner intendad by management.

Mejor spare parte and standby squipmant which are expected to be used for more than one pariod are Included In property,
plant and equipment. In addition, epare perte and standby equipment which cen only be usad In connaction with sn tem of
property, plant and equipment are accounted for as proparty, plant and eguipment.

Major Inspaciion costs which sre & condition of continuing use of an item of propsrty, plant and equipment and which meet
the recognition eriterla above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any
remalning inspection costs from the pravious inapection are demecognised.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

mrlv;’g’lam and equipment are dspraciatsd on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated
ual vajue,

Proparty, plant and squipment undsr construction - This cost Include all expenditurs ralated directly 1o specific projects il
In progress at pariod end. incomplete construction work is stated st historical cost.
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West Coast District Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Accounting Policles

1.7 Property, plant and equipment {continued)
The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

ttem Deprecintion method Averape usefyl life
Land Straight ne infinite

Bulidings Straight ine 2610 30

Other Structures (Infrastucture) Straight ine 010 160

Othar Straight fine 21030

Each part of an ilem of property, plent and squipment with a cast that la significant in nelation to the tetal coat of the ltem is
deprecisted saparately

The municipality assesses at sach reporting date whether there is any indication that the minicipality expectations about
the rasidual vaius and the useful life of an assat have changad sinca tha praceding reporiing date. If any auch Indlcation
exisis, the municipallty revises the axpected usefid ife and/or reaidual value ascordingly. The change Is accounted for as a
changs In &n acoounting estimate.

Tha depreciation charge for each period Is recognised in surplus or deficit unless i Is Included In the camying amount of
srother anset.

Kems of propery, plant and equipment are derecogniesd when ihe asset Is disposad of or when thers are no further
sconomic bansfits or service potantial expected from the use of the aseet.

The gain or loss srising from tha deracognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is inchaded In surplus or deficit
when the ftemn Is derecognised. Tha gain or loss arising from the darecognition of an item of proparty, plant and sgquipment
is determined as the diffarance betwaen the net disposal proceads, If any, and the carrying amount of the item.

Asseis which ths municipality helds for rentals to others and subsegquently routinely salf as part of the ordinary course of
sctivilies, are tranafsmad to invenioriza srhen the rantals sid and the assele am available-for-eala. Proceeds from sales of
theee aseets are recegnised as revenue. Ali cash flows on these assets are Included in cash flows from operating activities
In tha cash flow statemant,

Borrowing cost are treated in eccordance with the provision of GRAP 5 wusing the allowed alernative treatment. In
accordance with these provisions bormowing cosis are intsrest and other costs Incurred in connection with the bermowing of
money. Bormowing couts directly attributed ta the acquisiion, construction or production of a quallfying asset are capialisad.
Borrowing costs incurred other then in a quelitying asset are recognised aa an expense in surplus or deficit when incurred.
The amount of borrowing costs capltelieed is limited to the actual borrowing costs Incurred on the borrowing less any
invesiment income on the temporary investment of the funds borowed.

1.8 intenglble aveetc

An asset is identifiabls If It either:

+ s separable, i.a. is capable of being separated or divided from an endity and sold, tranaferred, licensad, ranted or
exchanged, sither individually or together with a relaied contract, Identiflable aseets or Hebifity, regardisss of
whathaer the entity intends to do so; or

=  arises from binding amangsmanta (Including rights from eontract), regardiaas of whethar thoss rights are
transferable or saparable from tha municipality er from othar rights and obligations.

A hinding arrangement cescribes an arrangement that confers similar rights and cbligations on the parties to it as if It wars
in the form of a contract.

An Intangble asset is recognised when:
»  lils prababie thet the sxpected future economic benefits or service potential that are aifributable o the asset wil
flow to the municipality; and
= tha cost or fair value of the asset can ba measured reliably.

The municipality assasses the probability of sxpscied future econamic bensfits or sarvice potantial using reasonable and
assumptions that represant management's beat extimate of the set of economic conditions that will exiet over
the useful life of tha asest.

Where sn Intengible asest i soquired through & non-exchenge fransaction, its inftial cost et the date of acquisition s
meesured at ks fak value as at that date.
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West Coast District Municipallty
Annual Finenclal Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Accounting Policles

1.8 Intanglble ossets (continued)

Expenditure on ressarch {or on the research phase of an Internal project) is recognised as an expense when I is incurred.
Intangitle asacts are carried at coat less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment ioases,

An Intangible asset is reparded as having an Indefinits useful fife when, based on all relevant factors, there is no
foresasable limit to the period over which the asset is expectsd to generate net cash Inflows or sarvice potential,
Amortisation Is not provided for these intangible assats, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is
an indicetion thet the assst mey ba impaired. For all othar intangble assels amortisation is providsd on a stralght line basis
over thelr useful lifs.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangtble assete are reviewed at each reporting date.
Reassessing the useful life of an intangbie asset with a finite useful life after |t was classified as Indefinite ts an Indicator
ihat the asset may be impaired. As a result the aeaat is tested for impalment end the remalning carrying amount Is
amortised over lis useful life.

Intemaly generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, custorner lists and iems similar in substance are not recognised
as Intangible assets.

intemally generated goodwill s not recognised as an intengible asset.
Amortisation [s pravidad to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows:

Iem Depreciation method Average uasful life
intanglble assats Streight line 0-20 yosrs
Intangibls assats are derecognised:

¢ ondisponal, or

¢ when no future sconomic banafits or servica potential are expected from its uss or disposal.

The galn cr loss [a the difference batwean the net dispcaal proceads, If any, and ths eamying amount. It is recognised In
surplus or deficit whan the assst is derscognised.

1.9 Financlal Instruments

A financial instrument Is any coniract thet gives riss to a financial asset of one antiy and a financial llability or a realdual
Interest of anothar municlipality.

The amertised caat of a financiel asset or finuncial llabillty |s the amount at which the financlal asset or financlal liabllity is
measured at Inlial recognition minus principal repaymants, plus or minus the cumulstive amortisation using the effective
interest methad of any difference betwaan that inltiel amount and the maturity amount, end minus any reduction (diractly or
through the usa of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectbliity.

A concessionary loan is & loan granted to or received by an municipality on terms that are not market related.

Credit risk [s the risk that ane parly to & finandial instrument will causa a financial leas for the other party by failing to
discharge an obligation,

Currency risk la the riak thet the fair vaiue or future cash flows of 2 finenclal instrument Wil fluctuste bacause of changee in
foreign exchange rates,

Derecognition |s the ramoval of a praviously recognised financial assst or financlal liabillty from an municipelity's statement
of financiel poaition.

A dlrlvntlw iz a financlal instrument or other contract with all three of the following characteristica:
s value chariges in response to the change In a specifisd Intersst rate, financial nstrument price, commodity
price, foraign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit Index, or other variable, provided in
m-u ofa ngn-ﬁnnndnl variable that the variabla la not specificto upnrtytnﬂnmmu(urmﬂmuculhd
‘underlying
* [t requirea no Inital net Invesiment or en initial net investmant that is smaller than would ba required for other
types of contracts that would be expecied to have & similar response to changes In market factors.
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West Coast District Municipality
Annual Financlal Stalomsnta for the yesr endad 30 June 2018

Accounting Policles

1.5 Finanglal inatrumunta (continued)
*  His settied at a future date,

The effective intarest method is & method of calculating the amoriisad cost of a financlal zaset or & financial {abllity (o
group of financial assets or finencial liabikities) and of afocating the Interest Income or Intsrest expense over the relevant
pericd, The effective interest rate Is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
axpacted iifa of the financial Instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period Io the net carmying amount of the financial
asset or financlel llabllfy. When caiculgting the efeciive Interest rate, an municipality shait estimate cash flows comnaidering
all contractus| terms of the financial Instrument {for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shaill not consider
future cradit losses. The calculation Includss all fess and points paid or reosived betwesn parties to the contraot that are an
Integral part of the affective Interast rate (sea the Standard of GRAP on Revenus from Exchange Transactions), transaction
costs, and all other premiume or discounts. There is & presumption that the cash flows and the expected Iifa of & group of
similar financial instruments can bs estimated reliably. However, In those rane cases when it is not possivle to raliably
sslimate the cash flows or the expectsd [ife of & financial Instrument (or group of financial instruments), the municipality
shall use ﬂ)n contractuel cesh flows ovar the full contractual term of the finencial instrument (or group of financial
instrumants),

Fair valus Is the amount for which &n asset could bs exchanged, or a liability settled, betwean knowledgesble willing parties
in an arm's length raneaction.

A financial ls::t In:
- cash;
» @ residual intereat of another municipalty; or
«  mcontmactual fight to:
- racalve cash or another financial ssset from another municipality; or
- exchange financial ssesis or financlal llabillties with another municipality under conditions that are
potertiatly favourable ta the municlpality.

A finunolal gusrantes contract is m oontract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the hoider for
a loss 1t incurs becauss a spacified dabior falls i make payment wihen due in accordance with the original or modified
s of a dabt instrumant.

A financial limbility Is any liability that s a contrectual obligation to:
»  deliver cash or another financial asset o ancther municipallly; or
o exchange financial assets o financial liabities undar conditions that are potentially unfavoursble to the
municipality.
Interest rate risk is the risk thet the fair value or future cash flows of a financia! instrument will fuctuete bacausa of changes
In market interest rafes.

Liquidity risk is tha riek encountered by an municipeiity in the event of dificulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial inbiliies that are ssttied by delivaring cash or ancther finanoial aasef.

Loan commitment ls & firn commktment to provide cradit under pre-specified terms and conditions.
Loans paysbls sre financial linbitiss, cther than short-term payables on normal cradit terms.

Market riek [s the rak that the fair valus o future cash fiows of & finandis! Instrument will fluctuste becauss of changes In
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risic curenay risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.

Qther price riek ks the risk that the fair valus or future cash flows of » financial Instrument will fluciuate because of changea
In markst pricas (other than thosa erising from Interest rate risk or cumrency risk), whether thoae changes are caused by
faciora specific to the individusl financial instrument or lts issuer, or factors affecting ail similar financial instruments traded
in the mariet.

A financial esset [a past Jus when a countemerty hes faled to make & payment when contractually due.
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Waest Coast District Municipality
Annual Finanoial Statemsnts for the year ended 30 Junae 2018

Accounting Policles

1.3 Financial Instrumants (continuad)

A resldusl interest ls any contract that manifests an Interest in the sssets of an municipality after deducting all of its
labilites, A residual interest Includes contributions from owners, which may ba shown gs:

*  equity inatruments or simAar forme of unitised caphtal;

+  aformal designation of a transfer of resources {or a clasa of such transfers) by the parties to the transaction as
for;nhi'lrli’g pi:;t of an municipelity's net assets, elther bafore the contibulion octurs or et the ime of the
contribution; or

+  aformal agresment, In reletion to the contribution, sstablishing or Increasing an axiating financial Interest in the
ret assets of an municipality.

Transaction costa are Incremental coste that ars directly ettributable to the ecquiaition, lssue or disposal of a financial anset
or financial lisbility. An incremental cost Is ane that would not have been Incurred f the municipality had not acquired,
issued or disposed of the financlal instrument.

Financial Instrumenta at amortived cost are non-derivativa financial assets or nan-dsrivative finencial liabliities that have
fixed or determinsble payments, excluding those Inatruments that:

*  the municipaiity designates at falr vaiue at inftial recognition; or

¢ g hald for treding.

Finsncial Instruments st cost are Investments in residual interests thet do not have & quoted market price in an active
market, and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Financial Ir{n’l.i;lumants ut falr value comprise financial assets or financial llabflYes that wre:

. .

*  combined Instruments that are designated at falr valus;

*  Instruments heid for trading. A financial metrument s held for trading If
= KIs acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchaaing It in the near-tarm; or
= on Intial recognition It Is part of & portfalio of Identtfied financlal Instruments that are managed together and
for which there is avidance of a recant actusl pattem of short term profit-taking;
= non-denvative financial assets or financtal liabilites with fixsd or determinable payments that are
designated at fair value at inltial recognition; and
= financial instruments that do not mest the definitien of finenclal instruments at amortisad coat or financial
[natruments at cost.

|
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Wect Coast District Municipality
Annual Financiel Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Accounting Policles

1.2 Financlal inctruments (continued)
Claseification

The entity has the following types of financial assets (classss and category) as refiected on the face of the stlement of
financial position or In the notas thenats:

Class Category
Other trade receivables from non-exchange trenesactions Financlal asset meesuwrad ot fair value
Cash and cash squivalents Financial asset measured ot fair value
Trade recelvables from sxchange transactions Financial assat measured gt falr vaius

The municipality hes the following types of financial lisbilites (clesses and category) ec reflected on the face of the
statsment of financia! posliion or in the notes thereto:

Clazs Category
Trade and other psyables from exchange tratsactions Financial llabfity measured st fair value
Unepand conditional grants and raceipts Financial l'ability measured at falr vaiue
Long-erm lisbilties Financiaf lisbliity measured at amortized cost

Trade and other payablss are Inlally measursd at falr vajus pius transaction oosts that are directly sitribuied to the
aquisition and ana subsaquently measured st amortisad cost using ths sfiective intersst rate mathod.

Trade and other recelvables are Initially recognised at fair value plus transaction coet that directly attributed to the aquisition
and subssquently stated &t amertised cost, less provision for impuirment. This provision is based on & review of all
outstanding amouns at year end and is establised when thers Is objective evidence that the municipality will not be able to
oollect all amourts dus sccording to the originel terms. The amownt of the provision Is the effective interest rais, Bad debts
are written off during the yeer in which they ar kientified, Subsequent recoveries of amounte previcusly written off are
credited against tha relevani revenue stream in the statement of inancial periomarice,

Long-term financial liabilities are classHied as financial llabllties that are measured at amortised cost.

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and cash with banks. Cash squivalents are short-term highly Hiquki
investments thet ane held with registered banking insttutions and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in valus, Fer
the piurpose of the cash fiow statement, cash and cash squivelerts comprises of cash on hund, deposiis held on call with
banks, investments In financial instruments end net bank overdrafs. Bank overdrefis ere recomed basad on the facllity
utllised. Finance chgrges on bank overdraits are expensed as Incurred.

The municipalty recognises a financial saset or a financial liabllity in It statement of financial position when the municipality
becomas a parly to the contractusl provisions of the inatrument.

The municipality recognisas financlal asssts using frade date accounting.
inkial measuremant of financlal asscts and financial Rebllitiec

The municipality measures @ financlal asset and finanolal lfablitty Initially at its falr value plus transaction costs that are
dirsctly attributable o the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial Habliity.

mT""HM” measures & financial asset and financial Bability initlally st [ts fair value [f subsequently measured at fair

The municipality first assesses whether the subsiance of a concessionary loan is in fact a loan. On initial recognition, the
ertlty analyses a concessionary loan Into its component parts and accounts for sach component asparately. The entify
sctaunts for thet part of a concessionary loan thet le:
« @ social bensfit in sccordance with the Framework for the Preparaticn and Presentation of Financlal Stalements,
whare [ is the issuer of the loan; or
«  non-axchenge revenus, In accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchangs Transactions
(Taxes and Tranafers), where It is the reciplent of the loan.
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West Coast District Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Accounting Policies

1.9 Financhl Instruments (continued)
Subosquent messurament of financial assetc ond financis! llabilitiea

The municipality measures all financie! assats and financlal llablities after initial recognition using the following categories:
*  Finenclal Instruments at feir value.
*  Financial instruments at amortised cost.
¢ Financial insfruments at cost.

All financlel asssts measured at amortisad cosl, or cost, are subject to an impaiment review.
Falr value measursmsnt considerations

The best svidence oi fair value s quoted prices In an active market, If the tmarket for a financial Instnanent is not active, the
entiy establishes falr vaiue by using a valuation technique. The objective of using a valustion technique Is to establish what
the tranaaction price would have been on the measurement date in an arm's length exchangs motivated by nomal
operating considerations. Valustion techniques include using recent smm's length market transactions between
imowledgeable, willing parties, If available, reference to the current fair valus of ancther Instrument thet is substantiafly the
aame, discountad cash fiow snalysis and optien pricing medele. I there Is a valuation technigue commonly used by market
pecticipants to price the [natrument end that tachnique has beesn demonsirated to provide reflable eatimates of prices
ofteined In actual market transactions, the entity usss that technique. The chosen valuation techniqua makes maximum
use of markat Inpuis and relies as Iitile as posalble on entity-specific Inputs. It incorporates all factors that market
participants woukl consider in selting a price and Is consiatant with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financlal
instrumants. Periodically, an municipality callbrates the valiuation technique and tests It for validity using prices from any
cbservable current markst iransactions In the same Instrumant (l.e. without modification or rapackaging) or basad on sny
available obasrvable market data.

The falr valus of a financlal llability with @ demand feature (e.g. @ demand deposit} i not lass than the amount payable on
demand, discountad frem the first date that the amount could be required to be pald.

Shorttarm receivables and payables am not discounted whare the initial credit pariod granted or received Is conalatent with
tarms usad In the public sector, either through establised practices or legislation.

Reclassification

The municipality does not reciasalfy & financial instrument while it ks lssued or hald unlass It Is:
¢ combined Inatrument thet is required to be messured et fakr valus; or
*  aninvestment in & realdual intsrest that mests tha requirements for reciassification.

Where the municipality cannot rellably measure the fair value of an embedded darivative that has been separsted from a
hest contract that ia a financial instrument st & subseguent reporting date, It measures tha combined instrument at falr
vajue, This requires a reciassification of the Instrument from amortised cast or cost to falr value,

if falr value can no longer be messured rellably for an Investment h o residual Interest measured at falr value, the
municipality reclassifies the Investmant from feir vaiue to cost The carmrying amount at the date that fair value [8 no longer
avallable becomes the cost.

If a relfabie measure becomes avalleble for an Investment in a residual interest for which 8 measure was previously not
avaiable, and the instrument would have besn redquired to be measured at feir value, the entiy reclassifiea the instrument
from cost to fair value.

Gaine and losses

A gain or losa arising from a change in the falr valus of & financial assat or financial liabilty messured et fair value is
recognised In surplua or daficlt,

For financlal assets end financial llabllites measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss Is recognised In surplus or
deficlt when the financial anset or financlal liability Is derecognised or impaired, or through the amoriieation process.

impalrment and uncollectibiiity of financial cacats

The municipality assesues at the end of each reporting period whethar thare is any objective evidsnce thet a financial assst
or group of financial cssats Is impaired.
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Woest Coast District Municipality
Annge! Flnancigl Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Accounting Policies

1.9 Financlal inotruments {continued)
Financlal assste measured at amortisad coat

If there is cbjective svidence that an Impaiment loss on financial assets measured at amertised cost has been Incurred, the
amount of the loss la measured as the differance bstwasn the assst's canying amount and the present value of estimated
fulure cash flows {axcluding future cradit losses that have not been incurred) discountsd at the financial asset's original
effactive Interest rate, Tha sarrying amount of the asssi Is reduced dirsctly OR through the use of an aflowanca sccount
The amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or defiscit.

i, in & subsequent period, the amount of the Impalrment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event otcurring after the impalrment was recognised, the previously recognised impairmant loss Is reversed directly OR by
adjusting an allowance account The revarsal does not nasult in a earrying amount of the financial asset that axoceeds what
the amortised cost would have been had the impalrment not basn recognised at the date the impairmant is revarsed. The
amount of ihe revarsal is recognisad In surpius or deficlt.

Financisl assets measured at cost

If thers s cbjective evidence that an impairment loss has keen incurred on an Investment in a reskiual Intarest that is not
mensired at falr value because Its fair value cannot be measured rellably, the amount of the impairmert loss Is measured
as the differance batwean the camying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted af the cument market rate of retum for a cimilar finenclal aaset. Such Impalrment losses are not revensed.
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West Coast District Municlpality
Armnual Financlal Statemants for the year ended 30 June 2016

Accounting Policias

18 Financlal Instruntonts {continusd)
Derscognition

Finencial asssts
The municipality derecognises financial esssts using trade date accounting.

Ths municipality dersoognises & financial asast only when:

+  the contractual rights o the cash flows from the finencial assst axpire, are settfed or walved;

»  the municipality transfars to ancther party substartially all of the risks and rewsards of ownership of the financial
ssset; or

s the municipality, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of cwnership of the financial asset,
has transferred conirol of the assat to another party and the other party has the practical sbility to sell the asest
in fis mntirety to an unrelated third party, nd is able to exerciss that ability unilaterally and without naading to
Impose additional resinictions on the transfer. In this caes, the municipality :
= demecogniss tha asset; and
- recognise ssparately any rights and obligetions created or retained In the transfer.

The carrying amounts of the transfermed asest are allucated betwsan the rights or obligations retained and those transferred
on the baals of their reletive fair valuss at the transfer date. Newly craatad rights anc obligetions are measured &t their fair
values at that dute. Any diffsrence betwesn the consideration recelvad and the amounts recognisad ahd derscognised is
recognised in surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer.

If the municipallty trsnsfers & financial assef In a tranefer that quefifies for darecognitien in its antirety and ratains the right to
sarvica the financial asset for a fea, It recognise sither m servicing nsset or a sarvicing llabllity for that servicing contract. If
the fee to be received ls not expected to compensate the entity adequately for parforming the servicing, a servicing llabllity
for the sarvieing obligstion is recognisad at ds fair value. i the fee to be recelved is expacted 1o ba more than adeguate
compensation for the ssrvicing, a servicing asset Is recognised for the servicing right at an amount determined on the basis
of an sliocation of the camrying emount of the larger financlal 2sset

If, a» m result of & irensfar, a financial asset is derecognised in s entirsty but the trensfer results in the entiy obtalning a
new financial asast or assuming a new financial Jabillty, or a servicing llablity, tha entity racognise the new financlel asset,
{inancial Bability or serviging Lability et fair vaiue,

On derscognition of a financlal asset In le sntirely, the differenca betwaan the carrying amount and the sum of the
conskierstion recelved Is recognised In surplus or deficit.

if the transfarred asset [s part of a larger financial asset and the part transferred qualifies for derecognition In ita entirety, the
previaus carrying amount of the larger financial assat is allocated betwasn the part that continues to be racagnised and the
part that s derecogrised, basad on the relativa falr values of those parts, on the date of the tranafer. For this purposs, &
retained servicing msset Is treated as a part that continues 1o be recognieed. The difference between the carrying amount
aliocated to.tgda pari derscognised and tha sum of the consideration received far the part derecognised Is recognised in
aurplus or deficit.

If & trannfer doss not result In derecognition because the municipality hes retained substantially all the riske and rewards of
ownership of the transferred asset, the municipality continues to recogniss the trensferred asset In ils entirety snd
recognise a financial llabillty for the consideration receved. In subsequent pericds, the municipallty recognises any revenue
on the transferred asset and any expense incurnad on the financial liabliity. Nelther the asast, and the assoclated liabllity nor
the ravenua, and the associated expenses are offast.

Finanelal liabilities

The municipality removes a financial liability (or & part of a financlal liability) from fia statament of financial pesition when It ls
extingulshed — 1.8, when the obligation spacifiad In tha conimact Is discharged, cancelled, axpires or waived.

An exehange batween an axisting borrower and lander of debt Instruments with substantially differant terms ls accounted
for es having extinguished the ofiginal financial llabifty and & new financlal llability Is recognisad, Simllarly, a substantis)
modification of the terms of an sxisting finencisl Febility or @ part of It Is accounted for as having extinguished the original
financia! llablity and having recognised a new financial llability.




West Coact District Municipality
Annual Financisl Statemsnts for the year anded 30 June 2018

Accountlng Policles

1.9 Fincnclal Inotrumento (continued)

The difference butween the carrying amount of & financial liablity (or part of a financial labliity) extinguished or transferred
10 another party and the considerstion paid, Including eny non-cash asssts tranafarred or llabliitiea assumed, is recognised
in surplus or deficit. Any liabilities that ars waived, forghmn or assumed another municipality by wey of & non-exchange
transaction are accounted for in accordance with the Standard of G on Revanua from Non-exchange Transactions
(Texaz and Transfom).

Prasentation

Intaraet relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financlal isbilty is recognisad BB revenus or m@enss In
surphus or deflclit

Dividands or similar distributions relating t¢ & financiel Instrument or a compenent that I a financlel Habllity i recognised as
ravenue or axpensa in surplus or deficit. ’

Lossss and gaine relating to a finanoisl Instrumsnt or & component that is & financial llabiity Is recognised as revenus or
axpense In surplus or deficht.

Distributions to holders of residual Interests are recognised by the municipality diractly In net assets. Tranesction cosita
Incurred on residual interests are accounted for ¢ @ deduction from net aseets. income tax [whare applicable] relating to
distributions to hoidars of residual interests and to transaction coats Incurmed on residual intereats are accounted for in
socordance with the International Aocounting Standard on Income Taxes.

A financial asset and a finanslal liabllity are only offset and the net amount presentad In the statement of financial position
when the ertity curently has a legally enforcesble right to sst off the recognised amounts and Intends aither to satile on &
net basls, or it realles the aseet and settie the Hability simultanscusly.

1n accounting for m transfer of a financial asset that doas not quallfy for derscognition, the municipality does not offaat the
fransferred asset and the nasooleted llabillty.

1.10 Value oddad fax

The municipality accounts for Value Added Tax (VAT) on a cash besis. The municipality e llable t> account for VAT at the
standard rate {15%) in terms of section 7 (1) (a) of the VAT Act, In respect of the supply of goods ot services except wherne
the supplies are spacifically zero - ratad In terms of saction 11, exempted In terms of saction 12 of the VAT Act or out of
scopae for VAT purpeses, Tha timing of peyments to / from the South Afrlcan Revenue Sarvice Is on the fwenty fifth day of
each of the twelve monthe of the financial year.

1.11 Leasac

A isate is clausified a8 & finance lsass [f it trarafers substantially all the risks and rewards incldentsl to ownaership. A jsase
Is classified as an oparating lease ¥ It doea not tranafer substantiely afl the risks and rewsrde Incidental 4o ownarship.

When & lesse Includes both land and bulkdings elements, the entity assesses the classification of sech element separately.
Finance loassa - lossor

The municipality recognises finance isass recelvables as assets on the statement of financial position. Such esssts are
presented as n recsivable at an amount squal io the net investment in the leaee.

Finance revenue I8 recognised based on a pattern reflacting & constant periodic rate of retumn on the municipality’s net
Invesiment In the finance lease.
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West Coast District Municipality
Annuel Financial Statements for the yeur ended 30 June 2018

Accounting Policies

1.11 Lsases (continued)

Finance [saces « lsusee

Finance (sasas are recognissd as asseta and liabiities In the atatement of financlal position at amounts equal to the fair
value of the leasad property or, If lower, the present valus of the minimum lease payments. The comesponding liabliity to
the lessor Is included In the statsment of financinl position #s a finance laase obligation.

The discount rate used in calculating the present velue of the minimum leass peyments is the 8.5%..

Minimum lesse payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding Hability, The
finance charge s aliccated to each pariod during the lsase term ac as fo producs a constant periodic rate of en the
remalning belancs of the labllity.

Any contingent rents are expensed in the periad in which they are Incumed,

Operating leasss - lsasor

Opersting isase revenue is recognissd as revanue on a straightdine basls over the [sass tarm. The differencs batween tha
Emounts recognisad as revenus and the contraciusl recsipts are recognised as an operating lease asast or liabilty.

Inttlal direct costs incurred In nog-oﬂnﬁng and amanging operating loases are added to the camying amount of the lsased
asset and recognised as an expenae over the |ease term on the same basis as ths lsass revenue,

The aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a raduction of rental reyenue over tha lease term on a straight-line basls.
Incoms for laases s disciosed under revanue in statemaent of financlal parformanca.

Operating lsases - leanse

DUWeOR 16 &L POCCUAIRM % o SxpOTBe G D s B Lo e o e The dfronce
or liabilty.

1.12 Inventoriss

inventories are initially mensured st coat excapt whers Inventories are acquired through @ non-exchange transaction, then
thelr costs are thelr fair valus as at the date of acquisition,

Subzequently Inventories are measured af the lower of cost and net realisable valua.
Inveniories sre measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for;
¢ distribution at ne eharge or for & nominel charge; or
= consumption in the production procoss of gands to be distributsd st no chargs or for a nominal charye.

Net realisable valus is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of oparations less the estimated costs of
compistion end the estmated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution.

Gurrent replucement cont Is the cost the municipalty incurs to acquire the asset on the reporting dats,

Tha cost ¢f Inventories compriees of ell costs of purchase, costa of convemsicn and other costs incurred In bringing the
Inventories to their present location and condition,

The cost of inveniories of items that are not ordinarlly intsrchangsabla and goods or services produced and segregated for
spacific projects Is assigned using specific identification of the Individual costs.

The cost of inventories ls essigned using the welghted average cost formula. The same cost formula is used for all
inventories having a similar nature and use to the municipality.
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West Coast Dictrict Municipality
Annual Financial Statemants for the year ended 30 June 2018

Accounting Policiea

1.12 Inventoricn (continued}

When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of thase inventories are recognised as an sxpense in the perlod in which
the reisted revenue is recognised. If there It no reiatsd revenus, the expenses are recognisad when the goods are
cisiributed, of related services are rendersd, The amount of any write-down of Inventeries to nat realiseble vaiue or current
replacamernt cost and all lossas of inveniories are racognised as an axpanss in the parcd the write-down or loss oocurs.
The amount of any reversal of any wiite-down of inventories, areing from an increase in net realisable value or cuent
replacamert cost, sre recognised as a reduction In the ameunt of Inventories recagnised as en expense in the period in
which the reversal oceurs.

Water Inventory represents watar housed in dams within the municipal ares and is measured at the lowar of cost, which Is
desmed to be fair value, and net realisable valus. In the absence of & market that trades In water oulside of iocal
government the falr value utllised to quantify water inventory (s based on the unk refsrance value. The unit refarence value
is determinad by & formula that Ia utilised in the engineering department to calculate the development cost of new water
rOSOUTCES.

The wuter levels In the dams ane based on cublc mater capacity taking into account the capacity of the dam, based oh land
surveying reports and the curve of the dam. Readings of water levels are taken at year-snd, which ls quantified st the above
fair valus. Water and purified sffiuent are meesured at tha jower of purified cost and net resisable valus insofar as It is
stored and oontrolled In reservoirs at year-snd.

1.13 Impalrment of cash-generating sooets

Cash-generating asasts are assata managed with the objective of genarating a commerciai retum. An asset that genersies
a commercial retum means that positive cash flows are expectsd to be aignificantly higher than the cost of the asset.

impairmant is a lose In the future aconomic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic
recognition of the loss of the asset's future sconomic benafits or service potential through depreciation (amertisation).

Carrying amount is the amount st which an assst ls recognissd In tha statement of financial position after deduciing any
sccumulated depreclation and sceumulated impaiment lesses thereon.

A cash-generating unit is the smallest kisntfiable group of assets used with the objective of psnerating a commerclal return
thet ga:fmmm infiowa from contiming use thet are largely independant of the cash Inflows from other saseis or
groups !

gﬂl of disposal are incrsmental costs directly atiributable ic the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income
expenas.

Depreclation {Amortisation) is the systsmatic aliocation of the depreciabla amount of an assst over its useful ife.

Fair value less cosls o asll la the amount obtainable from the sale of en aasat in an arm'a length transsction betwean
kmowladgesable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.

Recoverable amount of an asset or @ cash-generating unit ls the higher its fair vaiue less costs to sell and its value in use.

Usalul life I3 alther:
»  the period of time ovat which an ssset is expeated to be ussd by the municipadity; or
* the number of production or similar units expected to be obtainad from the asset by the municipallty.

kientification
Whan the carrying amount of a cash-genaniiing asset exoaads Its recoverabie amount, It ls inpaired.

The municipallty assesses at ench reporiing daie whether there is any Indication that a cash-genersting assst mey be
Impalred. If any such indication exdsts, the municipality estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

Imsapective of whethsr there is any Indlcation of impairment, the municipaiity also tssts & cash-generating Intangiole asset
with an indefinite ussiul Ife or a cosh-genersting Intangible asset not yet aveliable for use for impalrment annuelly by
comparing ks carrying smount with lts recoversbie emount. This impairment test is performed st the same time every year.
If an Intanglble awsat was infally recognissd during the current reporiing period, that intangible asset wae testod for
impairrment befora the end of tha current reporting period.
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West Coast District Municlpality
Annual Financial Stataments for the yesr anded 30 Jure 2018

Accounting Policles

1.13 impairment of cash-generating asseto (continued)
Basle for satimates of future cash flowe

n maasuring value In use the municipality:

*  baee cash flow projactions on reasonable and supportable assumptions that represent manegement's bast
eatimats of the range of economic conditions that will sxist over the remaining usaful life of the asset Greater
weight Is ghven to external avidencs,

*  basa cash flow projections on the most recent approved financlal budgetsforscasts, but excludes any estimated
future cash inflows or outflows axpected to ariss from future restructuring's or from improving or enhancing the
asset's parformance. Projections based on these budgetsforecasts covers a maximum pariod of fiva ysars,
unless e longer period can be justified, and

+  estimaie cash fiow projections bayand the pariod covered by the most recent budgsta/forecasts by extrapolating
the projections basad on tha budgatsiforecasts using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years,
unlass an incraesing rate can be justified. Thie growth raie does not excesd the long-term average growth rate
for the products, Industries, or cauntry or countries in which the entity cperates, or for the market in which the
assat is usad, unless a higher rate can be justifiad,

Composition of sstimates of futire cash fiows

Esﬁmntes of future cash fiows include:
projactions of cagh inflows from the cortinuing use of the aesst;

*  projections of cash outfiows that are necessarlly incuimed to generate tha cash Inflows fram continuing use of the
asust {including cash outfiows io prepare the asset for use) and can be directy atinbuted, or allocaled ona
ressonable and conaistent besls, (o the eseet. and

*  netcash flows. I any, to b recalved (or paid) for the disposal of the asset st the end of its useful life.

Estimaies of future cash flows exclude:
s cash inflows or outfiows from financing activities, and
*  income tax receipts or payments.

The estimate of net cash flows to be mceived (or paid) for the disposal of an assst at the end of s usaful life is the amount
that the municipalily expects to obtaln from the disposal of the asset In an arm's length franeaction between knowiedgeable,
willing parties, after deducting the astimated costs of disposal.

Racognition and measurement (Individual ssset)

If the recoverabie emount of a cash-gensrating esset ie less than Its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recovsrable amount. This reduction is an Impalment loss.

An impaiment loss is recognised Immadiataly in surplus or deficlt
Any impairment losa of a revaluad cash-genersting seset is treated a8 a revalustion decreass.

When the amount esfimated for an impaiment [oss s preater than the camying amount of tha cash-generating asael fo
which It relatos, the municipality recognises a liabilly only to the exisnt that s & requirsment In the Standard of GRAP,

Afer the recegnition of mn impairment ioss, the depreclation (amortisation) cherge for the cash-generating asset is adjusted
In future periocds to ellocats the cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, lese lts residual value (if any), on &
systematic basis over its remalning useful life.
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Waest Coast District Municlpality
Annueal Financial Stataments for the year anded 30 June 2018

Accounting Policles

1.13 impalrment of cash-gonorating sseei: (continued}
Cach-gensrating units

H there Is any Indicadfon that an asset may ba impalred, the racoverabls amount Is estimated for the Individuat asset. Ifitis
not possible to estimate the recoverabls amount of the individusal asaet, the municipulity determines the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit 1o which the asset belongs (the asset’s cash-ganarating unif).

If an active markst axists for the output produced by an asset or group of asasts, that asset or group of assets s klentifled
88 & cash-generating unft, aven if some or &l of the output i used Intarnally. If the cash Inflows gensrated by any asset or
cash-generating unit sre affected by intemal tranefer pricing, the municipallty uee managemant's best estimate of future
prica(s) that could be achleved in am's length transactions in estimeting:
*  the future cash Inflows used to detarmine the eeset's or cash-generating unit's valus in uss; and
*  the fulure cash outfiows usad fo determine the valus in use of any other assets or cash-generating units that ars
effectad by the Intarnal transfer pricing.

Cash-generating unite are identifisd consistently from period to period for the same assat or types of assets, uniasa &
change [e justified.

The carrying amount of a cash-generating unit Is determined on a basls consistent with the way the recaverable amount of
the caah-genarating unit Is determined.

An impairment losa Is recognieed for a cesh-ganerating unit If the recoverable amount of the unit is less than the carrying
wmokrt of the unit. The Impalrment is aliocatad to raduce the curying amount of the cash-genamiing assets of the unit on a
pro rata basie, basad on the cammying amount of aach asast In the unit. These reductions in carrying amounis are treated as
Impaimnant ipsaes on individual assats,

In allocating an Impaimant |oss, tha entity does rict reduce the carrying amount of sn asssi balow the highsst of:
+  liu falr vaius lsss costs to sell (If detarminable);
* lts vaius in use {if determinable); and
*  Zero.

The amounit of the impainment ks that would otherwise have bean allocated fo the asset Is allocated pro rata to the other
cash-generating asssis of the unit

Where a nor-cash-generaling asaat contrbutes o a cash-ganerating unit, a proporiion ¢f the caimying amount of that non-
cmshi-generating maset s aliocated to the camying smount of the cash-ganerating unit prior to sstimation of the recoversble
amount of the cash-genarating unit.
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West Coast District Municipality
Annusl Financial Stetemenis for the year endad 30 Juna 2018

Accounting Policles

1.13 Impairmont of cach-generating assets {continued)
Reversal of impalrment lose

The municipally asssssss at each reporting date whathwer there v sny Indication that an impakrment loss recognised In prior
periods for a cash-generating asset may no longsr axist or may have decrsssed. If any such indication exists, the antity
estimates the recoverable amount of that asset

An impairment loss recognised in prior patiods for @ cash-generating assst Is revarsed If there has been a change In the
estimates used to detarmine the asset's racoverable amount since the last impairment iass was recogniged. The camying
amount of the asset s Increasad to Iis racoverable amount. The increase is a reveraal of an impairmant loss. Tho increased
carrying amourt of an asset attributable to & reversel of an impairment loss does not exceed the camying amount that wold
hmoren determined (net of depreciation or amortisstion) had no impalrment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
panoas,

A reversal of an impslrmant [oss for a cash-generating assst is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit
Any raversal of an Impaiment loss of & revalued cash-generating aesef is treated as a revaluation increase.

After a reversal of an impalrment losa is recognisad, the depreciation (amertisation) charge for the cash-gensrating asset [s
adjusted in future perods to aliocate the cash-generating asset's nevissd carying amount, less Its residual value {if ahy), on
n systamatiic basis over lts remalning useful life.

A reversal of an impaimmaent loss for & cash-generating unit is allocated to the cash-gancrating assets of the unkt pro rata
wih the canying amounts of those assets. These increases in camying amounts are freated as reversals of impairment
lossas for individual ssseis. No part of the amount of such a reversel is aflocated to a non-cash-gecerating aseet
contributing service potential to a cash-generating unit.
In altoceting & reversal of an Impairment loss for & cash-gensrating unit, the carrying amount of an asset Is not incraseed
abovs the lower of:

»  itw recoverable amount (if detarminable); and

*  the canying amount that would have been determined {net of amoriieation or depreciation} had ne iImpainment

josa been recogniesd for the asest in prior perieds.

The amount of the reversal of the impalment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the saset is allocated pre
rata o the other sssets of the unit.

Redosignation

The rodesignation of sssets from & cash-genersting asset to & non-cash-generating asset or from a non-cash-generating
asset o a cash-generating assat cnly occur when thers s clear evidenca that such a redesignation [s eppropriate.

1.14 Impaiment of non-cash-generating assets
Non-cash-genarating aasets ars asssts other than cash-genarating asssts.

Impalmment Is & loss In the futune economic beneflts or service potentiel of an asset, over and above the sysiematic
recognition of the loas of the asset's future aconomic benefits or service potential through deprectation {amortisation).

Canylng amount Is the amount at which an assei is racognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any
accumulsted depreciation and sccumulatad impairment losses thereon,

A cosh-generating unit I¢ the smallaat identifiable group of assets managed with the objective of psnersting & commarcial
ratim thsrvt generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely indspendant of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of aasets.

Coste of disposs] are Incremantal costs directly stiributable to the disposal of an aaset, exduding finance costs and income
tax sxpense,

Dapraclation (Amortisation) is the systemetic allocation of tha depraclable amount of ah asset over lis useful kfe.

Felr value less costs io sell is the emount obteinable from the sale of an eesel In an srm's length transaction between
knowladgeabte, willing parties, iass the costs of disposal.

ey

P

28 -1t- 29

AWITRTETY ~ 0707 7T
35 ELCREMW TR L NED

e M i s




West Coast District Municipality
Annus] Financlal Statemants for the year andad 30 Juns 2018

Accounting Policles

1.14 Impalment of non-cash-generating ascets (continucd)
Recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating ssset's fair value lass costs fo sell and Its valua in use.
Uselul Iife Is sither:

* the period of ime over which an asest Is expectad io be used by the municipallty; or

¢ the number of production or similar units expeciad to be obtained from the esset by the municipality.
Idontificztion
When the carrying amount of a non-cash-gansrating asset excasds its recovarable service amaunt, it is impalred.

The munioipality assesses at each reporting dete whether there Is eny Indication that & non-cash-generating asset may be
Impaired. If any such indication sxsts, the municppality estimates the recoverabls sarvice emount of the saset.

Imeapective of whether thers Ia any Indication of impairment, the entity alec tests & nan-cash-gensrating Intangiblo asset
with an Indefinlie useful i or a non-cash-ganerating intangible seset not yot evallabla for Lse for impairmment annually by
comparing ks carrying amount with ts recoverable service smount. This impairment test is performed at the same ime
svery year. If an Intangible asset was Infifaily recognised during the current reparting petiod, that Intangible assst was
twsted for Impaimnent before the enc of the current reporting period.

Recognition and measurement

if tha racoverable service mmount of a non-cash-generating sset [s leas than s canrylng amount, the canrying emount of
the assst is reducad to lts recoverable service amount. This reduction is an impairment loss.

An impainmant loas is recognisad immadiately in surplus or defieit
Any Impalrment loas of a revaiued non-cash-genarating asset is ireated as a mvelustion decrease.

¥vhen the amouni estimated for an Impaimment icas ks greater than the carrying amount of the non-cesh-generating assat io
which it relates, the municipality recognisea a lebility only to the extent that is a reguirement in tha Standards of GRAP.

After the recognition of an Impaiment lass, the depreciation {amortisation} charge for the non-cash-generating azset Is
sdjusted in future periods t> allccate the non-cash-generating nsset's revised canying smount, less its resikdual valus (f
any), on a systematic basie over s rsmaining usefu! iife.

Roversal of an impairment loas

The municipafity assesses st each reporting date whether there is any indlcation that an impairment loss recognised in prior
pericds for & non-cash-pansrating asset may no Jonger exist or may have decrsased. If any such Indication exsts, the
municipality estimates the recoverable servics smount of that asset.

An Impalrment loss recognisad [n prior parieds for & non-cash-gensrating asset is roversed if thare has besn & changs In
the estimates used to detarmine the assat's recovershia servica amount since the |ast Impaiment loss was recognised.
The camying amount of tha asset ia Increased to its recoversble service amount The intiease (8 & reversal of an
impalment les. The mcreased ocamying amount of an ssset atiributable to & reversal of an Impairment lcsa does not
exoeet the amTtying ameunt that would have besn determined (net of depraciation or amortisation) had no impaimant kes
been recognisad for the asast in prior pariods.

A rgverss] of an impalrment loss for & non-cash-generating escet ls recopnised immedietely In surplus or deficit.

Any reversal of an Impairment loss of & revaiusd non-cash-genareting asset |s treated as a revaluation Increass.

After & reversal of an impeiment loss is recognised, the depreciation [amortisation) charge for the non-cash-genarating
asast is adjusted In futurs periods to sllocste the non-cash-generating acsel's mvised carrying amount, less fts residual
valus {if any), on & systsmadtic basis over its ramaining useful lifa.

Redecignation

The radesignation of assets from & cash-gensrating asset o a non-cash-ganerating asset or from a non-cash-gensrating
mssat to & cash-gensraiing esaet enly occur when there Is olear svidencs that such a redesignation Is appropriate.
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West Coast District Municipality
Annual Financial Stataments for the yesr ended 30 June 2018

Accounting Policles

1,15 Employae bensfiis
Emplayee banefits are all forms of conaideration given by an municipality In exchange for service rendered by employees.

A qualitying Insurance policy is an insurance policy lssued by an insurer that is not a related parly (as defined In the
Standard of GRAP on Related Party Discioaures) of the reporting municipelity, If the procesds of the policy can be used
only to pay o fund employes benefits under a defined benefit plan and are not avallable to the reporiing municipality’s own
creditors {even In fquidation) and cannot be pald to the reporting municipalily, unless elther:
. m&groeuds represent surplus assets that are not neaded for the policy to meet all the releted employes benefit
obfigations; or
«  the procasds are retumed to the reporting municipality to reimburse it for employes banefits already paid.

Tairmination banefits are smployee banefits payable as a resuli of either:
s  anmunicipality’s decision fo terminate an employes’s employment before the nomial retirement date; or
¢ anemployes's decision to accapt voluntary redundancy In exchange for those benefits.

Other long-tarm employee benetits are employes baneflis (other than post-employment benafits and termination benafits)
ﬂl‘:r:ﬂ ane not due to be settied within twelve months aftsr the end of the period In which the smployees render the releted
es.

vested employee bensfits are employee beneliis that are not conditional on futune employmant.

Composite social ascurity programmes are established by legisiation and cperate as mult-ampiayer plans to provide post-
mpgm.;m benefits s well a8 to provide banefita that gre not consideration In exchange for service rendered ky
emp R

A constructive obligation i an cbligation that derives from an municipality's actions where by an established paitern of past
practics, published policies or a sufficiently spacific current steterment, tha municipality has indicated to other parties that it
will accept cartain responaibilities and as a resutt, the municipality hes creatad a valid expectation on the part of those other
parties that it will discharge those rasponsibllities.

Short-term employea benefits

Shori4em employes benefits are employes benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be seftied within
twelve months after the end of the period In which the smployees render the related sarvice.

Short-term smployse benefits Include ems such as:

*  wages, selaries and sodlal seourity contributions;

«  shori-term compensated abeences (such as paid annual lexve and pald sick leave) where the compansation for
the absences is dus 1o bs settied within twelve menthe aftar the end of the reporting period In which the
employess render the related employes serice;

s benus, incantive and performance related payments payable within twelve monthe after the erd of the reporting
period In which the ampiloyses render the related sarvice; and

+  non-monatary benefits (for axample, medical care, and frea or subsidised goods or services such as housing,
cars and celiphones) for curment smployess.

When an emplayee has rendered service to the entity during & reporiing period, the sntity recognise the undiscounted
amount of short-term employee benefits expected ta ba pald in axchange for that service:

« as g llablity (accrued sxpense), after deducting any amount aiready paid. if the amount already paid exceeds the
undiscounted amount of the benefits, the municipality recognise that axcess es an asset (prepaid axpenss) to
the extent that the prepayment wili isad to, for example, & reduction In futurs payments or a cash refund, and

+  ms AN axpense, unlees ancther Standard requires or pammits the Inclusion of the banefits in the cost of an asset.

The expected cost of compensatad abasnces is recognised us en axpense as the employees render services that increase
thelr entilement or, In the case of non-accumulating abssnces, when the abaance occurs. The municipallly measures the
expected cost of accumulating compensated sbsences as the additional amount that the entity expects fo pay &8 & result of
the unused sntiisment that has accumulated et the reporiing date.

The entity recognise the expacted cost of bonus, incentive and performancs related payments when the municipallty has &
present legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and @ reliable estimats of the
obligation can be made. A present obligation axists when the entity has no reallstic alternative but to malm the payments,
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Waest Coast District Municipality
Arnuat Financial Statsmaents for the yeer snded 30 June 2016

Accounting Policles

1.16 Employae benefii= {continuod)
Poot-smployment benefits

Poni-mpl:ytmont banafiie are amployes berefis (other then termination banefits) which are paysble after the complotion of
ampbyma

Post-employmant benefit plans are farmal or Informal arrangemends under which an municipality provides poet-employmant
benafits for one or mon employees.

Mult-employer pians are defined cantribution plans (cther then state plans and sompostie social seourity programmes) or
delned benaflt plans (other then state plans) that pool the assats contributed by various sntities that are not under common
controf and use those sasets fo pravide bansfite to employess of more than one antity, on the besls that conbibution and
benefit lsvels are datermined without regard to the identity of the entity that employs the employess conoamed,
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West Coast District Municlpality
Annusl Financlel Statemants for the year snded 30 June 2018

Accounting Policles

155 Employss bensfits {continuad)
Poat-smployment benefits: Defined benefit plans
Defined banefit plans are post-employment benefit plana other than defined contribution plans.

Actuadal gains and Jossas comprise experience adjustments (the affects of differences betwsen the previous actuaria]
sssumnptions end what has actuelly occurmed} and the affecta of changes in ectuerial assumptions. In measuring lis defined
benefit llabliity the municipality recognise actuaria! gains and losees In surplus or deficit In the reporting peried in which they
ocour,

Assaets held by a long-ierm employee benefit fund are assets (cther than non-trensferable finencial Instruments issued by
the reporting municipaity) that are held by an municipaiiy (& fund) that ie legelly separate from the reporting municipality
ond exists solaly to pay or fund empioyss benefits and are avaliable to be used only to pay or fund employes beneflis, are
not avallable fo the reporting municipality's own creditors {sven in liguidetion), and cannot be retumed to the raporting
municipakity, unless either:

¢ tha ramalning assats of the fund are sufficlant to mast all the related amployes banefit obligations of the plan or

the reporting municipakty; or
*  {he assels mre ratumed to the reporting municipaily {o reimbursas it for employes benafits aiready pald.

Currant servios cost is the increase in the present value of the definad beneflt obligation resulting from employes servies in
the current perlod.

Interest cost is the increase during a paricd in the present value of a defined benefit sbiigation which arlses because the
benefits are one period closar to settiement,

Past service cost is the changs in the present valus of the dafinad benefit abligetion for amployee service In prier pariods,
rasuiting in the cument paried from the introcuction of, or changes tc, post-amploymant banefits or other long-term
empioyes benefits, Past sarvice cost may be either positive (when benefits e introduced or chanped a0 thal the pregent
vaius of the defined benefit obligation Increases) or nagative (whan existing benefits are changed so that the present value
of the defined benefit obligation decreasas). In maasuring its defined benefit liabillty the antity recognise past sarvice cost
B8 an expense In the reporting period [n which tha plan is amended.

Plan assats compriss essets held by & long-term employee bensfit fund end qualifying inaurancs policies,

The present value of a defined benefit obligation Is the pressnt value, without deducting any plan assets, of expectsd future
paymants required to sattle the obligation resulting from smployes service in the current and prior paricds.

The retum on plan sssets s interest, dividends or simifar distributions and other revenus derived from the plen asssts,

together with realisad and unreafised gains or josses on the plan assets, less any ¢osts of wdministering the pian (other

&l&! ﬂl;ile llﬁlfm In the ectuanal essumptions used to measure the defined benefit obligation) and less any tax payable
n 3

The municipality account not only for its legal obligation under the formal terme of a defined benefit plan, but alse for any
conatruciive obligation that arses from the municipallty’s Informal practices. informal practices give rise to a constructive
obligation whare the municipality has no realistic atternetive but to pay smployes banefite. An exampie of a constructive
obligation is whare a chenge In the municipality's Informal practices would cause unaccapisble damage to lis relationship

with employess,

The amount recognised as & defined benefit llability Is the net total of the following amounts:
*  the presat value of the definad banefit obligation at the reporting date;
¢ minus the fair value at the reporting date of plan assets (If any) out of which the oblizaticns sre to ba sattled

directly;
*  plus any llabitty that muy arise as x result of 8 minimum funding requirement

The ameunt detarmined as a defined benefit labilty may be negative {(an assef). The municipality measures the resulting
assat at the lower of:
¢ the ameunt datermined above; and .
*  the prasent value of any scenomic benefits avallable In the form of refunds from tha plan or neductions In future
coniributions 1o the plan. Tha present value of these aconomic benefits Is datermined using a discount rate which
reflects the firne value of money.

Any adjustments arsing from the limit above is recognisad in surplus or deficlt.
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West Coast Diatrict Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the yaar ended 30 June 2018

Accounting Follcles

1.18 Employos benafitc (continued)

The municipality determines the present value of defined bensfit obligations and the fair value of any plan assete with
sufficlent regularity such that the amounts recognissd in the annusl financial siatements do not differ materially from the
amounts that would bo deferminsd &t the reporting date,

The munlcipafity recognises the net total of the following amounts in surplus or deficit, except to the exient that another
Standard requires or permita their inclusion in the cost of an aesst:

current earvice cost;

interest coat;

the expected return on any pian assete and on any reimbursement rights;

actuarial gaine and lossas;

past sarvice cost;

tha affect of any curigilments or setiemants; and

the effect of applying the limit on a defined benefit assst (negative defined bensfit Rebilty).

The municipallty uses the Projectsd Unit Credit Method to datermine the present valus of its defined banefit obligationa and

tha relatad current servics cost and, where applicabls, past sarvice cost The Pryjected Unit Credit Method (sometimes

known as the acorued banefit method pro-reted on service or as the benefii/years of service method) sees each period of

m as giving rise o an acditional unlt of benefit entifement and measures each unit separately to bulld up the final
n,

- = * 0 & n =

In determining the present valus of Itz defined banefit obligations and the releted cument service cost and, where
applicable, past servios coat, an municipality shall atirbute benefit to pariods of servioe under the plan‘s benefit formula.
However, if an amployea's garvics In ater years will lead 1o & materially higher level of benafit than In earlier years, an entlty
‘shall aftribute benefit on & atraighi-ine basis from:
+  the date when service by the employse first laads o banefits under the plan {whathar or not the banefits are
condifional on further service); uniil
¢ the date when further service by the employes will lsad to no material ameunt of further benefits under the plan,
other than from further salary Incremses.

Actuarial valuations are conductad on an annual basis by indepandent actuaries separately for each plan. The resulis of the
valuation are updated for any material iransactions and other matarial changes In circumatances {including changes in
market prices and intarest rates) up to the reporting date.

Tha municipelity recogriisea gains or josses on the ourtaliment or ssttisment of a defined benefit plan whan the curtaliment
of selflermnent occura. The gain or loss on & curlallment or settiement comprises:
any mpeniting changa In the pressnt value of the dsfinad bensfit obligation; and
= any resulting change in the fair value of the plan asaets.

Before detarmining the effect of & curtaliment or seitisment, the municipality re-measurs the obligation {arwi the releted plan
aseats, If any) uaing ourrent actuerie’ sssumptions (inoluding current market Inieraat rates and other current markat pricas).

When lt ls virtually certain that another party will neimburse soms or all of the expendiiure required fo saitie a defined banefit
obligstion, the right to relmbursement le recognieed e a ssparate asset, The ssst s measured at fair value, In el other

. the asset Is reated In the same way as plan assets. In surpius or deficlt, the xpanse relating to a defined benefit
plan is [OR ia net] presented as the net of the amount recogniesd for & reimbursement.

The municipality offests an seset relating to one plan against a Bebility relating 4o snother plan when the municipality has a
legally enforceabla right f usa & surplus In one plan to settle cbligations under the othar plan and Intends efther to esttle
the obligations on & net basls, or to ramlise the sumplus In one plan and seltie its obligation under the other plan
simulteracusly.
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West Coast District Municipality
Annual Financial Staternents for the ysar anded 30 Juna 2018

Accounting Policies

1.16 Employes banefite {continued)
Actuarial assumptions
Actuariul assumptions sre unbiased and mutually compatible.

Flr:lnclal assumplions are based on market expeciations, ot the reporting date, for the pariod over which the obligations are
1o be eatiied,

The rale used to discount post-employment banafit obligations (bath funded and unfunded) reflact the time value of money.
The curency and termm of the financlal Instrument selected to reflect the time value of manay is consistent with the currency
and astimatad term of the post-employment benefit cbllgations.

Poli—unployment benafit obligations are measured on & basis that refiacts:

estimated future salary increasss;
the benefits set out In the terms of the plan (or resulting from any constructive obligetion thut goes beyond those
terms) at the raporiing date; and

e  estmated future changes In the lavel of any atate benefits that affect the benefits payable under a defined banefit
plan, {, and only i, either

s those ehannal were enacted before the date; or

¢ past history, or other miiable evidence, indicates thet those stafe banefits will change in some pradictable
manner, for example, in line with future changea in generel price levels or general salary levels.

Assumptions about medical costs take eccount of estimated future changes In the cost of madical sarvicas, resulting from
both Inflation and specific changes in medical costs. An actuarial valuation wes performed and s liabllity was determined as
& result of the valuation. The actuarial valuation will be revieed on a annual basis.

Other post retiremant obligations
The municipality provides post-retirement health cere banefits, upon retirement to acme refirees,

The sntitlement to post-retirement health care banefits Is based on the employse ramsining in service up o retirement age
and the completion of a minimum service pericd The expeciad costs of these beneflis are accrued over the period of
employment Indepandent qualified actuaries camy out valuations of thase obligations. The municipality sleo provides a
m&nd housing subsidy on retirement fo certain employess. An annual charge to Income Is made to cover both these

The amount vecognised as a [lability for ethar long-term amployse benefits la Ihe not lotal of the following amounts:
»  the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting
* g}lnun the fair value af the reporfing date of plan assets (if any) out d‘whleh the obilgations are to be seftied

The municipality shall recagnise the nat iotal of the following amaunts as expansa or revenus, except to the extent that
ancther Standard requinse or permits thelr inclusion in the cost of an asset:
*  cumant servics cost;
Interest coat;
the axpacted return on any pian assets and on any reimbursemant right recognised se an assat;
actuarial gains and loases, which shall all ba recognised immedietely;
past servica cost, which shall all be recognised Immediately; and
the effect of any curtalimenta or satiiements.
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West Cozst District Municipality
Annual Financial Steternants for the year ended 20 June 2018

Accounting Pollcles

1.16 Employes bensflin {continued)
Jorminaticn benefits
The municlpalliy recognises termination benefits as o liabllity and an experss when ths entlty s demonstrably committed to

s teminate the smployment of an employee or group of smployses before the nermal retirement date; or
*  provide tarmination benefits as a result of an offer made in order to encourage voluntary redundancy.

municipality ls demonsirably commitied to a tarmination when the entity hee a detallsd formal plan for the termination
s without realistic possibility of withdrawal. The detailed plan includas [as & minimum]:

= the location, function, and epproximate number of amployses whose sanvices are to be srminated;

»  the termination benefits for sach job classification or function; snd

*  the fime at which the plan will ba implementsd.

implementation bagins as soon as possible and the period of time to complets implementation la such that material
chenges to the pian are not likely.

Whera termination banefits fall due mors than 12 months after the reporting dete, they are discourted using en appropriate
diacount rats. The rats used to diecount the benefit reflacts the time value of meney. The currency and term of the financial
Instrumant selectad to reflect the time value of monay |5 consiatent with the cumency and estimated tarm of the benefit,

in the osse of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the measurement of termination benefits shall be basad
on the number of employess axpected to acospt the offer.

1.18 Provislono

Provisions are resognised when:
*  the municipality hea a presant obiigation as & result of & pest event;
e ltia probable that an outfiow of rssources ambodying aconomic benefits or service poiential will ba required to
saitle the obligation; and i
«  arelieble estimaie can ba made of the obligstion.

Tha amount of & provision is the bast astimats of the expenditure expected te be required to seile the present obligation at
the reporting date.

Where the effsc! of time value of manay Is matertal, the amount of a provision Is the present value of the expenditures
wxpecied to be nsquired to sattle tha obligation.

Tha discount rate Is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time vaius of money and the risks
spacific to ths Habilty,

Where some or all of the expenditurs required to sattie a provision is expectsd to be reimburesd by anather party, the
reimbursamant Is recognised whan, and anly when, It Is virtlually certain that reimbursement will be recelved if the
municipality settles the obligation. The reimburssmert is trested as a separais assst The amount recognised for the
relmbursement does not excead the amount of the provisien.

Provisions are reviswad at sach reporting date and adjusted to refiect the curvent best satimate. Provisions are reversed If it
is no l;gge;l l:rnlwl:h that an outfiow of resources ambodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to
settis the obligation.

Whaere discounting is used, tha cairying amount of a provision inorsases In each period to reflect the passage of ime. This
incressa is recognised as an intenest expenss.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was ariginally recognised.
Provisions are not recognised for future apsrating surplus (deficit).

If an antity has & contract that is onerous, the pressnt obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract la racognised and
meastrad &8 & provislon.
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West Coast District Municipality
Annual Financlal Stataments for the year ended 30 June 2018

Accounting Policles

1.16 Provislons {continuad)

A nmﬂucﬂvc obligation to restructurs arises only when an entity:
has a detalled formal plan for the restructuring, idenfiying at least:
- the activity/operating unit or part of an actvity/operating unit concemed;
- the pringipal locations affected;
;.mt::a:uﬁon function, and approximate numbsr of employees who will ba companaated for servicas being
nated;
= the sxpenditures that will be undertaken; and
= when the plan will be Implamentad; and
*  has rased a valid sxpactstion In thoss affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that
plan or announcing its main festures to those affscted by it

A restructuring provision includes only the direct axpenditures arieing from the reatructuring, which are those that are both:
1 nacessarly antalled by the restructuring; and
¢ net associated with the ongoing activitias of the municipality

No cbligation arlses as a consequancs of the sale or tranafer of an operation until the municipality is committed to the sale
or tfransfer, that is, thera is a binding arrangement.

After thalr Inlilal recogmition contingent llabiliies resognised in antily combinations that are racognised ceparstely ane
subsequently measured at the higher of:

¢« the amount that would ba recogrised as & provision; and

+«  the amount inltially recognised less cumulative amortisation,
1.17 Revenus from exchangs transactions

Revenus is the gross Inflow of sconomic baneffts or service potential durlnn tha reporting perod when thosa inflows result
In an increasa tn nat sasais, other than Increasas relating to contributions from owners.

An exchange fransaction is ona in which the municipality receives sssais or services, or has ilabliittes extinguished, and
m gives approximately equal value (primarily In the form of goods, services or use of assets) fo the other party in
ge.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a Kebllity wettied, betwesn knowledgeabls, willing
parties in an am’s length tranaaction.

Maasursment
Revenue is measured at the fair value of tha consideration received or recsivable, net of frade discounts and volume
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West Coast District NMunicipality
Annual Financlal Statemerts for the year ended 30 June 2018

Accounting Pollcles

1.17 Revonus from oxchango tancactions (continued)
Rendering of servicos

Whan the outcome of a transuction Involving the rendering of services can be estimated relisbly, revenus assoolated with
the transaction is recognised by refarence to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcoms
of @ iranaaction can be estimated retiably when all the following conditions are satisfisd:

s the amount of revenue can be measurad raliably;

LI Itsnp;h:ble that the sconomic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow fo the

m lty:
»  tha staga of complation of ths transaction at the reporting deta can ba messured rellably; and
¢  the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can ba meanured reliably.

When servicas sre parformed by an indetarminats number of acts over & specified time frame, revenue |s recogniged on &
straight line basls over the speciied time frame uniess thera Ia avidence that some other method beitsr represents tha
stage of completion. When a specific act Is much more signifioant then any cther scts, the recognition of ravenue is
postponed untl the significant act s executed.

Whan the outoome of the transaction Involving the rendering of services oannot be estmated reliably, revenue is
recognised only 1o the extent of the sxpenses recognised that ame recoverabls.

Service charges releting to distribution of water are based o consumption. Meters are read on a monthly basis end are
recognised us revenue when Involcsd. Provisional estimates of consurnption based on the conaumpbion history, ere made
on a monthly basks when meter readings have not been performed. The provisional estmates of corsumption are
recognisad as revenus when invoiced, except at year-and when astimates of consumption up to year-snd are recorded as
revenue without It baing involced. in respect of estimates of consumption batween the last reading date and the reparting
dats, an accrual ls ralsed based on the average monthly consumption. Adjustments fo provisional estimates of consumption
are made in the Invoicing period in which meters are read. Thesa adjustments ere recognized as revenus In the Involemg

Service charges ralating to refuse removal are recognised on & monthly basis by applying Bhe approvai tarfi tc each
property recsiving services. Teriffs are determined per catagory of property and are lsvied monthly based on the number of
refuse containers on asch property, regardiess of whather or not all containers are empiied during the month.

When the oufcome of the transaction Involving the rendering of services cannct be eatimeted rellably, revenue in
recognisad cnly to the sxtent of the expenses recognisad that are recoverable.

Sarvice charges relsting to sewsrage and sanitaiion services are based on the type of sarvice and the number of sewer
connections on e developed property, using the tarffs approved by Councll. Revanue I3 recognised on @ monthly baals.

interest, roycitien and dividende
Rownmlisinu from the use by othars of antily mssets yieiding Interest, royaitiss and dividends or similar distributiona s
recognisad when:
*  [t|s probable that the economic benefits or service potentiel associated with the transaction will flow to tha
municipaiity, and
s The amount of the revenue can be mensured relably.
interest [s recognieed, In surpius or deficit. using the effective Interest rate method.
Reritel income from operating leases is recognizad on u streight fine basis over the lease tenm.

Ravenue arising from the application of the approved tarlff of charges |s recogniset when the relevant sarvices ls rendered
by applying the relevant authorised tariff, This includes the lssulng of licences and parmilts.

Commisseion for agancy services I8 recognisad as per the sarvice level agresment with the municipality. Ths percentage
calculated during a financlal year gra basad on the total funds recelved from the agent.

1.18 Revenue from non-uxchange tranorctions

Revenue comprises gross Inflows of aconamic benefits or servioa potential recsived and receivable by & munidpality, which
represents an increase in net assets, other than Increases releting to contribitions from owners,
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West Coast District Municlpality
Annual Financlal Statements for the ysar ended 30 Juns 2018

Accounting Policies

1.18 Revenua from nonexchange trancactions (continued)

Conditions on transferred aseots are etipulations that specify that the future economic benelits or service potential
smbadied in the assat 18 required fo be consumad by the reciplent as specfied or future aconomic bensfits or senice
potential muat be returnad ic the transferar.

Control of an saset arise when the municipality can use or othaiwise benefit from the asaet In pureult of Its objectives and
can excluds or vtherwias regulate the access of others to that benefit.

Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity recelves assets or services, or has lsbiitles extinguished, and
g::hcﬂy gives approximately equal vakua (primarily in the form of cash, gocds, sarvices, or use of agsets) to another entity in
ange.

Expanses paid through the tax syatem ars amounts that ars avaliable to banaficiaries regardiass of whether or not they pay
teuces.

Fines are sconomic bansfits or service potentiel received or recsivable by antities, as determined by & court or other law
enforcament body, as a consequencs of the breach of faws or regulaticns.

Norrexchange trenesclons are transactions that mre not sxchenge iransactions. In a non-exchange transaclion, a
municipality elther recalves veius from another municipalily without diractly gvinp sppradmately equel value In meluma.
or gives value to another municipelity without directly recelving approximataly equal valus in exchengs.

Reatrictions on transfarred asssts are stipuiations that limit or direct the purposes for which a transfoerred assst may bs
:mng do ny thet future aconemic benefits or sarvice potential is required o be rsturned to the transferor if hot
ass d.

Stipulations on transferred assels are tarms In laws or regulation, or a binding emangemeant, imposed upon the use of &
trunsferred asset by entitles extemal to the reporting rnuniria

Tax axpendltures are preferential provisions of the tax law that provide certeln texpayers with concessions that are not
avallakle to others.

The texable event ls the svent thet the govarnment, legisiature or other authority hes dstermined will ba subject to taxation,

Taxes ars aconumic benefits or service potantial compilsorily pald or payabls to entities, in accordance with laws and or
wmn;i’ ;Iltclibﬁshnd o provde revenue to govemment. Taxes do not includs fines or other penalties Imposed for
o law.

Transfers are Infiows of future sconomic benefits or service potsntial from non-axchange fransactions, other than taxes.

Ravenue from ratss, including collection charges and penalty intanest, is recognlsed on a monthly basls when the taxes are
lavied at this Is ragarded to be the date whan it Is probabls that the aconemic benefits or servios patential will flow to the
mumcmliarﬁ‘ the amount of the revenua can bs meesured reliably and there has been compliance with tha relevant legal
reguirerme

Revenue from donations is racognised when it is probable that the sconomic benefiis or aervice potential will flow to the
municipafily, the amount of the revenue can be measured rellably and any restrictions essociated with the donation have
been met

Revenue from the recovery of unauthoriaed, Imegular, fruitiess and wasteful axpendiure is based on lagal procedures,
inchrding those set out In the Municipal Finence Management Act (Act No.58 of 2003) and recognised when the recovery
thersof from the responsible counciliors cr officials 1 virually certain,

Revenue from unconditienisl grants Is recognised when It ls probable that the esconomic benafits or service potentiel will flow
to the munlcipality, the amount of the revenue can be measured relisbly. Since these grants are unconditional and there ere

slipulations, the granis are recopnised ae revenua or, if the recognition ¢riteria has besn met, as assats In the
mporﬁmp.dod in which they ane recsived or recsivable.

Revenue from condliional grants [s recognised when & is probable thet the sconamic banafits or service potential will flow to
the municipality, the emount of the revenue can be measurad reliably and to the extent that there has bean compliance with
any resirictions associated with the grant.
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West Coast District Municipality
Annual Financial Statemants for the year anded 30 Juna 2018

Accountlng Policles

1.18 Revenuo from non-exchange transactions {continued}

Recognition

An inflow of rescurces from a nun-exchange franasction recognised as an asset Is recognisad sa revenue, except o the
extent that a fiablllty ks also recognised in respect of the aame Inflow.

As the municipalty satisfias a presant cbligation recognised as a labliBty in respaat of an inflow of rasources from a non-
exchange iransaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the canying amount of the fiability recognised and recognises an
emount of revenus equal to that reduction.

Measuroment

Rmnu“ft;cm # nen-exchange transaction Is measured at the amount of the Increace In net assets recognised by the
municipality.

When, a3 & result of & non-mxchange transaction, the municipsilty recognises an assst, It aleo recognises reverus
equivalent to the amount of the asset mexsured at its falr value ms at the dats of acquisition, unleas it is alao required to
recognise a labillly. Where e liabllity is required to be recognisad i will be measured as the beat estimate of the amount
required to seite the obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the Increase In net assets, if any, ecopnised as
revenus, Whan a liablity Is subsequsntly reduced, bacaua tha taxable aveant acturs or a condition e satisflad, the amount
of the reduction in the liabllity s recognised as revenue,

Tranefsre

The munigipality recognises an ssset in reapect of fransfers when the transferred resources meet the definition of an asast
and satisfy the criietla for recognition us an asast,

Traneferred sssete are measured at thelr falr value as et the deie of scquisition.
Fines

Fines ere recognisad as revenus when the receivable meets the definition of an asset and satisfies the criteria for
racognition as an asset.

Aseate arlsing from fines are measured at the bast estimate of the Infiow of rescurcas to the munioipallty.

Where the municipalty collects fines in the capacity of an agent, the fine will not be revenue of the collecting entity.

The municipality makes ues of astimates to determine the amount of revenue that it s entitied 1o collsct. Where settiement
discounts or reductions in the smount payeble are offered, the mumicipality considers past hisiory in assessing the
Hkelhood these discounts or reductions belng taken up by debtors.

Gifts and donstions, including goode In=kind

Gits and donations, Inclucing gooda in kind, ame recognised as asseis and revenue when |t Is probable that the future
economic bansfis or servica potential will fow to the munielipality and the falr vaius of the geseta can be menasured reliably.

Services Inkind

Except for financial guarantss confracts, the municipality recognise servicas In-kind that are significant to it operations
and/or service delivery objsctivee as asasts and recognise the releted revenue when It Is probable that the future aconomic
benefits or aervice potential will fiow to the municipality and the falr value of the asesta can be measured reliably.

Where sarvices Inddnd ere not significant to tha municipality's operstions ondior service delivary objectives and/or do not
satisfy the criteria for recognition, the municipedly discloss the nature and fype of servicss [n-kind received during the

reporting period.

1.19 Borrowing costc

Boirowing costs swe Interest and other expenses incurred by an municipality In connection with the borrowing of funds.
Quallfying asset Is an asset that necessarily takes a substential period of time ta get ready for its Intended use of sale.
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Waest Coast District Municipality
Annual Financlal Statements for the year erded 30 June 2018

Accounting Policles

1.19 Borrowing costa (continued)

Bomowing costs that ere directly attributebls to the scquisition, construction er production of # qualifying asset are capitalised
a6 part of the cost of that asset when It is probable that they will result in future economic banefits or service potsntial to the
municipality, and the costs can be measured reliably. The municipality appliss this consistently to alf borrowing costs that are
direclly ettributable to the acquisition, construction, or production of all quellfying assets of the municipality, The amount of
borrowing costs sligibla for capitalisation is datermined es follows;
e Actual borrowing costs on funds specifically borrowsd for tha purpese of obiaining a qualifying asset less any
Investment income on the temporary investment of those bomowings.
¢ Weighted average of the borrowing costs applisable to the municipality on furda generally borrowad for the purpose
of obtaming a qualifying ssset. The borrowing casts capitalised do not excead the tofal borrowing costs Ineurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when all the following conditions have been met:
»  supandiures for tha asset have baen ncumed;
¢+ bomowing costs have bean incurred; and
»  aclivilles that are neceasary fo prepare the asset for its Intanded use or sale are undertaken

When the carrylng amount or the axpected uitimate cost of the qualfying assat sxcaads its recovarable amount or recoverable
sarvice amount or nef reallsable value or replacament cost, the camying amount Is written dewn or written of? in accordance
with the mccounting policy on Impairment of Asssts and Inventories. In cerinin circumstances, the amount of the write-down or
write-off is written back In accordance with the sams accounting policy.

clpl‘lllil:lﬂ;l'l caasas whan subatantially ali the activities nacessary to prepare the quslifying esset for lte intended uee or sale
are com 3

Whan the municipality complates the construction of & qualifying assst In parts and each part Is capable of being usad whils
conetruction continues on other parts, the municipality ceases caplialising borrowing cosis when It completes substantially ail
the activitles necessary to prepare that part for iis intended use or sale,

All other borrowing costs are recegnised ae an axpense In the period in which they are incurred.
1.20 Comparative figures
Whera nacessary, comparative figures have baen reclassifisd to conform to changes in prassnistion in the current year.

When the presentetion or clessification of items In the annual financial ststements Is amendsd, prior period comparative
amounts are restated, unleas a standard of GRAP does not require the restatement of comparative information. The nature
and reason for the reciassification Is disciosad. Where sccounting errors have been iientified in the current year, the
correction is mads retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year oomparatives gro rastated accordingly. Where
there has been a change In accounting policy in the curment year, tha adjustment i3 mada retrcapactivaly as far as I1s
practicable, and the prior year comparatives are resteted accordingly.

1.21 Unauthorisad sxpanditure

Unauthorised expendiiure means any axpenditure incurred by the municipality otherwise then In accordance with sactien 16
or 11 (3} of tha Munidpal Finance Managament Act (Act No 55 of 2003), and includes:;

+  overspending of the totsl amount appropriated in the sapproved budget;

+  axpenditure from n vote urelated ta the department or functional area covered bu the vote;

All expendiiure relsting to unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an sxpense In the statemant of finencial performance
in the year that the sxpenditure was incurred. The expenditure Is clasaified In accordance with the nature of the sxpanas,
and whare recoverad, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performanca.

1.22 Fruldeas and wasteful expenditure

Fruitiess expenditure means axpenditura which was made In valn and would have basn avoided had reasonable care besn
exercisad.

All expanditure relaing to fruliess and westefu] expenditure |s recognisad as an expense in the statement of financisl
performancs in the year that the expantiiture was Incurred. The axpanditure (s classified in sccordance with the nature of
the expanse, and where racovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenus In the statement of financial performance.
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West Coast Diatrict Municipality
Annusgl Financial Stetements for the year ended 30 Juna 2018

Accounting Policies

1.23 Iregular expenditure

imeguiar expenditure that was incumed and Identified during the curmert financial and which was eondoned bafore year and

andior before finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded appropriately in the Imegular sxpenditure

mnglmr. nl; such an inatance, no furthar action Is alsc required with the exoeption of updating the note to the financlal
@

Imeguiar expanditure that was Incumed snd identified during the cument financlal year and for which condonement is being
awalled at yaor end must be recorded in the ireguiar expenditure registar. No further action Is required with the exception
of upciating the note to the financial statements.

Whare Imegular expenditure was incurred In the previous financial year and is only oondoned In the following financlal year,
tha reglster and the disclosure note to the finandial statements must be updated with the smount condonad.

Iragular expendiiure that was ncurred and identified during the current financlal yesr and which was not condoned by the
Nafional Treasury o the relevant authority must be recordsd appropristely in the irreguiar axpenditurs regieter, if lablity for
the irregular expendiure can be sitributed to a person, e deit sccount must be created if such m parson Is lleble In law.
Immadiate staps must thereafter be faken to recover tha amount from the person concermad. If recovery is not possible, the
sccounting officer or accounting authority may write off the amount as debt impairment and disolose such In the relevant
note to the financial statements. The imeguiar sxpenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irragular
eqandiiure has not been condoned and no person Is liable In lsw, the expenditure related thereto must remain against the
relsvant programma/sxpenditure fteim, be diecioend as such In the note to the financial statements and updabed accordingly
in the iregular expendtture register,

Imegulsr sxpenditura is expanditure that |8 contrary to the Municipal Finence Management Act (Act No.56 of 2003), the
Municipal Systems Act (Act No.32 of 2000), and the Public Office Bearers Act {Act No. 20 of 1888) or |s In contravention of
the economic entity’s supply chaln management policy. Imegular expanditure excludes unauthorised expeandifure. braguter
axpenditurs Is accounted for as expandture In the Statement of Financial Performance and where recoversd, it is
subsequently acoourted for as revenua in the Statament of Financial Performanca.

134 Materiaily

Material amisalons or mistatemeants of itams are material if they oould, Individually or collectively, Influsnce the decision or
assessment of users made on the basis of the annuel financial statements. Materislity dspends on the nature or size of the
omission of Mistatemant Judged In the surcunding clroumstances, The neture or size of the Information item, or &

combination of both, could bs the determining factor. Materiality is defined as 1% of the tofal oparsting ependiture. Tha
matarighty i& from menagement's parspective and doas not cornelate with the auditor's matariality.

1.28 Contingencles

A contingent aaset [v @ possible asset thet arses from past svertts and whoss axcistanca will b confirmed only by the
OCCUITSNCS OF NON-OCEUITANES of ons of more uncertaln future svents not wholly within the control of the municipality.

A contingent {labity :
» @ possible obligation that ariess from past events and whose exisience will be confinmod only by the ococurrence
or non-occurrence of one o mors Lncertain future events not wholly within the control of the municipality, or
* = present cbiigation that arises from past svents but s not recognised because;
*  HIs not probable that ah sutfiow of resources smbodying aconomic benefits or servios patential will be required
to sattie the obligation; and
+  the amount of the obiigation cannot be measured with sufficient rellablliy.

1.28 Copital commitmento

fterns are classified as commitments when the municipality has commitied Heaif to future transactions that wili pormally
hmult In 320 outBiow of cash. Disclosures are required In respact of unrecognised capitai commitments, whish are dizclossd
note

I(’:::tnmihmnh for which disclosure ls nacessary to achlave a fair pressntation are disclosad If both the following criteria are
»  contracts are non-cancelible or only cancelable at significant cost (for example, contracts for computer er
buliding maitanance services); and
»  contracts related to something other than the routine, steady, stete busineas of the municipaitty - therefore salary
commitments relating to employment contracts or social security benefit commitments are excluded.
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West Coast District Municipality
Annual Financial Statemants for the year ended 30 Juns 2018

Accounting Policies

1.27 Budget Information

Municipality ane typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations (or equivalent),
which is given effect through autherising legislation, appropriation or similar.

m:upprowd budget ls preparad on a cash baeis and prasented by functional classification Iinkad to performance outcome
joctives,

The budget for tha sconomio entlty includes all the entities approved budgets undar its control.

The annual financial statements and the budget are on the same besls of accounting therefore a comparison with the
budgeted amourts for the reporting period have been Included In the Statement of comparison of budget and actual
amoulvn:lr; Emlam of significant variances greater than ten percent or five hundred thousand Rand versus the budget
arag appandix

1.28 Relxted parties

A related parly |s a person or an entity with the abliity to control or jointly control the ather party, or exsrcise significant
influence over the other party, or vice varsa, or an entity that Is subject to common control, or joint control.

Menagement ar¢ thoae persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the municipality,
Including thoss charged with the govemanos of the municipalily In accordancs with legislation, In instances where they are
maquirad to parform such functions.

Close members of the family of & psrecn ara considered to be those family mambers who may be expected to influence, or
ba influenoad by, thet menagament in their dealings with the municipallty.

Only transactions with related parfies not at arm's langth or not in the ordinary courss of businese are discolosed.
1.28 Service concession arrangements
Operator

The District Municipality as an operator in the service concesslon arrangement racognises revenue and expenditure In
felation io the service concession arrengement In accordance with its mocounting policles on revenué snd expenditurs
recognition and with referenca to the contract with the grantor,

In terms of the service concaeasion amangement the following types of revenue are recognised:
*  Recognisad and messuremant of the armangement consideration.
*  Construction and upgrade services.
*  Operating sarvicea.

Tha District does not recognise the sssets relating to the service conoession arrangsment as theae ars recognissd In the
acoounting resords of the grantor.

The District Municipelity shall recognise a financlal assat to the extent thet It has an unconditional contractual right to
raceiva cash or another financial saset from or at the direction of the prantor for the construction sarvices,

The District Municipality shall recognise an intanglble assst to the extent thet & recelves a right (a licents) to charge usare
of tha public service.

1.30 Acocumulnted surplus

The sccumulated surpius rapresents tha net difierence betwesn the total assets and the total llabilities of the municipality.
Any sumplussas and deficits realisad during & specific financlal ysar are credited / debited against accumulated surplus /
deficit. Prior yoar adjustments relating to income and sxpanciur, are debhtad / credited sgainst acoumulated surplus whan
reirospective adjustments are made.

1.31 Critical accounting sstimotes and judgemento
The provisions represents mansgement's best estimate of tha municlpslily's exposura. The probability that an ocutflow of

economic resources witl be required to =attle fhe cbligation must be assassad and a reliable estimate must be made of the
amount of the obligation. Actual resulte may, howavar, differ from thass estimates.
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Wast Coeast District Municipality
Annual Financlal Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Accounting Policles

1.31 Critical accounting estimatea and Judgements (continued)

Managernent has mace estiimates of the selling price and direct cost to sell of certaln Inventory ltems to caiculete the
sllowance to writs down to the lowsr of cost or nat realisable valwe. The write down Is zero.

The present value of the post retiment cbligation depends on a number of faclors that are determined on 8 actuarial basls
using a number of assumptions, which Include the discount rate. Any changes In these assumptions will impact in the
carrying amount of post retirement obligation.

The estimation of useful llves of aseats |s based on management’s Judgsment. Any material adjustments to the satimated
remalning useiul ves of ltwms of property, plant and equipment will have an impaot on the earrying value of these ems.

Whens impaitment indicators exist, the detarmination of the recoverable amount of sasets or cash generating units require
manegement to make assumptions to determine tha fair valise leas cost to sell. Key assumptions onh which menagament
hes based its determination of feir valuse less costs to sall include projectsd revenues, eamings muitiple, capifal
expenditure and masket shars. The juigements, sssumptions and methodelogies used can have & materisi Impact on the
fair value and ultimatsly the amount of the impairmant.

Where Impaiment Incicators exst, the detarmination of the recoverable service amount of & non-cash genemting asset
requires management to make assumptiona to delermine the falr value less cost to sell and the value in use based on the
depreciated replacement cost model. Key assumptions Include the cumrent replacemsnt coat of non-cash generating assets
and In certain nstances an assumption about the commissicning dats which determines the depreciated repiscement coat
of the nonecash genarating assats.

An eatimale for tha impairment of recelvables Is made when collection of the full amount is no longer probsbie. The
provision for doubtfull debt is calculated on trade racelvablas only, i@, service debiors, housing rentals and cther debtors.
The iotal impairmsnt provision of the municipality is caleulated per risk caisgory.

1.32 Events after reporting date

Events after reporiing date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that acour betwesn the reporting date and
the date whan the financial statements are authorissd for issue, Two types of evants can be identified:
. 3\05? that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporiing
ate); end
. tdhoa? that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reperting date {non-adjusting events aftsr the reporting
atm),

The municipality will adjust the amount recognised In the financial stataments fo refiact adjuating events aftar the raporting
dale once the event occurred.

The municipality will discioss the naturs of the avent and an estimata of Ita financial effact or a statemant that such estimate
cannot be mada In raspect of all materisl non-adusting events, where non-disciosure could Infiuence the economic
dacisions of usars taken on the bests of the financial staternants.
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Weat Coast District Municipality
Annual Financlal Statements for the year endad 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annual Financlal Statements

Figures In Rand 2018 2017

2. New stondards and intarpretations
21 Standards and Interpretations lasued, bul not yet sffective

The municipality has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory
for the municipality's accounting perfods beginning on or after 01 July 2018 or luter periods:

BRAP 34: Baparate Financial Statemenie

The objective of this Standard is to preactibe the accounting and disclosure reguirements for Invesiments in controlled
entitias, joint ventures and associates when an eniity preparea saparate financial statements.

it Mﬂwng:: covers Definitions, Preparation of separate financlal statements, Disclosure, Transltional provisicns and

The sffactive date of the standard |s not yet set by the Minleter of Finance.

The municipality expacts to adopt the standard for the fimt time when the Minlster sets the sffective date for the standard.
It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on the municipality's annual finsncisl statements.

GRAP 35: Consolidated Financial Statoments

Tha oblective of this Stendard Is to establish princples for the presentation and preparation of consolidated finuncial
stataments when an entity controls one or more other entlties,
To maet this objective, the Standare:
raquiru an entity (the oon'lronlng entity) that controls one or more other entities (controlled entities) to presant
consolidated financiai
. dellm the principle of control, and establishes control as the besis for coneolidation;
«  pats out how to apply the principle of control to identify whether an entity controls ancther entity and thersfors
must consolidats thet entity;
«  seis out the accounting requirements for the preparation of consolidated financial statsments; and
» defines an Investment entity and sete out an exception to coneolidating parficular conirolied entiies of an
invastment entity.

it furthermore covers Definitions, Control, Accourting requirements, Investment entities: Falr value mequirement,
‘Transitional provisions and Effective date.

The elfective date of the standard Is rot yet set by the Minister of Finance.

The munidipality expects to adopt the standard for the first time when the Minister sals tha affactive date for tha standard.
It s unlikely that the stendand will heve a material impact or the municipalily’s annual financial statements.,

GRAP 38: Investments In Associates and Joint Ventureo

The cbjective of this Standard is to prescribe the accounting for investments in associgtes and joint ventures and 1o set out
the requirements for the application of the equity method when accounting for investments In ssscclates and joint ventures.

It furthermore covers Definitions, Significant influenca, Equity method, Application of the equity methad, Separats financlal
statsments, Traneitional provisione and Effective date.

The affiactive date of tha standand is net yet ast by the Minister of Finance.
The municipality expects to sdopt the standard for the first time when the Minister sets the effective date for the standard,
It is uniikely thet the standard will have & materigl Impact on the municipality’s annual financial statementa.

GRAP 37; Joint Amangements
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Woest Coast District Municlpality
Annual Financie! Statements for the year endad 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2. Now standarde and Intorprotctions (continued)

The cbjective of this Standard Is to establish principles for financial reporting by entties that have an Iinterest in
amangements thet are controlled Jointly (L.e. joint amangsments).

To mest this objective, the Standard defines joint control and requires an ertity that is & parly to a joint arrangement to
datermine the type of joint arrangement In which it is involved by mssessing its rights and obligations and io account for
thaee rights end obligations in accordance with that type of joint amangement.

it furtharmore covers Definftions, Joint arrangements, Finencial sistements and pariss to a joint amangement, Separate
financlal statements, Transifional provisions and Effective dats.

The sffectiva date of the standard is riot yet sat by the Minister of Finance.

The municipality axpects to edopt the standard for the first time when the Minister sats the stfectiva date for the standard,

it Is uniiely that the standard will have a matsrial Impact on the municipality’s annual financial statsmants.

GRAP 38: Diaclosure of interssto In Other Entitles

x Im:me of this Standard Is to require an entity to disclose information that enables ussrs of ks financial statements to

= the nature of, and riske asscciated with, lis Interasts in controlled entities, unconsolidated controfled entities, joint
amangementis and assoolates, and structured sntities that are not consolidated; and
e the effects of those interasts on its financial pesition, financlal performance and cash flows.

It furthermore covers Definitions, Cisclosing Information sbout interests In other entities, Significant judgemants and
gssumptions, Investment entity status, Intereats In ocontrolled entittes, Intersats in joint arrangements and associates,
Inierasts In strustuned antiies that ere not consolidated, Non-nualitative ownership infarests, Contreliing interasts acquired
with the Intantion of diapcsal, Transttional provisions and Effective datle.

The effactive date of the standard Is not yet set by the Minister of Finance.

The municipality sxpacts to adopt the standard for the first time when the Minister sets the effective date for the standerd,
It is unlikely that the standard will have a material Impact on the municipality's annual financlal statements.

Guideline; Accounting for Arrcngemants Undertaken |.Lo the National Housing Programme

The chjective of this guideline: Entiies In the public sactor are frequently involved In the construction of houses as part of
government's housing pelicy. Implemanted through the netional housing programme, which Is eimed at dsvaloping
susiainable human ssiflements. The Housing Act, Act No. 107 of 1957 provides information about the housing programmeas
that fall within the scope of the national housing programme. Concems were raised by preparers about the inconsistent
sccounting applied to housing ammngemants undertaken by entites under the national housing programme. Different
sccaunting may be appropriate where thers ans diffsrences batwesn the terms and conditions of arrangamenia conciuded
by entities. However, under housing arrangsmenis that are undertaken In terms of the national housing programme, thare
are common featurss and Isaues that need to be considered, As n result, the Board sgreed tc develop high-level guidance
for arrangsmants undarteken i ferms of the national housing programimae.

it covers: Background fo arrangements undertaken in terme of the national housing progreminie, Transactions thet affect the
scoounting of housing smangements, Consider whether the municipality undertmikes transactions with third parties on behalf
of another party, Accounting by municipalities sppointed ss project manager, Disclosure requirsments, Aocounting by
municipaliies appointed as project developer, Accouniing for the accreditation fes, commission, adminisiration or
trensaction fae recelved, Land and Infrastructse, Conciusion and Application of this Guideline to existing arrangements,
The effective date of the guidaline is not yet set by the Minister of Finance.

The municipailty expects to adopt the guldeline for the first time whan the Minister sets the sffective cate for the guldeline.

It s unilkely that the guldellne will have a meterial impect on the municipality's snnual financial statements.

GRAP 110: Living and Non-living Resourcoo , . - 'i
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West Coast District Municlpality
Annual Financlel Statemanta for tha yesr andad 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2. New standards end interpretations (continuad)

The objective of this Standand Is to prescribe the:
s ecogniton, measuremant, presentation snd digclasure requirements for living resources; and
« disclosure requiremeants for nondiving rescurcas

It furthermore covers Definltions, Recognition, Messurement, Dspreciation, Impairment, Compensation for Impairment,
Tranafers, Derecognition, Disclosura, Transitionsl provisions and Effsctive date.

The effective date of the standard is not yet sst by the Minister of Financs.

The municipality expects o adopt the standard fr the firat time when the Minlstsr sets the effective date for the standard.
It is unlikedy thet the standard will havs & material impact on the municipaiity’s annual financial staterments.

GRAP 110 {as amandasd 201€): Living and Non-iving Resources

Amendments to tha Standard of GRAP an Living and Nondiving Resources resulted from editorial changes to the originai
taxt and [nconsistencies in measurament requiements in GRAP 23 and other asset-related Standards of GRAP in ralation
to the freatment of iransacion costs, Other changes resulted from changes made to IPSAS 17 on Proparly, Plant and
Equipment {IPSAS 17) as & result of the IPSASB's Improvementa to IPSABs 2014 issued In January 2015 and
Improvemants to IPSASs 2015 lssuad In March 2018,

The most significant changes to tha Standard are’

*  General improvements: To clarify the treatment of transaction costs and cther costs incurred on assets acquired
in non-exchange transactons i be in line with the principls In GRAP 23; and To clarify the measurement
principle when assets mey be acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or asests, or @ combination of
monestary and non-monatary assats

» PSASB smendments. To clarify the revaluation methodology of the camying amount and accumulated
depreciation whan = living resourca Is revalusd; To clarily acceptable methods of daprecisting assets; and To
define a bearer plant and Includs bearer plants within the scope of GRAP 17 or GRAP 110, whils the produca
growing on bearar piants wik remain within the scope of GRAP 27

The effective date of the amendment Is for years baginning on or after 01 April 2020.

The municipality expects to adopt the smendment for the firet ime in the 2020 annual financizl statements.

it ls unlikely that the amendment will have & material Impact on the municlpafity's annusl inancial statsments.
GRAP 6 {as revised 2010): Consolidatod and Separate Financlgl Statements

The definition of ‘minority intersst’ hies been amanded to ‘non-controlling Interest’, and parmgraph .80 wee addad by the
Improvements to the Stundards of GRAP [ssusd in Novembar 2010, An entity shall apply thess amendments proapectively
for annual financlal periods beginning on or after the effective date [in conjunction with the effective date to bs datarmined
by g;. MJ‘mshrh mof Finance for GRAP 108, 106 and 107]. If an entity elects to apply these amendments earlier, It ahall
dla:

Persgraph .59 was amandad by Improvements to the Standards of GRAF iesued in Novamber 2010, An entity shall apply
these amendments prospactively for annual finencial periods beginning on or after the effsctive date [in conjunction with the
effectivs date to ba determined by the Minister of Finance for GRAP 105, 108 and 107] from the dafe et which it first applied
the Standard of GRAP on Non-cumrent Assets Hald for Sale and Dlsconfinued Operations. If an entity elecis to apply these
amandments sarlier, it shadl discloss this fact,

The Standards of GRAP on Transfer of Functions Between Entitias Under Common Control, Transfer of Functions Betwesn
Entittes Not Under Common Coniro) and Mergers amended paragraphs ,03, .36, .47 to .50 and added paragraphs .61 t .58
and .61 to .62. An entity shall apply thase smendments when i applies the Standards of GRAP on Transfer of Functions
Bstween Entiies Under Commen Control, Transfer of Functions Betwesn Entities Not Under Common Control and
Mergera,

An entity shall apply this amendmant for annual financlal statements covering periods beginning on or after the affective
date [In conjunction with tha sffsctive date to be determined by the Minlster of Financa for GRAP 105, 108 and 1071
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West Coast District Riunicipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year endad 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annual Financlal Statemente

2. New stondards snd intarpretstions {continued)

‘The municipality expects to adopt the amendmant for the firat time in the 2019 annual finariolel siatemants.

It Is unlikely that the amendment will have a meterial Impact on the municipalily’s annual financial statements.

GRAP 7 (a2 revisad 2010): Invectments In Acsoclates

Paragraphe .03 and .42 ware amended by the Improvements to the Stendands of GRAP Issuad In Novamber 2010, An
ently shall spply these smencments prospectively for snnus! financial periods beginning on or efier the effective date [in
conjunction with the affactive date o ba datermined by the Minister of Finance for GRAF 105, 108 and 107). If &n entily
elects to apply these amandments earlier, It shall disclose this fact.

The Standurds of GRAP on Transfer of Functions Between Entifies Under Common Control, Transfer of Functions Beiwean
Entities Not Under Common Control and Mergers amended paragraphs .22, .26 end .38 end added paragraph .24, An

entity shall apply thess amendments and addition when it applies the Standerde of GRAP on Transfer of Functions
Bolwean Entities Under Common Confrol, Trenafer of Funcions Batween Entities Not Under Commeon Contrel and

Mergers.

An entity shall spply this amendment for annual finsncial statements covering pariods beginning on or sfter the effective
date [in conjunction with the effectiva date to be determined by the Ministar of Financs for GRAP 108, 108 and 107].

The municipeiity expects to adopt the amendmant for the firet ime in the 2019 annusl financial statements.

It Is unikely that the amendment will have a material Impact on the municlpatity's anmnual financial statements.

GRAP 8 {ag revissd 2010): Interects In Joint Vantures

Paragraph .04 was emended by the Improvemenis o the Standards of GRAP Issusd In November 2010. An entity shall
epply these amendments proapectively for annual financial periods baginning on or after the effective date [In conjunction
with the effective date 10 ba determined by the Ministar of Finenos for GRAP 108, 108 and 107]. If an entity siects to apply
thesa amendmenta sariier, it shall disclose this fact.

The Btarciards of GRAP on Transfer of Functions Between Entities Under Common Gentrel, Tranafer of Functions Betwesn
Entities Not Uinder Common Conirol and Mergers sddad paragraph .50 and smendsd parsgraphs .51 and .52, An antity
shall spply these emendments and addition when it applies the Standards of GRAP on Transfer of Functions Befween
Entites Undar Common Control, Tranafer of Funstions Beiwean Entities Not Under Commen Control and Mergers.

An entity shalt apply this emendment for annual financial sistements covering periods beginning on or after the sffective
date {In conjunction with the effective date to be determined by the Ministar of Finance for GRAP 105, 108 and 107).

The municipality expects to adopt the amendment for the first time In tha 2019 annuel financial statsments.
It Is unlikely that the amendmant will have a material Impact on the municipslity’s annual financial statements.
GRAP 16 (as amanded 2018): Sagmant Rcporting

Amendments to the Stenderd of GRAP on Sagmeant Reporting resultad from edhorial and cther changes to the original text
have been mads to snsure consistency with cther Standards of GRAP.

The most significant changes to the Standard are:
»  General Improvemants: An appendix with llustrative sagment disciosures has baen deleted from the Standard as
the National Treasury has lssuad compiste axamplea ms part of lis Implemsniation guidunca.
Tha affactive date of the amendment Is for years baginning on or after 01 April 2018

The municlpality expecis to adopt the amendment for the first ime when the Minister seis the effactive date for the
emendment.

it is unilkely thet the amendment will have & maberlal Impact on the municipality's annual financial statements.
GRAP 20: Relatod parties
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Woest Coast District Municipality
Anmnual Financial Statemaents for the year endad 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annual Financlzl Stztements

2 Newsiandards and Intarpretations {continued)

The objactive of this standard Is to ansure that a reporting entity's annual financial statements contain the disclosures
necessary to draw attention to the posslblity that lts financial posiion and surplus or deficit may heve been affsciad by the
exitence of nelated partles and by transacticns and outstanding balances with such parties.

An entity that prepares and presents financial siatsments under the accrual basis of accounfing {In this standard referred to
#s tha reporting entity} shall apply this standard in:
¢ |dentifying related parly relationships and ransacfions;
[dentifying outstanding balances, Inclwiing commitments, betwsen an entity and ts related parties;
idgniifying the circumatances in which dieciosura of the tems In (&) and (b) Is required; end
determining the discicsures to be made about those (tems.

This standard requires disclosure of relaiad parly relstionships, transactions and outstanding balances, including
eommitmants, in the consclidated and seperate financlal atatemants of the reporting entity In acecrdencs with the Standard
of GRAP on Consolidated and Separate Financlal Statements. This steniard also applles to Individus! annual financial
staterments.

Disciosure of relatad parly fransactiona, outstanding balances, Including commitments, and relationships with related
paries may affact users' assessments of the finsncial pealtion and performance of the reporting entity and its abdity to
deliver agraed servicss. Including assassments of the risks and opportunities facing the antity. This disclosurs also shsures
that the reporiing entity is transparent about its daalings with relatad partiss.

The standard statas that a relatnd party ls & person or an entity with the ability to control ar jointly control the other party, or
exarcise signficant Influsnce over tha other party, or vice varsa, or an entity that is subject to commen contrel, or joint
control. As & minimum, the foliowing are regardad as related parties of the reporiing entity:
« A person or a closs member of that person's family Is related to the reporting entity if that person:
= has contro! or joint cantrol over the reporting endlty;
= has significant Influence over the reporting entity;
= ls amember of the managemant of the entity or lis controlling sntity.
+  Anentlly is relatad to the reporting ertity if any of the fellowing conditions apply:
« the entity I8 a member of the same economic entity (which maans thet sach controlling entity, controfled
antiy and fallow controlied antiy is related to the othere);
= ona entity is an assoclats or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
an sconomie antity of which tha other aniity 1s a member),
= both antihes are joint ventures of the same third party;
= one entity is a Joint venture of & third entity and the other entily ls an sssoclata of the third entity;
~ the entlly ls a poat-employmant beneftt plan for the benefit of employses of either the entity or an entity
rolaiad o the entity. If the reporting entity is tasif such a plan, the apensoring smployers are related to tha entity,
= the entity is controliad or jointly controlled by a parsen idantified In (a); and
= u pareon identified in (a){i)} has significant Infuance over that entliy or I« & member of the managamant of
that entity (or Its controlling entity).

The standard furthermore states that releted party transaction is & transfer of resources, services or abligations betwean the
reporfing entity and a releted party, regardisas of whether a price is charged.

‘The standard elsburates on the definltions and identification of:
¢ Closa member of the family of & person;

Managemant;

Reintad parties;

Remuneration; and

Significant influsnce

The standard sets out the requirements, inter efia, for the disclosure of:
*  Conirol;

. Rulmd' party transactions; arl
»  Remunaratien of managament

The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Flnance.
The munizipality exposts to adopt the atandard fer the first time when the Minister sets the effective date for the standand.
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West Coast District Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 Juna 2018

Notes to the Annual Financlal Statements

2. New standorcds tnd Interpretctions (confinued)
1t Is unllkely thet the standard will have a material impact on the munioipeity's annual financial statements.
GRAP 32: Service Concassion Arrangemants: Grantor

The m:rbje%ﬁt;e of this Standard is: to prescribe the accounting for sarvice concession arrangements by the grentor, & public
sactor entity.

It furthermore covers: Deflnitions, recogrition and messurement of @ service concession asset, recognion and
measurement of Eabilities, other [ablllties, contingent Kabiliies, and confingent assets, cther revenues, pressniation and
disclosure, transitional provisions, as well as tha affactive dats.
The affective date of the standard s not yet sat by the Minister of Finance.
The municipally expecis to adopt the standard for the first time when the Minister sets the effective date for the standard.
The impact of this starkiard ls currently being asseased,
GRAP 105: Tranofers of functions botween entities under common control
The objactive of this Standard Is to aatablish accounting principles for tha acquirer and tranaferor in & transfer of functions
batween entites under common control. It requires an acquirer and a transfercr that prepares and presents financial
stetements under the accrual basis of accounting to apply this Standard to a transaction or evant that meets the definition
of a transfer of funclions. It includes & diagram and requires that antities consider the diagram In detarmining whether this
Stsndard should be spplied In accounting for a transaction or event that Invoives & ransfer of functions or merger.
It furthermore oovers Definitions, identifying the scquirer and transferor, Determining the tranafer date, Asssts scquired or
trapsfared apd Iablitles masumen or miinguishad, Accounting by the aoquirer and transferor, Disclosurs, Transkional
provisions as wall az the Effactive date of the standard.
‘The sffactiva date of the stendard Is for yesrs baginning on or after 01 April 2018.
The municipality expacis to adopt the standard for the firet tme in the 2012 annusi financlel stetements.
It is unfikely that the amendment will have a meterial impact on the municipality's annual financial statemaents.
GRAP 108 (ss cmended 2016): Transfers of funictions betwson entities not under common control
Amendmants to tha Standard of GRAP on Tranafar of Functions Batwesn Entites Not Under Common Control reaulted
from chenges made to IFRS 3 on Business Combinations (IFRS 3) as a resuft of the IASE's smandments on Annual
Impreverents t IFRSs 2010 = 2012 Cycls ivsued In Dacembar 2013,
The most significant changes to the Standard are:

¢,  |ASB amendments: To require contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability to be meeasurad

st fair value at sach reporting perlod.

The effective date of the arendmant [s for ysars beginning on or after 01 April 2014,
The municipally expects to adopt the amendmant for the first time In the 2019 annuel financial stetemants,
It Is uniiksly that the amendment wili have a matarial Impact on the municipality's annual {hancial statements.
GRAP 107; Margers
The chjactive of this Standard is to sstablish accounting principles for the acquirer in fransfer of functions beiwesn entities
not under cemmon cortrol, |t requires an entity thet prepares and presents financis! statements under the accrual basls of
acoounting to apply this Standard fo a fransadtion or othar event that meets the definition of a transfer of functions, [t

Inciuces & disgram and requiras that entitiea conaider the diagram In determining whether this Standard should ba applied
In accounting for & transaction or event that involves a tranefer of functions or merger.
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West Coast District Municipality
Annual Financlal Stataments for the year ended 20 Juna 2018

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2. New otandards and Interpretations {continusd)

#t furthermora covers Definitions, identiiying a transfer of functions bstween entities nof under common control, The
acquisition method, Recagnising and measuring the differanca between the assets acquinad and liabllitles assumed and the
consideretion {ransforred, Messursment period, Delermining what Is part of a fransfer of functions, Subsaquent
mensurement and accounting, Disclosure, Tranaltional provisions as well as the Effective date of the standard,

The effactive date of the standard ls for ysars beginning on or after 01 April 2018,

The municipality axpects to adopt the stendard for the first ime in the 201¢ annual financial statements,

it is unilkaly that the amendment wil have a matsrial impect on the municipality’s annual financlal statements.
GRAP 108: Statutory Recaivablss

The objective of this Standard is: to prescribe accounting rquirements for the recognition, measurament, presantation and
disclosure of statutory recalvables.

it furthermore cowers: Dafinitions, recognition, derscognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure, transitonal
pravisions, as well as the effactive date,

The affactive dats of the standard Is not yet set by the Minister of Finance.

The murticipafity expects o adopt the standard for the first time when the Minister sets the effective date for the standard.
It la untlkely thet the standard wil have a materief Impact on the municipality’s annual financial statements.

GRAP 108: Accounting by Principals and Agants

The objective of this Standard is fo oulfine printiples to be used by an entity to assess whather it Is party to a principal-
agent arrangement, end whether it s a principal or an sgent in undertaking transactions in terms of such an amangement.
The Standard does not infroduce new recognition or measursment raguirements for revenus, sxpanses, assets and/or
llabilties that reault from principal-egent arangementa. The Standard doss however provide guidance on whather ravenus,
-expensas, assets and/or liabilities should be recognised by an agant or a principal, as well as preacribe what information
should be discloser when an entity Is & princpal or an sgent.

it furtharmons covers Definitions, Identifying whether an entity Is & principal or agent, Accounting by = principal or agent,
Presantation, Discicsure, Transitionsl provisione and Effeciive date.

The effective date of the standard Is not yet set by the Minlster of Finance.

Tha municipality axpacts to adopt the standand for tha first time when the Minister sets the affective date for the standard.
‘The impact of this standard Is curnently being sssessed.

IGRAP 11: Conuolidstion = Spacial purpose sntities

An entlly may ba crested to accomplish a narrow and welldefined objective (8.9, to effect a leass, research and
developrmant activifles or & securitisation of financial assets). Such a specisl purpose entity ('SPE") may take the form of &
corporation, trust, partnership or unincorporated entity. SPEs often are crested with legal amangaments that Impose strict
and sometimes parmanant imits on the declsion-maldng powers of their management over the operations of the SPE.
Frequently, these provisions specify that the pollcy gulding the ongolng activities of the S8PE cannot be modified, other than
perhaps by Its creator or spansor (s they operate on so-called ‘autopilot’). The aponsor (or enfity on whose behalf the SPE
was creatad) frequanily transfers asssts to the SPE, obisins the right to use asseis held by the SPE or parforms sarvicas
for the SPE, while other parties ('capital previders”) may provide the funding io the SPE. An entity thet anhgagas in
frensactions with an SPE (frequentfy ths creator or sponsor) may In substance controf the 8PE. A beneficlal interest In an
SPE may, for sxample, taks the form of a debt Instrumant, an equity Instrument, a participation right, & residual Interest or &
lease. Some beneficial Interests may simply provide the holdar with a fixad or stated rate of retum, while others give the
holder rights or acoess o other future economic bensfits or sarvice potentlal of the S8PE’s ectivities. In most cases, tha
creator or sponsor {or the entity on whose behalf the SPE was crealed) retains a significant beneficial Interest In the SFE's
activities, even though It mey own [itle or none of tha SPE's net assets.
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West Coast District Municipality
Annual Financial Staismaents for the year snded 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annual Financlal Statements

2  Now siandards and Intarpretations {continund)

The Standard of GRAP on Consclidated are! Separats Financial Biatements requires the consolidetion of entiiies that are
controlied by the reperiing enttty. However, the Btandard of GRAP dose not provide explict guidance on the consolidetion
of S8PEs. Ths issus is under what circumstancas an enlity should consolidate an SPE. This interpretation of the Siandards
of GRAP does not apply to post-employment benefit plans or other long-term employee benefit plane to which tha Standard
of GRAP on Employee Benefite applies.

A transfer of aassis from an entity to an SPE may qualily as o sale by that antity. Even if the transfer doss quellfy as a ssle,
the provisions of the Standard of GRAP on Consolidated and Ssparate Financial Statements and this Interpretetion of the
Standards of GRAP may mean that the entity should consolidate the SPE. This interpratation of the Standards of GRAP
does not eddress the circumatances in which sale treaiment should apply for the entlfy or the slimination of the
consequences af such a sale upon consollkdation.

The effective date of this interpratation la depandent on/in conjunction with the eflective dete of GRAP106, 108 and 107.
The municipelity axpects to adopt the Interpratation for the firat ime In tha 2019 annuel financial stetements,

it is unlikely thet the interpretation will have a material Impact en the municipality’s annuat financlal statements.

IGRAP 12: Jointly cortralisd sniitiec = Non-monetary contributions by vontures

Paragraph .54 in the Standard of GRAP on Interesis In Joint Ventures refers to both contributions and sales between &
venturer and a joint venture as follows: Whan a venturer coriributes or selis asssta to & Joint venture, recognition of any
portion of a gain or loss from the transaction shali reflect ths aubatance of the trensaction’. In addition, paragraph 31 In the
Standard of GRAP on Interests in Joint Ventures ssys that ‘a jointly controfled entity Is & [olnt venture that invoives the
ssteblishment of & corporation, perinership or other entity in which esch venturer has an intereet’. Thare is no explicit
gl.lt:mm:(e‘;‘a:l:Ea H_tlo recognition of gaine and losses resulting from contributions of non-monetsry asseis 1o jointly controfled
ardiflag (" )-

Contributions o 8 JCE sre fransfers of aesats by venturers in exchange for an interest In the net asest in the JCE. Such
contributions may take various forms. Contribuiions mey be mads simultansousaly by tha venturers either upen establishing
the JCE or subsaquantly. The congiderafion recsived by tha verturer(s) in exchange for assets contributed to the JOE may
also include cash or other congidersiion that doss not dapend on fuiure cash flows of the JCE (‘additional considerstion’).

The [ssues are:
¢ when the sppropriate portion of gains or losses resulting from & contribution of & non-monetery assetto & JCE In
exchangs for an Intersat in the net assets In the JCE should bs recognised by the venturer in surplus or deficit;
«  how additional consideration should ba accounted for by the venturer; and
»  how any unrenlised gain or loss should be preserted In the consolidated

This interpretation of the Standarde of GRAP deals with the venturer's accounting for non-monetary contributions to a JCE
In exchange for n interast in tha net assats in tha JCE thet is accounted for using either the squity methed or proportionate
consclidation.

The effactive dute of this interpretution Is dapendant onfin conjuncion with the effective date of GRAP 106, 106 and 107.
The municipality expacis to adopt the interpretation for the first time In the 2016 snnusi financial statements.

It is unlikely that the interpretation will have & matarial Impact on the municipality's annua! financial statements.

IGRAP 17: Servics Concassion Arrangements where ¢ Grantor Controls o Significant Residuat Interest in zn Asset
This Interpretetion of tha Standords of GRAP provides guidence to the granior whare It has entered into a senvice
concasslon arrangement, but enly controls, through ownership, baneficlal antiiemant or otherwise, a significant residuel
intsrest In a service concassion assst at the e of the amangement, whera the amangement does not consiitute a lsase.

Thie Interpretetion of the Standards of GRAP shgll not be mpplled by analogy to other types of transactions or
arangemants.
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West Coast District Municipality
Annual Financlal Statemants for the year ended 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annual Financlal Statements

2. Noewstandards and Interpretations (continued)

A service concession armangement is & contractusl amangement belwaen a grantor and an operator In which the oparator
uses tha sarvice concassion asset io provide 2 mandstad function on bahaif of tha grantor for a specified period of time.
The operstor is compensated for its services over the paricd of the servics concession amangament, either through
payments, or through recelving & right to earn revenue from third parly users of the service concesaion asset, or the
oparator ks given access 1o another revenue-genarating aseet of tha granior for its ues.

Befors the grantor can recognise & service concession asset in accordence with the Standard of GRAP on Sarvios
Concession Armangements: Grantor, both the criterlm as noted in peragraph .01 of this Interpretation of the Standards of
GRAP need to ba met In some servioe conoussion arrgngamenta, the grantor only controls the residual intarest in the
seivice concession asset at the end of the arrangement, and can thersfore not recagniss the service concession asset In
terms of tha Standard of GRAP on Service Concession Amangements: Grantor.

A consensus Is neached, In this Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP, cn the recagnitlon of the parformanca obligation
ar the right to receive a significant mterast in a sefvics concession asset.

Tha affectiva date of the Interpratation | not yet sat by the Miniater of Finance.

;rhe munl:lo%lllty expatts to adapt the interpretation for the first ime when the Minlster sets the effective date for the
nerpretation,

It Ia uniikely that the Intarpretation will have a material impact on the municipallty's annusl financial statements.
IARAP 18; Interpretation of the Standard of GRAP an Racognition and Derecognition of Land

Thie Interpretation of the Standaris of GRAP spplies to the Inttial recognition end derecoghition ¢f land in an entity's
financial statemaents. It also considara joint control ef land by more than one entity.

When an entity concludies that £ controls the land afier applying the principles in this interprotation of the Standards of
GRAP, It applies the applicable Standard of GRAF, |.e. the Standard of GRAP on Invenicries, Investment Proparty {GRAP
18), Proparty, Plant and Equipment (GRAP 17} or Herltrge Asgets, As this interpretation of the Standards of GRAP does
hot apply 1o the classHication, initial and subssquert maasurement, prasentation and discloaure requirements of land, the
eniity appliss the appliceble Standard of GRAP to account for the land once conirel of the lanhd has baen dstermined. An
entity aisc applies the applicable Standards of GRAP to the derscognition of land when it concludes that it does not contral
the land after applying the principles in this Interpretation of the Standands of GRAP,

In accordarce with the principles In the Stancards of GRAP, builldinge and cther structures on the land are accounted for
separately. These assets are accounted for separately as tha future sconomic benefits or service potantial embedied in the
land differs from those includad In bulldings end cther struciures. The recognition and derecognition of bulldings and ather
structures ara not sddressed In this Irnterpratation of the Standards of GRAP.

Tha effective date of tha Interpratation is for years baginning on or after ¢4 April 2019.

The municipality expects to adept the intempretation for the first time in the 2018 annual financlal statsmants.

It Is uniikely that the intsrpretetion will have a muterial impact on the municipality’s annual finencial statements.
IGRAP 18: Llabllities to Pay Lovies

Thie Interpretation of the Standands of GRAP provides guidance on the accounting for levies In the financial statements of
the entity thet is paying the levy. &t clarifiss when entlties nesd tu recognise « liabfity to pay a lavy that Is accountsd for in
accordance with GRAP 19.

;l'o clarify the accounting for a liabiity fo pay a lavy, this Interpretation of the Standarda of GRAP addressss the following
saUes;
= What Is the obligating event that gives rise to the recognition of a liability to pay a levy?
*  Does sconcmic compulsion to continue to operate in a future period create & constructive obligation o pay & levy
thet will be triggered by cperating In that fiture period?
*  Does tha going concam assumpton Imply that an entlty hes & present obligation to pay a levy that will be
friggered by operating in & fulure paried?
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West Coast District Municipality
Annual Financlal Statemants for the year ended 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2  Newstandardc and Interpretutions (continued)
*  Doss the momm:n :l; a liabllity to pay a levy arise at a point in time or does I, In some circumatances, arise
over tim
e What [s the obligating event that gives risa fo the recognition of a Rabiiity to pay & levy that Is triggered If &
minimum threshold |s reached?

Consensus reached in thie Interpratation:

+  The obiigating event that givea rise to a Hability to pay @ jevy Is the activity that triggers the payment of the levy,
et identified by the legisiation;

s Anorrwuounothmaeommﬂv.obliglﬂonhplynhwlhltwllbotﬂggemdhyopunﬂnglnaﬂﬂure
period a3 a result of the entity being economically compelled to continue to operate In that future period;

+  The preparation of financial statements under the going cencem sasumption does not Imply thet an entity has a
present obiigation to pay & levy thet will be iriggered by operating in & future pariod;

s The liebllity to pay a levy Is recogrised progreasively i the cbligating event occurs over a pericd of tim;

»  If an obligation to pay a levy I tnggered when & minimum threshokd Is reached, the accouriting for the llabllity
that arisss from thet obligation shall be consistent with the principles estabilshed In this intsrpretation of the
Standards of GRAP; and

»  An antity shall recogniss an asset, in accordance with the relevant Standerd of GRAP, if it has prepald a lavy but
does not yel have a present obfigation to pay that levy.

Tha effactive dats of tha intarpratation |a not yat set by the Minister of Finance,

Thhl: municlpallty expects to adopt the Interpretation for the first time when the Minister sels the effective data for the
rpretation.

It is unlikely that the Interpretation will have a material impsct on the municipality's annusi financial staternents,
ORAP 42 (as amended 2018): Inventories

Amendments to the Standard of GRAP on Inventories resulted from inconsistencies in measurement requirements in GRAP

23 and other asset-related Standards of GRAP In relation to the frestment of transaction costs. Othar changes resulted

ismuad d;ara:rsdll m;g:am IPSAS 12 on Invantories (IPSAS 12) as & result of the IPSASB's Improvemants to IPSASs 2015
n .

The most significant changes to the Standerd srw:
«  QGaneral improvemants: To clarify the frestment of transaction costs and other costs inourrad on asssts acquired
in non-exchange transactions to be in fins with the principle In GRAP 25 (paragreph .12)
+  |PEASB amendments: To slign terminclogy In GRAP 12 with that in IPSAS 12. The term “ammunition” In IPSAS
12 was replaced with the term "milltary Inventorles® and provides a description of what it comprises in
accordance with Govemment Finance Statistice terminoiogy

The effective date of the amendmant ia for years baginning en or afier 01 April 2018,

The municipality expects o adopt the amendment for the firet time In the 2018 annual financial staterments.

1t is unitkaly that the armendment wik have a material Impact on the municipality's annual financisl sitatements.
GRAP 16 (a» amended 20€8): Investment Proparty

Amencments to the Standard of GRAP on investment Property resulied from editerlal changes to the ariginal text and
inconsiatencies in measurement requirements In GRAP 23 and other asset-related Standards of GRAF in relation io the
trestment of transsction costs. Other changes resulied from changes made to LAS 40 on Investment Property (lAS 40} s
result of tha IABB's amendments on Annual Improvements to IFRS8s 2011 =~ 2013 Cycie [seusd in Decemnber 2013.

The most significant changes to the Standard are:

+ General improvements: To clarily the treatment of fransaction cosis and other cosis incumed on asaets acquired
in non-axchange transactions to be In ne with the principle In GRAP 23 (paragreph .12); and To dlarify the
measurement principle when assets may be acquinsd In exohenge for & non-monatary anaet or naseta, or &
combination of meonetary and nen~monatary acsets.

« |ASB amendments To ciarfy the Inlerrelationship between the Standards of GRAP on Tranafer of Functions
Betwesn Entities Not Unidar Common Cortire! and Investmant Property whaen classiying investment property or
owner-occupled proparty.
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Waest Coast District Municlpality
Annuel Financial Statemants for the year endad 30 Juna 2018

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements_

2. Newctandards cnd Interpretations {continued)

Tha effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 Aprll 2018.

The municipality expscts to adopt the amandment for the first time in the 2018 annal financial statsments.
Itis unlikaly that the amandmant will hava a materia} impect on the municipality's annual financlal statements,
ORAP 17 (ae amended 2018): Property, Plant and Equipment

Amandments to the Standard of GRAP on Property, Plant and Equipmant resulted from editorial changes to the original text
and inconsistencies in measuremant requirements in GRAP 23 and other essat-ralated Standaras of GRAP in relation to
the treatment of iranaaction costs. Other changes resulted from changes made to IPSAS 17 on Proparty, Plant and
Equipment (IPSAS 17) as a resuk of the IPSASB's Improvememis to IPSASs 2014 fssued In Januaty 2015 and
Improvemants to IPSASzs 20185 lssuad In March 20186.

The most significant changas to the Standard are:

*  Goeneral improvements: To clarify the treatment of transaction costs and other costs incurred on asseia acquired
In non-axchange transactions to ba in hne with the principla in GRAP 23 (paragraph .12); and Te clarify the
measuremant principle when assets may ba acquired In exchangs for a non-monstary saset or assets, or a
combination of monetery and no asaets,

*  [PSASE amendments: Te clarlly the revalustion methodology of the carrying smount and accumulated
depreciation when an llem of propery, plant, and squipment [s revalued; To clarify acceptable methods of
depreciating assets; To align teminelogy in GRAF 17 with that In IPGAS 17. The term "specialist miitary
sguipment’ In IPSAS 17 wae replaced with the term “weapon systems" and provides a desacription of what it
compriees In accordance with Government Finance Statistica terminclogy; and To define 2 bearer piant and
Inciude bearer plants within the scope of GRAP 17, while the producs growing on bearer plants will rematn within
the scope of GRAP 27.

The sffsctive dats of the amendmant is for yasrs baginning on or after 01 April 2018,
The municipality expects to adopt the amendmert for the first ime In the 2018 annual financial statsments.
It is unlikely that the amandment will have & meterial impact on the municipality's annual financial statements.
GRAP 21 (as emended 2018); impainnent of non<cash-generating anssis
Amendmenis to the Standard of QRAP on impairment of Non-cash Genersting Assels resulted from chengea made to
IPSAS 21 on Impalment of Non-Cash-Genarating Assets (IPSAS 21) ap & result of the IPSASE's Impalrmant of Revelued
Assets [ssuad in March 2018,
The most significant changes to the Standard are:
=  |PSASB amendments: To updete the Besls of conclusions and Comparison with IPSASs 10 reflect the IPSASB's
recont declulon on the impaiment of revalued assets.
The effective date of the amendment Is for years baginning on or after 01 April 2018.
The municipality expects to adopt the amandment for the first tima In the 2018 annual financlal statemanis.
i Is unlikely that the amendment wil! have a materlal Impact on the municipality's annual financial statermnents.
GRAP 26 {as amended 2018): impalrment of cash-gensrating sssets
Amendments Changes to the Standard of GRAP on Impalrment of Cash Generating Asssts resulted from changes mede to
IPSAS 26 on Impairment of Cash-Ganerating Asaets (IPSAS 26) as a result of the IPSASB’s Impaiment of Revalued
Assats lasued in March 2018,
The most significant changes o the Standard are:
¢+  |PSASB amendments: To update the Basis of condlusions snd Comparison with IPSASs to reflect the IPSASE's
recent decision on the Impaimment of revalued assats.

Tha effective date of the amendment Is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2018,
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West Coast District Munlicipality
Annual Financiel Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annual Financlal Statements

2. New ctandards snd interpretationo (continued)

The municipality sxpects to adopt the amendment for the first ime In the 2018 snnusl financial statements.

It Is unikely that the amendmant wil have a malerial impact on the municipality's annual financial statoments.
GRAP 27 (as amendsd 2018): Agriculture

Amendmants to the Standard of GRAP on Agrioulture resuiisd from changss mada to IPSAS 27 on Agriculture (IPSAS 27)
a8 & result of the IPSASE's Improvements to IPSASs 2015 Issusd In March 2018.

The most significant changes to the Sisndard ara:

e  [PSASB amendments: To dafine a bearer plant and Include baarer plants within the scope of GRAP 17, while the
produce growing on bearer plants will remain within the scope of GRAP 27, In addition to the changes made by
the IPSASB, a conssguential amendment hes been made to GRAP 103 on Herliage Assets. The IPSASBE
currently doss net have a pronouncement on this toplo.

The affectiva date of the amendment is for years beginning on or aftar 01 Aprit 2018,

The municipaiity expscts to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2018 annusl financlal statemenits.

It Is unikely that the amendmant will have & materiel impact on the municipallty's annuai financial statemants.
GRAP M (as amended 2016): intangibla Acyets

Amendments to the Standssd of GRAP on Intangible Assets reautted from inconsistenciea In measurement requirements in
GRAP 23 and other asset-reiated Standards of ORAP in relation to the trestment of transaction costs. Other changss
resultad fram changes made to IPSAS.31 on Intangible Assets (IPSAS 31) as & result of the IPEASB's Improvements to
IPSABs 2014 issusd in January 2016.

The most significant changes o the Standard are:

e General improvements: To add the treaiment of transaction costs and other cosis incurred on assels acquired in
non-exchange transactions to be in lne with the principle in GRAP 23 (paragreph .12); and To clarify tha
measurement principle when assets may be scquired In exchange for a non-monetery asast or assets, or &
combination of monetary and non-monetary asseis

» IPSASB amendments: To clarfy the revalustion methodology of the camying emount and accumuleted
depreciation when an item of intangible assets is revalued; and To clarlty scceptabls methods of depraciating

The effsciive date of the amendmant Is for years baginning on or &fter 07 April 2018,

The municipality expects ta adopt the amendment for the first ims In the 2016 annual financiel statements.

It Is untikly that the amendment will have & mcterial Impact on the munioipality's annual financial statements.

GRAP 103 (so amended 2018): Herltage Asesis

Amendments to the Standard of GRAP on Herftage Assats resultsd from inconsistenciss in maasuremant requirements In
GRAP 23 and other assst-elated Standsrds of GRAP in relation to the treatment of transaction coafs. Other changes
resultad from editoral changes to the original text.

The most significant chariges to the Stancdard ane:

»  Gananl Improvemants: Ta clarity the treatment of transaction costs snd other cosis Incurred on ageets acquired
in non-mxchange transactions to be n Iins with the principle in GRAP 23 (paragraph ,12); and To darlfy the
measurament principle when sssets may be acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or sassts, or &
combination of monatary arxi non-monatary assets

‘Tha effectiva dete of the amendment la for yaars beginning on or afier 01 Apri 2016,
The munioipality expects to adopt the amendment for the first ime In the 2018 annual financial statemeris.

it is unilkely that the amendment will have a meterial impact on the municipality's annual financial staternents.
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West Coast District Municlpality

Annual Financlal Statemants for the year ended 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annual Financlal Statements

Flgures in Rand 2018 2017

3. Inventories

Consumable Inventory 4701 825 5 170 268

Water Stack 2328628 1918775

7 030 453 7 087 073

Inventory pisdged as security

No Inventory was pledge as securify.

4. Other recelvabios from axchanges transactions

Watar : Sales 3 164 983 4 033758

Fire Services : Saldanha and West Coast - 337 B21

Operaiing Laasas 252 957 222 081

Dther 595 055 1362 787

insurance Claims - 49 268

Roads receivable » 20588 350

Advance paymenis : Membars faas N 1608 748

Net Balance (Allowance for Impalment) {185 B30) (13 880)
3647368 25078833

Reconcilllation of allowancs for impairment

Other receivables from non-axchange tansactions (185 630) {13 990}

5. Trade recelvables from exchange transactions

Gross balances

Elegtricity 80078 88 138

Waler B 152 448 3743 191

Sewerage 16 145 14 B40

Other N ..

Housing remtal 128 6908 130 051
882577 39T 21T

5
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Woest Coast District Municipality
Annual Financizl Statements tor the year ended 20 June 2018

Notes to the Annual FInancial Statements

Flgures in Rand 2018 2017
5. Trado recelvables from axchanpe transsationc (continued)
Less : Aliowancs for Impeirment {4 586) (23 578)
MNet balance
Elettriclly 90078 88 135
Water 8152 448 3743 11
Seworage 16 145 14 840
Other =2 .
Housing rental 123 908 130 051
Net belance {Alowance for impalment) (4 538) {23 578}
8377 991 3950 839
Recanclliation of sllowance for impalrmant {Including othor recelvcbies from
sxchengs transactions)
Balance at the bagimning of the yewr {37 5608) (363 303)
Contribution to provision (151 188) -
Debrt impaliment writton off against provision 18 548 343077
Furxds recoverad - {17 342}
{170 218} (a7 58B)
Reconciliation of sllowsnce for impairment botwosn trade and other
racelvables
Trade recevebles from exchange transactions (4 588) {23 678)
Other caivables from exchange trensactions {165 830} {13 880)
(70 218) (37 568)
Age analysis per asrvice (net of allowance for impalrment) Service Dabtors
(Water, Electricity, Sewerage and Other)
Curment (0-30 days) 76768 388 3568718
30-80 days 241 444 108 418
81-80 days 28 488 39748
81-120 days 3072 10 473
121-365 days 8 200 4813
8 258 @89 3044 168
Housing Reninl
Gunent (0-30 days) 82 258 80 542
31-50 days 26 342 31614
81-80 days 15 310 17 895
81-120 days R :
123 908 130 051
Summary of debtors age analycla (Tredo recelvabloo)
Curent (0-30 days) 8068 822 3 869 258
31-80 dnys 267 786 230 032
81-80 days 44 788 57 641
91120 days 3072 10 473
121-385 days 8208 6813
>365 days - .
Leas : Alowance for Impaiment {4 6BB) (23 578)
8377 9 3650638
NG %
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Woest Coast District Municipality
Annusl Financlal Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figurea In Rand

2018 2017

€. Cash and cash squivalenis
Cash and cash squivalents conaist of:

Cash book balances
Floais

Total cash and cash aguivalents

The municipality had the following bank aceounts

Account numbar / description Bank statemant balances

30 June 2018 30.June 2017 30 June 2018
Flrst N;tllonul Bank - Current 26561008416 224719532 221488233
Accot

280 BO7 627 234 433 55
450 450

269 80B 07T 234 434 0

Cash book balances
30 June 2018 3D.June 2017 30 June 2018
251008414 224710532 221487899

First N:ttionll Bank - Cumrent 18 800 416 8763612 4 871 030 18708 213 9 744 019 4 981275
Floats 480 450 480 450 450 450
Shor-term Investmenta - - 485 240 - - 465 249
Total 200800280 2344830804 2200235862 200008077 234434001 228914873
Average rats of ratum on short-term investments 8.02% 3.79%
7. [nveatment property

2018 2017

Cost/ Accumulated Carrying vaiue
Velugtion  deprecistion
and
accumulated
impalrment

Investment property & 508 060 (988 078) 45394072

Cost/ Acscumuiated Carrying valus
Valuation dapmei:ﬂun
an

asccumulated
impalrment

5 508 05O (935 '768) 4572282

Pledged an sscurlty

No properties was pledges as security in the current and prier financlal perfod nor restrictions.

Fair value of invesiment proparty - Bulldings
Falr valus of Invastimant property - Land

13677380 13877 360
25600000 26 800 000

The municipalfity owne a beach development (Qanzekraal). The property I8 2332.6578 hectaras and the municipality
recelves rental income (camping faea). A register contalning the Information required by section 83 of the Municipel Finance
Managament Act ke avallable for inapection at the ragistered office of the municipality. Please refer to appendix B of
Property, plant end equipment, Intangible and Investment property for detmied disclosures.

Rantal revenus from Investment proparty wes R3 543 288 (2017 : R3 466 863) as discloscd In the Statemaent of Financial

Performancs.
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West Coast District Municlpallty
Annual Financlal Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annual Financlal Statements

Figures in Rand

2018

2017

8. Property, plani and equipment

2018

2017

Cost/ Actumulated Carrying value Cost/ Accumuleted Carrying velue

Valugtion  deprecistion valuation  depreciation

and and

accumulatad accimulnted

Impairment impairment
Land 268 760 390 - 28760300 26760380 - 28780380
Buidings 40854852 (22805507) 27040145 40 Ba4 BES (20 411 890) 20472966
Infrastucture 176061¢8 (147932) 1012684 821 608 {180 280} 481 328
Other $7726004 (48431012) 21205082 64 142010 {44 025 414) 20118588
Tolal 145102652 (80384431) T76T182H 1M 408 881 (84 507 384) 76 811 277

Pledged 2o securlty

Nao properties were pledged a3 security in the current and prior financia! period.

A register containing the information required by Saction 83 of the
inspection st the reglatered office of the municipallty. Plensa refer to
intanglbles and Investment property for detalled disclosure.The fransfers

concession arrangement.
8. Intanglble conelx

Municipel Finance Management Act Is avalisbla for

sppendix B of Proparty, plant and equipment,

in appendix B relates to the water service

2018 2017
Cost/ Accumulated Canying value Cost/ Accumulated Carrying vatue
Valuation amortisation Valustion amortisation
and end
accumulated ascumuiated
Impalrment Impalrment
intangible asssts 85488 000 (25188 147) 403531853 654BB 000 (7 194 988) 68203 012

Pladged ac security

No mssets have been pledged s necurity in the current and prior financial period.

Other Information

The municipallty ecquired Intangible assets with finlte
be uset 15 sllooets the depreciabls smount of an sasst on
R1 048 881 (2017) Please refer to appendix B of Property,
detalied disclosure. The municipality acquired intangible asasts In terma of the eoncass
usetul ves of four years ending 30 December 2022. The transfers In nppenclix B relstes

amangement. R40 242 683 (2018) and R67 248 151 (2017)
10, Trade payablea from sxchange transuctions

Sundry crediions

Payments recelved In advance - contract In process

Accrued leave pay

Retentions

Trade paysbles

Deforred opersting lense pavments
Roads payable

66

a systematic basis
plant and equipment, Inten

ussful iives of five years. The siraight-ine methed of emariisation will
over lis useful life. RB8 420 (2018) and
glibles and investment property for
lon srrangerment with the finite

to the weter service concession

1610418 1579287
668 B31 548 838
8041973 8360 112
g7 220 131 497
2914486 3858832
13812 6274
2 144 044 =
16 299 467 14404 818
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Woest Coast District Municipality
Annual Financlal Statements for the year snded 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures In Rand 2018 2017
11. VAT payable
VAT 201 return as at 30 June 75879 530 171
VAT Qutput payable from debtors 1 487 161 948 500
1 553 040 1478871
VAT is payable on the payment basis. Only ence paymeant are racelved from debtors VAT Is pald to SARS.
12. Unapent conditional granis and receipts
See note 20 for detelled reconciliation of grants,
Thess amounts gre Invested and ring-fenced within the municipallly’s cash and cash equivalents unth utilised,
Unapent conditional grants and receipts comprices of :
Wastern Cape Financiei Management Grant (MSCOA) - 142 164
Western Cape Financlal Mansgement Grant (IDF & Intemship) 370 342 868 248
Working for Water - 139 672
Greanast Municipafity Competition - 26275
Local Govemmant Graduste Internship Grant - 82 888
Rurat Roads Management 348 257 443 720
Donations Mayor - 10817
Finance Management Spacial Development 600 000 -
Cepacity Bulkiing Health Services 104 661 v
1418 580 17112684
13. Employee Benefits
Reconclilation of shartderm portion of smployse Opening Additions Utillsed Total
bonafite - 2018 Balance during the
year
Shor-term portion of medical aid bensfits 3435329 3280453 (3435329) 3289453
Short-term portion of long service awards 948 643 845 800 (847 785) 944 848
Short-term portion of performance bonus 128 634 252 980 (126 934) 252 680
Shaort-tarm portion of bonus 4216 185 4808033 (4274921) 4547 297
8725 081 8084286 (B6A4ABTE) HOM G
Raconeillaion of short-tarm portion of smpicves Opening Addidons Utilised Total
benefits - 2017 Balance during the
year
Sheri-term portion of medical aikd banefits 2 §04 000 3435326 (2904000) 3435320
Short-farm pertion of long service awards 503 000 946 643 (503 000) 948 843
Short-tarm portion of performance benus 280 938 126 934 (280 838) 126 834
Short-term portion of bonus 3758438 4846077 (4088330) 4218186
7 447 378 0084083 (7TT7T 288} 8725 091

The parformance borus represenis managemant's beat estimate of the municipality’s liabllty under performance contracts

of 8¢ 57 employses.

The bonus represanfs management's best estimabe of ths municipality's liablity to pay employees thirteenth cheque.

Refer to disciosure note 18 (long eervice ewards) and note 15 (medical ald benefiis) for detail discloaure.
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West Coast District Municlpallty
Annue! Financial Statements for the year andad 30 Juns 2018

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figurez in Rand 2018 2017

14. Long term Hablliities

Local reglatsred stock loana 40232924 67246 151
Less : Current portion transferred io current llabiities {13079 773) (17003 688)

27183151 40 242583

The munidipality has a unsecured axismal laan ai the Development Bank of Bouth Affica at a fixed rate of 8.80500%. The
redeemable date of the logn Is 31 October 2022, The loan [s redeamed on a hal-ysarly basis. The amount bomewed In
ferms of the [oan was to provide finance for oapital projects within the Water Servicss Depariment.

Tha municipality has a unsecured external loan at Sanjem at a feed rate of 12.54%. The redesmabls date of the loan Is 28
June 2018, The loan e redesmed on u hall-ysarly basls. The emount borowed in terma of the loan was to provide finance
for capital projacts within the Waler Eetvices Department.

The municipality has a unsecursd exismal loan at the Davalopment Bank of South Aftica et a fixed rate of 8.76% and
13.38%. The redeemeble date of the loan |s 30 June 2020. The loan is redesmed on & hatt-ysarly basls. The amount
parmawsd in terms of the loan waa to provide fingnos for capital projects within the Water Services Department.

The municipallty haa a unsecured external loan at ABSA of South Africa gt & foead rats of 40.87%. Tha redeamable date of
the loan Is 21 January 2021, The loan is redesmed on a half-yearly basia as at 31 January and 31 July. The amount
borrowed In terma of the ioan was to provide finunce for capital projects within the Water Sarvicss Department.

Refer to appendix E (1) for more detall on long term liabllitics. The lisbilites relates to the water service concesalon
arrangsment. Refer 1o note 50 for the asest recelvable.
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West Coast District Munlcipality
Annual Financlal Statements for the yssr ended 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annual Financlal Statements

Figures In Rand

2018

2017

15. Madical aid benefita
Defined benefit plan

The most recsnt actuarial velusdion of five present value of the cbligation were carried out at 30 Juna 2018 by One Pangasa

Expertise & Solutions.
Defined benefit plan

Changa In labllity

Opening balance

Sarvice cost

Interest cost

Recognisad actuarial (gein) loss

Benefits paid

Curmant partion transfarred to current liabllites
Incluzion of minimum sarvica conditions

Not axpanses recognised In the statement of financial performance
Current sarvice cost

Iinterest cost

Actuarial {gain) lcas

Total Invkided In employes reisted costs
Unrecognised actuarial gain and loss

Comidor madmum
New (galn}/ loss

Changes in the fair value plan sasots are ns follows :
Opening balance
Contributions by employer

69

88430357 65012298
62478009 63420000
2168680 2822000
6 063 818 6 701 000
(2802225) (6 083 504}
(2801934} (2 568 260}
145 678 (531 328)
- (1252 088)
65440904 62476 800
2156860 2822000
8083818  §701 000
(2902 225) (6 083 504)
8320063 3428496
(2802 226) (6083 504)
2802225 6083 5M
3435320 2904 000
{145 878) 531 320
3280 463 3435329
S
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Waest Coast Dictrict Municipaiity
Annus! Financial Statemants for the year ended 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2018 2017

15. Medical aki bensfits (continuad)

<oy assumptions uced

Assumptions used st the reporting date:

Discount rates used 10,88 % 8,44
Consumaer price infiation 713 % 8,24
Healkh cars cost inflation 8,83 % 7.74
Net disoount raie 207T% 1,68

It ks the relative levels of the discount rate and health care cost inflation to one another that ere important, rather then the
nominal values. The ssaumption regarding the relative levels of thass two ratas Is our expectation of the long-term average.

GRAP 26 defines the detsrmination of the tnvestment return assumption to be used as the rete that can be determined by
refarencs to markst ylalds (a1 the reparting dete) on governmeant bonds. The cumrency and tem of the govemmsnt bonds
should be sonsistent with the currency and eetimated term of the ebligation.

The mathodciogy of setting the financial ssumptions has been updated to be more duration specific. At the previous date,
30 June 2017 the durstion of llsbllities was 18,80 years. At this durstion the discount rate determined by ualng the Bond
Exchange Zsre Coupen Yield Curve as at 28 June 2016 [s 10.88% per annum, and the yieks on the inflation linked bonds of
& m;m OIW:S abo)tft 3.03% par annum, implying an underlying expactetion of inflation of 7.13% per annum {[1+10.88%
- +3, =1

A healthcars cost inflation rate of 8.83% wae assumed, This |s 1.5% In excess of the axpected inflation over the expacted
tarm of the llablity, consistent with the previous actuary.

Hewsver, [t |s the relative levels of the discount rate and healthcare Inflation to ane another that are important, mther than
tha nominal valuse, Ws have thus assumed a net discount factor of 2.07% per annum {1-+10.88%) / [1+8.83%)] - 1}

The dsmographic and decrement assumptions were consistent in the previous and current valustion period, end are as
follown:

Active employoes Pansloners

Nommal retiremant age 65 .

Fully accruad age (io take acoount for 83

[-heaith and serly retirement

dacraments)

Employment age ussd for past setvice Actual service ages Actual service ages

Age differance between spouses & yaars Actugl ages used

Proportion marriad 90% assumed married at retirement Actuis! marital status

Mortality SA-20 (Normal) PA (80)
Tty ?
) i
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West Coast District Municipality
Annugl Financial Statements for the yesr ended 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annual Financlal Statements

Flgures in Rand 2018 2017

15. Medical ald beneflic (continued)
The withdrawal rates assumption used are as follows:

Ago Withdrawal rates (Malo} Withdrawal rates (Female)
20 18% 24%
25 12% 18%
30 10% 16%
a5 8% 10%
40 8% 8%
45 4% 4%
50 2% 2%
55 1% 1%
B0+ - -

Continuation Percenteges

The assumption is that the continuation of tha poat-employment health care subsidy would ba at 100% of active employees,
or thelr surviving depandents.

Employse benefit - roads recelvable (Medical akd)

in berms of the memorandum of agreement betwesn the Western Gape Provinclal Gevemment, Depariment of Publlc
Works and Transport, and past sxperiencs herean;, funds will be made available to muintain the approved organogram of
the roads division in the municipality. The future claim for roads steff for post smployment medical aid haa therefore been
raised as & long-tenn debter,

Employss benefits - roads recelvable (Medical ald)

Opening balance 20658333 18872878
Cumant senvice cost 652 268 706 692
Interest cost 1885 186 1 054 €88
Expecied benafits paid (1196 308) (1127 672)
Actuanal (loss) / gain 1 287 888 {8628 821)
Inclusion of minimum servica condition - {329 927)
23167268 20588 332
Statement of Financlal Posltion
Employes bensfita - roads receivable (curent xssets) 1436 222 1164 396
Employss banefits - roads recarvable (non-curment asssts) 21728048 10 361837

23167 268 20 558 333

ﬁ.'“:,-' £
i
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West Coast District Municipality
Annual Financiat Staterants for the yesr ended 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annual Financlal Statements

Figuras In Rand 2018 2017

16. Long-<erm portion of long servics avards

Long cervice awarda

Provision of long service awards 8948 814 8227 380
Less : Tranafemed to curmant provision (844 647) {848 843)
Net long service awards llablity 8004 167 T 280 737

A long satvice award is granted to munisipal employess after the compietion of fxed periods of continucus servica with the
municipaity. The provision represents an estimation of the awards to which smployees in the service of the municipality st
50 Juns 2018 bacome sriitled to in future, bassd on a actuarial veluation performed st that date.

g:lacmarlaivaluallon of the presant vaius of the obligation at 30 June 2018 was done by One Pangaea Experiise &

The future sarvice east for ensuring year |s established to be R730 274 whereas the intarest-cost for the next yeor is
sslimated to be R766 427.

The principal assumption used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were ss follows
s Dipsounted rate - £.03%

+  Genersl stlary inflation (long-tam) - 8.64%

=  Net effactive discount rate - 2.34%

»  Mortality - SAB5-80

=  Nomnal refirement age - 66
2018 - Detclle of smployecs efigible for long service awards are Active Salarien Waightad
detalled balow Employess  Waighiod Averape Fast

Average Ago  Servics
{yearc) {veara)
All amployeas 507 42 10
2017 - Detalls of employsce sliglble Active Salaries - Welghted Column Total
for long ssrvica awards are detalled Employses Woighted Average Past  heading
below Avernge Age Bervice
{yeara) (years)

Al employass 508 43 1 - 562
The amount recogrised |n the Statemant of Financial Position are as follows :
Present valua of fund cbligations 8 648 814 8 227 380
The amount recognised In the Statement of Financlal Performence are a0
Current service coats 730274 831000
Interest cosis 662 808 733 000
Actuarig! (pain)ioss on ths obligation 178 148 {868 820)

1 568 228 767 380

The movomant In ths long cervice awards Nablilty over the your Is as follows ;

Balanse at the beginning of the year 8 227 380 7 883 U00
Current servics costs T30 274 831 000
interest costs 808 T23 000
Benefits pald (847 795) (307 065)
Actumrial {gain)loss on the obligation 178 148 (702 555)

2 848 214 §227 380

The average lixbllity has Increased by 1% due to the sffect of an incraase in the average salary snd an Inorease in the
average past ssrvice, being mostly offsst by the effect of an increase in the nat discount rate,

m————-
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West Coast District Municlpality
Annual Financlal Statements for the ysar endad 30 Jure 2018

Notes to the Annual Financlal Statements
Figures in Rend 2018 2017

16. Long-term portion of long service avards {continued)

Thae toba! lisbifty has Increased by B.7% (or R721 434) due to the sbova, combined with the fact that there are 13 more
eligible émployees than at the iast valustion.

Changaa in withdrawal - The effect of 8 1% movemant In the withdrawsl rates will be as foflow :

Employsr's accruad Habliity 1% Valuation +1%
Withdrawal Assumption Withdrawal
. rate rate
Salary Increass rate 8 327 848 5548 814 9 843 348
Discount rate B 633 221 B 048 814 B 848 511

17981087 17807628 17 960 859

Employer's expense cost 1% Vaiustion 1%
Withdrawal Assumption Withdrawal
rate rats
Sslary increase rate 1317 283 1424 807 1 648 056
Disoount rets 1 462 803 1424 007 1 599 265

2769 976 2848 814 2045 324

17. Accumulated surplus

Belance as &t 1 July 280 370 488 427 33D 180
Net gain / loss for the pariod {9 800 512) 48780670
Corrantion of an afror - nots 26 - (195740 341}

270 780 @77 280 370 486

18. Sale of water to oparation Cetvices

Flire fighting sarvices 630 867 737451
Sale of slectricity 746 820 878 378
Sale of water 82811640 112750868
Sewmrage and senitation charges 141976 145919

94 340 303 114 320 816

18. Other revanue

Non-sxchange tranaactions

Sundry overpayments - 391 138

Interest on debtore 20 203 32 504

Other Income 527 542 504 034

Insurance refunds 390779 887 129
1023 624 1 625 408

Exchangs transactions

Rent 2 184 805 1216 087

Watsr sarvices 447 302 B3 282

Flre services {(Sakianha) 32827 3960870

20. Unapent conditional grants and recelpts
Tha following grants and subsidies ware received &nd recognised :

g
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West Coast Dictrict Munlcipality
Annual Financlal Statements for the year endad 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annual Financlal Statements

Figurss in Rend 2018 2017
20. Unspent conditional granio and recelpte (continuod)
Waetarn Cape Financlal Management Grant (Risk and MEBCDA) 422 184 236 260
Local Goverment Graduats Intemahip Grant 81 560 87 112
Wealem Cepe Financial Management Grant (IDP) 802 458 507 b42
Waestem Cape Financial Managemant Grant {intemship) 168 788 184 211
REC Levy Replacemant Grant (Equitable Shara) 70061000 66270000
Equitable Share 14841000 13 624 000
MSK3 - 142711
Financlal Managament Grant 1280 000 1 260 000
EPWP 1100 000 1036 000
Donations Mayor 222 818 170 401
Grasnest Municipality Competition 76 275 24726
Capacity Building Health Services 162 040 125 693
install Reinwater Tanks . 54 886
Rural Roads Management 2 208 T43 1 B8O 280
Working for Water 1 008 836 674 083
Fire Setvices Capacity Buldling Grant 1 450 000 -
Cther Government Grands and Subsidies : Less VAT on administration charpes (247 500) (58 877)
93 50618% B8 W7 107
20.1) MSIG
Balancs unspent at the baginning of the year - 142 714
Current year recelpts .
Current year Intersst
Conditions met - ransfered to revenue

Conditions stlll to bs met - transferred to Uabliliies

Strategic objective - Good govamanos and financial viability.

(142 M 1-}

The purpose of the grant was to provide infrestuciure for the implementstion of MEGOA (Munlcipal Standard Chart of
Accounts),

20.2) Financlal Manapement Grant
Bslance unspent st the beginning of the year
Current yesr receipls

Curment yoer interest

Congditions maet - transferred to revenus

Conditions =il to be met - fransfarred 1o lablidss

Siratagic objective - Good govemnance and financlel viabllity

1250 000

1250 000
(1 260 000)

(1 250 000)

Tha purposs of the grant was to support the trafning of municipal officlale In financlal management, the appointment of

Intems and the acquisition, upgrade and maintenancs of financial managemani sysisms.

20.3) Wastern Cape Finonclal Managemant Grant (Risk and MS8COA)
Balance unspent st tha baginning of the year

Current vear recelpts

Current vaar iniareat

Conditions mat - transfarred to reverus

Conditlono otill to be mot - tranoferred to Habllitiec

Sfiraiagie objsctive - Gacd govemancs and financlal viabiiity.

142 184 158 424
280 000 220 000
(422 184) (238 260)

- 142 164

The purposa of the grant s to proviie ahared risk managemaent servioes within the Wiest Coast District area,
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West Coast District Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the yaar ervied 30 Juns 2018

Notes to the Annual Financlal Statements

Figunea in Rand 2018 2017

20. Unspent conditional grants and recelpts (continusd}

204) Donations Mayor

Balance unspent at the beginning of the year 10817 10 750
Current year receipts 212 200 170 266
Current year interest : =
Conditions met - traneferred to revenue (222 817} (170 401)
Conditions still tc be met - fransfarred to llabliitea = 10 817
20.5) EPWP Grant

Balance unspant at the beginning of the year - -
Curmant year receipts 1 100 Q00 1 036 000
Current year irbenest - =
Condltiens met - fransferred to revanue {1100 000} (1 036 0OO)
Conditiona atlll to be met - transferred to llablities - "

Strategic objective - Environmental Integrity.

The purpose of the grant was for community safaty, sustainable land-basad livelihoods, development and maintsnance of
bulldings, health, rcads and stormwater system development and maintenance end other social sector projects.

20.8) Working for Water

Balance unapent at the beginning of the year 130 873 118 720

Current yesr receipts 870 183 980 988

Current year irterest - -

Conditions atlll o be met - transfsmed to labliities {1 008 B36) {578 085)
Conditions still to be met - transferred to llabllites - 138 672

Streteglc objective - Emdronmental Integrity.
The purpose of the grant was to clean-up watar sensitive areas within the West Coast District.
20.7) Wastern Caps Financlal Managemant Grant {IDP and Intarnship)

Balance unspent at the baginning of the yaar 858 247 BS50 000
Current yaar receipis 240 000 900 000
Current year Intersst " =
Conditions mat - tranefamed to revenus ({861 227} {881 7B3)
Conditions still {0 be met - transfarred to liabllities 237 020 8638 247

Strateglc cbjective - Good governance and financlal viabliity.

The purposse of tha grant is to support the Intemship programe as well a8 siratagic services within the West Coast District
area.

20.8) Capacity Bullding Health Sorvices

Balahce unapent &t the beginning of the year - 128 503
Current year recaipts 2684 000 -
Current year |nterest - -
Conditions met - transferned to revenue (162 040) (126 583)
Coniltions still to be met - transferred to Iabiilies 101 960 N

Strategic cbjective - Environmental integrity.
The purpose of the grant Is to bulld capacity of the health services officlals within the Wast Coasat District area.
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West Cosst Disirict Municipality
Annual Financial Statsments for the year ended 30 Juna 2018

Notes to the Annual Financlal Statements

Figures In Rand 2018

2017

20. Unapent conditional gronta and reosipts {(continued}

20.9) Instali Relnwater Yanks

Balance unspent af the beginning of the year
Current yoar recepis

Current year intergst

Conditicns met - transfamed to revenus

64 680

(54 886}

Conditions stll to ba met - tranaferrad to labilites : -

Strategic objective - Environmental integrity.

The purpose of this grant is to provide a sustainable water supply for food gardens and recuce corsumption of water

resourcss dus ta drought conditions experienced within tha West Coast Ares,

20.10) Rural Roads Mansgemont

Balance unspent &t the beginning of the year 443 720 219733
Curment year recaipts 2 553 000 2424 000
Current ysar inlarast - ’
Gonditions met - transfamred to revanue {2208 743) (1980 280)
Transfer to Nationad Treasury (443 720) (218 733)
Conditions still to be mat - transferred to llubllites 346 267 443 720
Strateglc objactive - Essantial bulk sarvices.

The purposs of the grant Is to develop a rurel roads managernent plan within the West Coast Districl

20.11) Gresnwet Municlpality Compwiiion

Balance unspent &t the beginning of the year 25275 -
Current yezr recalpis 50 000 50 000
Current yager interest . -
Corditiona met - tranefamed to evenuea (76 275) (24 725)
Condlitions stlll o be met - tranaferred to llablities - 28 275
Strategic objective ~ Environmental Integtity.

This was used to buy computer equipment within the Corporate and Community services department.

20.12) Local Government Graduats Internship Grant

Balance unspant at the baginning of the year §2 BBB

Current yaar racsipts 122 00O 180 000
Current ysar interest i =
Canditions mat - tranefaired to revenue {81 568) {87 112}
Conditions ctill to be met - ranafarrod to Habilities 133322 82 888

Strateglc objective - Good governanca and financial viabllity.
The purpose of the grant is to assit the graduate infemship programma within the West Coast District
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Waest Coast District Municipality
Annual Financlal Statemants for the year ended 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annual Financlal Statements

Figures in Rand 2018

2017

20. Unapent conditlonal grants and recelpts {(continued)

20.13) Fire Ssrvices Capacity Bullding Grant

Balancs unspent at the baginning of the year -

Current year recaipts 1 450 00O
Currant year Interest -

Condltions met - transfarred to revenue {1 480 00O}

Conditions still to be met - traneferred to Habllities -

Stratagic objective - Soalal Welkbeing.
The purpose of the grant is to bulld infrastucture capacity with the municipality's fire department.

20.14) Finante Management Spacial Davelopment

Balance unspent at the beginning of the yaar .
Current yesr recaipta 800 000
Curment yaar intarast -
Conditions met - transferred to revenue -

Conditions still to ba met - trenaferrad to llabliites 600 000

Strateglc cbiective - Good governance and financlal viabillty,
The purpoae of the grant is to aesist with spacial development within the West Coast District.

Unapant conditions! grants and recelpts
PAWC and Stats funde : Various projscts (see nota 12) 1418 £80

1712 584
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Woest Coast District Kuniclpaliky
Annual Financial Statemnents for the year endad 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures In Rand 2018 2017
21. Employss related costs
Employea related costs - Salariss and wages 08684470 BB A2B 688
Employea related costs - Contributions for UIF, pensicns and madical aids 24290 190 22310688
Benus pald 5637 273 42737808
Bonus paid - Roads 2485 925 2 794 670
Travel, metar car. sceommodation, asubsistance and other allowances 10 162 186 B D84 535
Other payroll levies 2 049 533 3733660
Ovartime payments 8 006 867 8773 QTR
Contributions to employee banefits B 275 308 8 350 248
Laave accrual 11477 707 834 760
Specisl allowancas 4933 334 4 447 620
Housing benefits and aliowancas 1338128 1245240
164790 940 165 577 564
Remunseration of municipal manager {This expsnee forms pert of employes reiated coats)
Amual Remuneration 1047 683 1 606 936
Cer Alowance 121 480 2461438
Performance Bonuses 108 675 44 386
Contributions to UIF, Medical end Pension Funds 32708 48 472
Tealaphone allowance 16 138 20 184
Other T4 72 042
1323748 2120143
Remuneration of chisf finance officer (This sxpanss forme part of smployes related coats)
Annual Remuneration 935 211 970 851
Car Allowsnce 22 397 64 085
Parformance Bonuses 80 128 34980
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Penslon Funds 122 330 222 742
Telephone allowance 16 820 20 154
Other 57 150 348
11066 943 1 433 207
Iumu;mttlun of Individual executive directors - Technical services (Thic axpense forma part of employss reiated
coals
Annual Remuneration 1 047 862 1 178 550
Car Allowance 120 000 1568 811
Performance Bonusas 28018 47 576
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pansion Futds 4% 081 48 238
Talaphone allowance 20 B4 20 184
Other -} 11882
1 265 354 1461239
Remunerstion of individua sxecutive directors - Corporate and Community sorvices (This expenaa forms partof
smployes relsted costa)
Annual Remuneration 932 876 831 008
Car Allowancs 120 D00 145125
Performancs Bonuess 80745 33 381
Contributions to LIF, Madical and Pension Funds 158 996 188 281
Telsphone allowanos 20 184 20 184
Othar 98 18 365
1320900 17532
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West Coast District Municipality
Annual Financlel Statemsnts for the year ended 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2018 2017

22. Rsmunenation of counciliors

The Executive Mayor, Deputy Executive Mayor, Speaker and Mayoral Committes members are full-ime Councillors. Each
Is provided with an offica and secretariat support gt the cost of the municipality.

Ths Exscutive Mayor has the usa of 2 councll ewned vehicle for official duties.
Certification by the Municipal Manager
| cartify that the remuneration of Councillors and In-kind benefits are within the upper Emits of the framawork anvisage in

Section 218 of the Constitution, read with the Remuneration of Public Ofice Begrera Act and the Minister of Provincial and
Local Govamments determination In accordance with this Act.

Exacutive Mayor 870 814 840 242
Deputy Executive Mayar 705 529 711 284
Mayoral Commitise Mambers 1371488 1 600 111
Speaker 705 529 691 085
Councliiors and Secretarial support 2131338 1 380 B0
Couclliors pansion contribution 457 550 223616

& 842 248 8 447 187

23, Finance costs
Long tarm Hablities 5474 312 7276 168

24. Bulk purchases
Water 24 132 877 8723 467

An amount of R17 013 227 (2018 relales to the amortisation of the intanglble eseet that arose from the concession
arrangement.
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Woest Coast District Municipality
Arnusl Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annuai Financlal Statements

Figures in Rand 2016 2017
25. QGsners! sxponces
Acivertising 445 244 574 6682
Assessment rates & municipal charges 18182251 22847833
Auditors remunaration 3152 260 apie78e0
Study = rure] roads 2122788 1 858 0B
Compruter expenses 2 260 378 21788068
Consulting and professional feas 2483 374 3848056
Insurance 977 434 444 T8
Renisl offices 835 078 835708
Water demand management 44 843 45 932
Leass rental oh oparsiing ioase 353785 181 537
Contribution to frea municipal sarvices 681 D85 g28 071
Fuel and oll 14991666 129235683
Printing and stationary 168 770 556 488
Secunty (Guarding of municipel property) 488 883 481 350
Subscriptiona and membarship fees 70107 1440614
Telsphone and fax 1580785 1512547
Tremsport and freight 82642 28 050
Trainlng 541 237 748 936
Trwvel - looal {subslstance allowance) 3430923 32256 748
Water and milk samples 53 286 e820
Uniforms 2230898 1860217
Exhibitions 257 862 228373
Profasalona! services (Water ssrvices) 2003677 808 712
Bore waterhole drill 37488 427 249
{nfrastructure and planining - civil and land 891078 8 D40 367
Mantenancs of bulidings and squipmant 4 305 287 7 OB@ 855
Other operating axperises 15552 630 7 BE7 048
Distribution Provision 21 5%6 864 -
111788631 81380588
26. Prior period asrors
The correction of erors resulted in adustments as follows:
Adjuctment
2017
General expansas - lnventory incormectly axpensed 148 827
Bad dabt allowarios was reversed during the 2017 financial year. This emor waa comectad In the 3366
Statemant of Changes In Net Aseats.
Leavs provisich was comected duning this financiel year 168 870
The cancellation of resort incoms, (35 974)
Sslary control accounts allocatad twica within departments. 235876
The Incosmact interpretation of disburssment of salaries allswanoss snd benefits to Counciliors. 185 681
Funds paid back in regards to the sports day held by the municipsiity. 8 624
Correction of stale and operating lsaso payments. (720}
Comaction of ussful lives of assets sifll In uss 322 279
Comection of land owned by municipaltty 82¢ 00O
DumntmaumnmndalpedodnMofamﬁuwafuumdelmwmodalummwk (198 008 188}
weter, It came to managements attention that the arangement relating to the service constituted &
servica concesslon armangement and as such the restatements were considered to bs naosasary.
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Woest Coast District Municipality
Annual Financial Stefemants for the yaar andad 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures In Rand

2018 2017

28. Prior pariod srrore (continued)
Statement of Finaniclal Performance

Ganaral expsnaes

Employee related costs
Resort income

Remuneration of councillors
Dspraciation and smorisation

Statement of Financial Pasiton

Inventortes

Trade paysbles from exchangs fransactions

Property, piant and equipment

Intangible assets

Asset recalvable - current portion local municipalities
Anset racalvable - non-current portion - local municipalities

Accumulated surplus

Balance gs st 30 June

Balance  Adjueiment Balance after
before adjustment
adjustment

(B8 443 8a8) 764 631 (57 689 235)

(156683 110) 405548 (165 577 564)
3 602 943 (35074) 3468 088
(5632858) 185861 (5447 187

(142642768) 66868282 (7685 067)
{240811170) T898 148 (232913 024)
Balance Adjustment Balance after
befora zdjustment
adjustment

8338248 748 827 7087 073
{15 055 855) 561037 {14404 818)
824738341 (240020064) TE811277

620 383 520 488 1 048 861
- 170086688 17003 568
- 40242583 40242683

315 642 U0F (167 845 581) 127 696 544

Balence Adjustment Balance after
before adjustment
a

djustment
488 218 040 (187 845 561) 280 3704589

Repairs and maintenance and general expenses - contributions and granis was reciassified to comply with the Munieipal

Chart of Accounts {mSCOA) from 1 July 2017.
30 June 2017

Rupairs and Mairtenance

General sxpanses - contributions and grants
Materials and supplies

Water

Asesasmant rates & municipal chargas

Ganeral expenses
Transfers and subsidies

Oeneral expsnses

Balance us at 30 June

81

Balance Reclsvsiflad Balanco after

bafore adjustmant
adjustment
(58401788) 68401766 .
(180 178) 180 176 -

- (44533 106) (44 533 198
{20640 588) 20 B840 568 2
(TABT731} 748 731 M
(1258 318) (21389317} (22647833

{13881538) {13861 536)
- (1167207) (1467 207)

(82 200 674) - (82 200 674)
Balance Reciassifisd Bslance after
before adjustment
adjuetment

(67 686 235) (13701 383) (B1 200 508)
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Woest Coast District Municlpality
Annual Financial Stalements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annual Financlal Statements
Figures in Rand 2018 2017

27. Cach generoted from oporations

(Deflcit) surplus {¢ 800 512) 4B780¢70

Adjustmentre for:

Dapraciation and amortisation B 126 763 7 685 847

Loss on property, plant and equiprmant 57183 1144 966

Roads recsivabla - Empioyas bansfits (2608035 ©B2561e8

Corestion of arror - Refar to note 26 - 3356

Donated assets - Other assete (B 748) .

Cepltal redemption - Concesalon arrangement 17 013 227 -
Changsa In working capiial:

inventories 806447 (2111467
Trade recelvables from exchange fransactions {4 384 T782) 107 630

Other recelvabies from exchange franeactions 24 077 828 (20 504 602)
Trade payables from exchange transactions 22360200 {2 358982)
VAT 88 358 §58 205

Unspent conditional grants and recelpts (294 028) 225 748

Emploves banefits 4269 673 {8 364 730)
Long service awards - 264 380

80422023 J3ETTME

28. Utilsation of Long-torm Habllities reconellistion

Long-term Rabiliies {See note 14) 402320824 57 246 161
Used to finance property, plant and equipment (40 232 024) (57 246 151)
Cash ot aside for the rapayment of long-tenm labilitles 13078778 17 003 568

13079773 17003 808

Long-term liabilites have been utfized In accordance with the Municipal Finance Management Aot Sufficient cash has
bean st asids tn ensure that long-term Fablliles can be repeid on redemption date.

28. Unauthorised expenditure

Reconclliation of unauthorised expenditure -
Opening batance -
Unauthorised axpendltwre current ysar - .
Approved by Counall or condoned - +

Unauthorisod sxpanditurs awslting authorfsation - -

30. Frultisss and wacisful sxpanditure

Raconciliation of frultiess and wastsful expenditure . -
Opaning balance - -
Frultises and wasteful axpandituns ourrent year 380 276 21388
Condoned or written off by Councll : (13 735)
Amount recovered (Nt condoned) (&6 100) {7 631)
Fruttiees and wastefut expenditure awsiting condonement 284178 .

20 Juns 2017

internal audlt wes requested to conduct an investigation on tanders not awarded within the 80 day period aftar the
advertisament date. Reasonable steps wers taken by management to address the control deficlency and the responzible
officiel/s were held accountabla for any loss Incured by ths municipaiity. Two Incldants wers identified as follows:

|
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West Coast District Municipality
Annusl Financial Statemants for the year ended 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annuzl Financial Statements

Figures in Rand

30. Frultiess and westeful expendtiure (cantinued)

Incident 1 - WCDM 24/2018 - Hiring of construction plant, peraonnel, mobile - 13736
crushing equipment and fancing works.
Incldent 2 - WCDM 32/2016 - Supply and delivery of G5 sub-base matetial for - 7 631

upgrading, rehebifitation and maintenancs works.

T

The municipality identified four Intidents of fruliises and wasteful expanditure in this financial year, Reasonable staps were
taken by management to addreas the control deficiency and the reaponsibie officialis and were held accountable for any
loss ingured by the municipality.

Incident 1 - The incorrect interpretation of disbursament of salaries, allowances and 339 495 -
bensfits to Counciiors ss stipulated In the Govemmaent Netice: Nr R313, Gazetts

nr. 40769, dated 3 Aprli 2017. The iotel remuneration package of espectve

counciiors was axcesded.

Incident 2 - An Investigation Indicated that an official was negligent In two scoidents 2am

with & awring at the Moomeesburg and Veirgsies meintsnanca campsits

Vredenburg, The sanction was that the officiel will be held accountsble for the costs

Ingurred by the municipality.

Incidant 3 = An inveetigation indicated that an official was negligent In a actident on 35085 -
the N7 betwesn the Algena junction and Clanwilllam involving a private vehicls.

Tha nanction was that the official will bs hald accountable for tha costes Incumed by

the municipality. .
Incident 4 - An official resigned with insufficlent leave to recover all outstanding 3308 -
costs owed to the municipality.

380 276 -
3. lUrragular sxpenditure
Opening balance 233 883 77 266
Add: Imsguiar Expendiiure - currant year 262 511 233 883
Add. Irregular Expendtiture of prior yeara indantified in current yaar 814 338 -
Less: Amounts written-off (233 883) {77 265)

Less: Amounts not necoverable

1 066 848 233 683

Detalls of irragular sxpanditure

Prior year - 2017

Incident 1 - The municipality did not comply with Section 35 of the Municipal Supply - 233 883
Chein Managemant Regulations that allows & municipality to deviate from

pracurament procsssas. Based on the ramsoning and documentation pravided, the

devintion dees not appear to be reasonabie / justifiable to substentiate that It was

Impractical or uneconomical to follow the procurement processes. The saving

provides no assurance that the best price available In the mariet was obtained.

Current yesr - 2018

Incldent 1 - The municipality excludes the procurement of legal services in terma of 1 066 848 -
it's Supply Chain Management Policy paragraph 2 (3) (c), Saction 110 of the

$4unicipal Finance Managemant Act (MFMA) only sxcludas procurement of goods

and serdces from an orgen of state which maans the exclusion of legal services

was in contraventian of the Act. R252 511 retates to current year and RB14 338

relates to prior years,

1 068 840 233 883
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Woest Coast District Municipality
Annual Financial Statsments for the year andad 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annual Financizl Statements
Figures In Rand

32, Additional discioaura in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act
32.1) Contributions 1o organised local govemment

Opening balance - .
Current yesr subscription / fes 4 0B 747 1377464
Amount peid - current ysar {1 508747) (1377 464}

Amount pald - previous years
Bsiance unpald (included in creditors)

32.2) Audit faes

Opening belance

Current year subsoription / fes
Amourt pald - currant yesr
Amount pald - previous years

Balsnee unpcid (included In creditora)

$ 016 780
(3 016 780)

o
B8
.| B8,

32.3) PAYE and UIF

Opening balence = E
Current ysar subscription / fss 25020042 224977743
Amount pald - current year (25 020 042) (22 977 743)
Amount paid - previous years ] F
Balance unpald (Included In creditors) - :

32.4) Penslon and Medical Ald Deductions

Opening balance . .

Current year subscription / fee 23424806 21814480
Amount pald - cuiment year (23 424 BOB) (21814 498)
Amount pald - previous years = -

Balance unpeld {included In creditors) . -

32.5) VAT
VAT payable 1583040 1478671

VAT output psyables and VAT Input receivables are shown in note 11,

All VAT retumns have baen submitisd by the due date throughout the year.

32.8) Counclilors’ arrecr consUmMGr accolnts

The following Counclliors had arear accounts eutstanding for more than 90 days at 30 June 2018:

30 Jurw 2016 Outstanding  Outstanding Totsl

lessthan 80 more than 80
days days
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Weet Coast District Municipality
Annugl Financlal Stetements for the year anded 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annual Financlsl Statements

Figures in Rand

33. Capital Commitmants
Authorised capital expandiure

Capltal commitments are spacific capital projects spproved per tender and budget but stll in progress at period end. The
municipaiity doss not have any capital commitments for this financial period,

Thase commitmanis relatss to property and will be financed by avallable bank facilities, retained surplusas, rights issue of
shares, lssus of debentures, morigage facllittes, existing cash resources, funds Intemally generated, stc.

34. Retirement banefit Information
The municipality provides retiremant benefits for all lts psrmanent amployees through & defined contribution plan, which is

subject to the Penslon Fund Act, 1858 as amanded. The cantributions made by the municipality and the employses to the
plen during the your was ;

Cape Joint Penslon Fund 211 485 202 983
Ceapa Joint Retirement Fund 24187 954 22 177 407
Counciliors Pension Fund - 35 898

24309449 22416085

Cape Joint Pension Fund, which |s a dafined multl - amployer contribution fund. Contribution ratio for employees 6% and
Councll 18%. Contribution ratio for Councillors 9% and Counsll 18%.

Multt employer funds are irented as defined contribution funds.

203 -1t 29

FRUAIDET T o €8T AT
ABLWLE S T




West Coast District Municlpality
Annual Financial Statements for the year endad 30 Juns 2018

Notee to the Annual Financlal Statements

Figures In Rand _ 2018 2017

38. Roelcted partioo

Ralationships
The following related pariiea axist :
Government depariments National TreasLiry
Provincial Treasury
Departmant of Water Affaire and Foroetry
Membars of key management - Refer to note 21 for tha amounts D Joubert (Municipal Mansger)
payabla to key mansgement,
J Koekemoar {Chief Financial Officar)

W Markus (Diractor - Corporate and Community
services

)

H Matthea (Director - Technical services)
Counclliors - Refer ton nota 22 for the amounts paid to Councliiors Ald J H Cleophaa {Executive Mayor)

Clir R W Strydom (Deputy Executive

Clir R E Swarts (Speaker)

Clir J Mayer {(Mayoral commitias member}

Ald B J Stanley (Mayoral committes member)

Al F J Schippers {Mayoral commitive member)

Cir V D McQulre {Maycral committes membar)

Ciir F Xarnfer

Cir 8 A Gxabalazhe

Cir J Danlels

Giir J Alexandar

Clir N M Ngobe

Clir M Garceinl

Clir J J Hoop

ClirN & Qunta

Ald 8T JSmit

Clir A J du Plooy

Clir E B Mankay

Ald E Nackerdien

Cir M Bohradar

Clir 8 M Beholiz

Clir B J Penxa

Clr N Smit

Clr R Sleal

Clir & Stephan

“I'he munieipal manager (D Joubert) and the chief financial ofMcer (J Koskemoer) are trustess In the cparating lease
transaction thet exints batween the Counclt and the Wast Coast Financing Partnership. Paymeants are payable every aix
monthe. The praperties Involved in this transaction are saction 36 of the farm Yzervarkenarug number 127 and section 3 of
division Malmesbury farm number 81. The transaction are disclossd below :

Reioted party balancen

Grants received from related parties

National Treasury B 628743 86802891
Provincial Treasury 3052272 1188 442
Department of Water Affairs and Forestry 1006 838 1033 851
Purchase of goods and ssrvioss from related partios

Daparimant of Water Affeirs and Forestry 7119661 11524 754
Bub-Leces transaction from related porties

West Coast Financing Partnarship BEH3 816 g 145108
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West Coast District Municipaility
Annual Financlal Stataments for the year endad 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annual FInancial Statements

Figuree in Rand 2018 2017

38. Lesass
38.1) Lease peytble
The tofal future minimum opersating leass payments payable under existing arangements are categorised as follows :

a) Within one year of tha reporiing date 655 870 382 389
b) More than one year but less than flve years of the reporting dede. 274 854 265 577

$30 624 547 568

The municipality antsred info an operating leass for tha rantal of photocoplers for three years with Kenica Minoita. There Is
no escslation clause,

The municipality arered intc an operating legss for the rental of two offices. The lease |s batween Frank Family Trust and
the municipallty. The contract ls for a pariod of onw year. The properly involved is Voortrekkerweg 47 Malmasbury.

The municipality sntersd Into an opersiing Iease for the rental of twe offioas. The lease is betwesn Swemmerspark and the
municipality. The contract is for a period of two year, The property involved is sita 86 Veldrft.

An operating lease sxiats between G R Damp and the municipality. The contract Is for & month to month period. The
property involved is Swawsiberg, Malmesbury (Section 5 of farm 619 Malmesbury road).

An operating lease axists batwesn SITA and the municipalily. The contract is for @ period of one year. This involves the
maintanance of Microsoft software, products and servicss,

The municipailty entsred into a operating lease for the rental of storage capacity, The lease is between Salkdanha
municipality and this municipailty. The contract is for a mortih to month pariod. The property Involved is erf 880 Langebaan.

The municipality sntsred inio a operating lease for the provision of GPS devices in vehicles. The contract |s between Ramm
Systems and the municipalty. The contract Is for m periad of 36 months..

The municipality sntered info & aperating lease for tha rental of storape capacity. The lease is between Linu farms and this
mﬁm The coniract Is for a two year period. The property Invoived is Petarsfield 465, Veortreldser Street, Clrtusdal,
} larnsilliam..

The municipality sntered Into a operating laass with Marcelie Ann Ellis and Jannie Nel E'fis. The contract ls for a thres year
period. The praparty involvad is Die Trek 28 Plketberg.

The municipality antered Inte a operating lease with Business Engineering. The contract invoives the coliaborator
foundation system and le for a 12 month period.

‘The municipality entered into & operating leass with Strassberger Investments. The contract le for & three year period. The
property invelvad is erf 2715 Hoofwag 28A Clanwililsm.,

38.2) Leass recalvable

"The total future minimum significant opemating lease receivable under the existing cperating leass arrangement are
catagorised as follows :

a) Within one yaer of the reporting date 304 217 ap4 217
b) Mors then one year but less than five years of the reporting date, and 1418 677 1521083
c) More then five years - 202 BT1

1 723 884 20268111

The municipaiity entersd Into an operating isaee as lesscr with ths Depariment of Transport and Public Works as the
lesses The laass term commencad on 1 March 2014 and sxpine with option to sxtend on 28 February 2024 and covera
perion of 10 years. Tha property involved is the Maorreesburg ambulance stetion situsted on erf 841.
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West Coast District Municipality
Annus| Financial Statemsnia for the year anded 30 June 2018

Notee io the Annual Financlal Statements

Figures in Rand 2018 2017

37. Risk managemont and Financlal Inctrument diaclosure
Financlal rick manngemant

The municipality’s activities expose It to a variety of financial risks: market risk (Inciuding cumency riek, falr valus interest
rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), cred|t risk and Equidity risk.

The municipality's overall risk menagemant program focuses on the unpredictabllity of financial markets and seals to
minimise potantial adverse effects on the municipaiity’s financlal parformancs. The munlcipalty uses derivative finuncial
instruments to hedge certain risk exposures. Risk management is carried out by a central ireasury department {sntity
freasury) under policies approved by the accounting officer. Municipality treasury identifies, evalustes and hedges financial
rieks in close co-operation with the municipality's operating units. The accounting officar providea writtan principles for
overall risk management, as wall sa written policies covering specific areas, such as foreign sxchange riak, interest rate
riak, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivativa financial Inatruments, and investment of excess

Dquidity.
Liquidity risk

The municipaiity's risk to liquidity is @ result of the funds avaliable to cover fitura commitmanis. Tha municipailty menages
Tiquidity risk through en engoing review of future commitments and credlt faciities.

Cradt risk conalsts malnly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative financlsd instruments and frade debtors. Tha
municipality enly deposits cash with major banke with high quaity credit standing and limits sxposure to any one counter-
party.

Trade receivables comprise & wideapréad customer bess. Managemant evaluated credit risk relating to custemers on an
ongeing basis, if customers ars Indepsndertly reted, thess raiings are used, Otherwise, If thera (s no Indepandant Fling,
risk control aaseeses the credit quality of the customer, taking Into sccount it inencial position, past axperience and other
faciors. Individusl risk imits ste set based on Internal or extsmal ratings In accordance with limits sst by the board. The
utllisation of credit limits is ragularty monitared. Sales to retall customers are settied in cash or using major credit cards,
Credit guarantes Insurance Is purchased when deemsd appropriste.

Market riok
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Waest Coast District Municlipality
Arnual Financial Ststemants for the yaer ended 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand _ 2018 2017

37. Risk management and Financial Inetrument dioclosure (confinued)

Iinteract rate risk

Ths munkipality's Interest rate riak arises from long-enm borrowings. Bormowings issued af variable rater expose the
nm&nlcipllty to cagh flow interesat rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates exposs the munlcipallty to fair value interest rate
37.1) Credit Risk

The carrying emount of financlel assets and loans represents the maximum credit exposure. Tha maximum exposura o
credit risk at the raporting date was :

Trade and othar raceivabie 12225366 32 582 100

The ageing of trade and other recelvables at the reporting date was !

Current 12071617 32314708

30 Days 267 788 230 032

50 Days 44 788 57 641

&0 Days 3072 10473

120 Days plus 8200 6813

Less : Provision for bad debt (170 218) {37 588)

The mavement In the allowance for bad debt In respeet of trade recelvables

over the year was ;

Balance at the beginning of the year 37 6B 383 303

Contributions to provisichs 151 186 17 342

Expendlture Incurmed (18 548) {343 077)

170 216 37 500

The allowance for impairment In respact of trade and other recelvabiea Ia used to record Impairment losses until the
municipality is setisfied thet no recovery of the amount owing Is possible. At that point the amount 18 considered
irrecovarabie and written off dirsclly against the financial asset.

37.2) Liquidity risk

The following are contractual meturities of financlal llabliities, Including interest payments and excludes the impact of netting
agreaments !

Non~derivative finunclal Habilites Carrying  Contractusl Within1 Year 2-8Yearc Morethank
2018 Amount  Cash Flows Yaars
Unapant conditiona! grants and recelpts 1418 5680 . - . -
Long term Nabllliss 40 232 924 = 18078773 27183151 -
41 681 464 « 130789773 27163161 -

37.3) Intursat rate risk

Iritwrest rate risk is defined &8 the risk that the fair value or future cash fiows associated with & financial Instrumaent will
fluctusts In amount as & result of market interast changes. Potential concentrationa of intarest rate nsk consist mainly of
variable rate deposit investments, long term debtors, consumer debtors, other debtors and bank and cash balances. The
municipality is expossd io Interest rate riek as the municipality's borrowed funds Is st & fixad [nterest rate. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash fiows of financlal ilabiitties based on the earliest date on which the
municipality can be required tc pay. The financia] assets gre based on the interest rate provided by the banks and National
Treasury at the reporting dete. The municipality's sxposure to Interest rate risk and the effective Interest ratca on financial
instruments at reporting date are as follows :
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West Coast District Municipelity
Arnual Financial Stetements for the year ended 30 Jung 2018

Notee to the Annusl Financlal Statements

Flgures in Rend

2018

2097

37. Risk management and Financlal Instrument disclostre (continued}

Non-terivative financlal casots 2018 Within1 Year 2-5 Yesrs lﬂo!; than §
ure
Trads and other recalvablas (B.5%) 12 226 368
Cash and cash equivalanta « Cash book balances (8.5% floating) 268 808 077 -
282033433 = -
Nen-dorivative financial llzbllitise 2018 Within1 Year 2-6 Yearo Hu?lhun ]
(1Y
Trade ardd other paysbles {Interast free) 7 357 614 -
Unspent conditional grants end recelpts 1418 580 - -
Long term liabllities {12,64%, 11.73%, 8.60600%, 10.87%) 130676773 27 153 151 .
21855 847 27 183 151 -

Sonaltivity analyois

An Increass of 1% in kmterest rates at 30 June would have incressed / (decreased) financial aseats and profit or loss by the
amnpunts shown below. A decregse of 1% in interest at 30 June woulkd have hed the squal but oppostie effect on the sbove
Fnancial Instruments, on the basis that all ather variables remaln eonstant. There whera no changes in the municipality's

spproach from the prior year.
Non-derivative financial assate 2018

Trade and olher receivables
Cash and cash wquivaisnts - Cash book balances

37.4) Falr valuo

Statemsnt of Profit or loas

Financlal

Posltion

12 225 3568 122 254
200 808 077 2888 081
282 033 433 2 20 335

Dua ta thelr short maturifiss the falr values of all fingnclal instruments are substantially kdentical to the values reflacted in

the Siatemant of Financlal Positen.
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West Coast District Municlpality
Annual Financla Statements for the year anded 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Flgures In Rand 2018 2017

38. Contingent lisbllitiea

The municipzlity le being sued by P Jurles. This case involves the provision of housing and the payment of rental by the
applicant Council s contesting the claim based on legal advice. The case number is 18035/2010. The legal expert believe
the municipality has a reasonable chance of success.

The municipallty ia being suad by West Coast Buildars (BK) amounting to R2 110 643 for the rendering of servicas starting
In Octobar 2014 The legal expert believe the municipelity hes 2 ressonable chance of success.

The municipality is belng susd by J A Kock an ex-empicyee for [njuries sustained while in tha service of the municipality.
Councl Is contesating the clalm based on lagal advica. The cass number [s 16036/2010. The legal expart belleve the
muni¢ipality has a reasonable chance of succass,

The municipality Is being sued by Tredoux, wile and on behalf of a minor (chiid), This cass Invoives Injuries sustained In an
acoldent which occumed on 11 May 2015 at the intersection of the Koringberg road and the R45 road, Hopefleld, Western
Caps. Coundll is contasting the cleim based on legal advice. The case numbar is 6650/08, The lagal axpert balieve the
municipality has a reasonable chance of success. This Is & High Cowrt matter.

Tha municipality ls belng sued by Destiny Tashmeen Hanson, This case involves Injuries sustained In an accidant which
oceurred on 10 December 2010 on the R311 betwaen Moorressburg and Hopefield. The case number (s 19616/2013. The
mattsr is now In the hands ol the insurers.

Tha municipality is being sued by Alfalfa Boardary Trust. The case involvea Jamages to property as a result of e firaon 3
January 2018. In tarms of a provisional assessmant done by Alfeifa Boerdery Trust, the damages on the farm De Rust
amounts to R1 million. The matter is now In the hands of the insurers.

The municipziity is belng sued by Brochenbach and five others. The case number Is 3754/2012. The legal expert believe
ths municipafity has no ek In this matter

Based on the asseasment dona by the Iagal axpert the municipallty has no sk in all of the above mentionad matters. Due
1o this fact no amounts was disclonsd by the legal expert, the municipality did not discloss any amounts in the annual
financial stetements of any of the ebove applicants,

"
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West Coast District Municipality
Annual Financial Statemants for the year ended 30 Juna 2018

Notes to the Annual Financlal Statements

Figures in Rand 2018 2017

29. Doviatlon from cupply chain management regulations

Paragraph 12(1)(d){l) of Government gazstte No. 27638 Issusd on 30 May 2006 atates that a supply chalin mansgement
polcy must provids for the procurement of goods and services by way of a competitive bidding proosss.

Paragraph 38 of the same gazetls states that the accounting officer may dispense with the officlsl procurement procese In
certaln circumatances, provided that he racords the reascns for any deviations and reparis them fo the next meeting of the
accounting officer and includes a note to the annual inanctal statemants,

Reasons are only provided for deviations above R100 000 In the annual financial statements. Reasons for devistions below
R100 000 can be viewad at the supply chain managament offices.

Liru Bosrdery - Excaptional case and it Is impraciical or impossibla to foflow the 123 B854

official procurement prooesses.

Moutons Clirus (Edms} Bpk 30277 -
JB's Truek (Pty) Lid 2104 -
Komatsu SA {Ply) Ld 4012 -
Barioworld Equipment 32018 -
High Power Equipment Africa 10 647 -
Arch Actuarial Consulting 7411 -
S8E Exosloom 17 996 -
Barlpworld Equipment 15 165 .
Unisa 4711 -
Ruefiact All Compressors 2451 -
Cape Media Corporation 20 521

Business Enginesnng 60 649

Marcalia & Jannia Ellis a1 762

Saggues CC T1 821

Fintech 6000 .
AMC Intamational 8 500 -
Barioworld Equipment 14 816 -
DMIEA 8700 .
Ball Equipment 12 000 -
Effective Human lntervantions 7 408 .
Metallurgical Testing Lab 60M2 .
Excelsior Flanges 36888 -
800CT Manutacturing (Pty} Ltd 13242 .
Take Note Trading 321 13 916 .
Metallurgical Testing Lab 17 783 -
Allss Siaalgaboue BK 3088 .
High Power Eguipmant Africa 17 8a7 -
Fintech & 000 -
Swllenbosch University 30 000 -
Stalisnbosch University 30 000 .
Giobal Prospective Developmant 27 328 .
Bytas Universal Systems 2850 -
Advancsd Wonx 112 27 178 -
Bytss Universal Bystsms 20 600 -
The Boardwalk Hobel 16 388 -
IMPSA 10 850 -
North - West University 30 000 -
Komateu 84 11126 -
Take Note Trading 321 16 338 -
Fintach 5000 -
Talon Canstrucion - Exceptionsl case and It Is impractical or Impossibie to foliow 116 606 .
tha official procurement processes.

imparial Trucks 5 pad -
Working on Firs 88 432 -
Workdng on Fire - Emetgsncy 197 287 .
Worldirg on Firs 48 044 -
Working of Fire 89 545 -
Working on Firs 61204
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West Coast District Municlpality

Annual Financial Statsmants for the year ended 30 Jure 2013

MNotes to the Annual Financizal Statements

Figures in Rand 2018 2017
38. Deviatlon from supply ohain management ragulations {(continued)

Fintach 8000 -
C K Rumbol & Vennote - Exceptional case and It s impractical or impossible to 468 280 -
follow the official procuramant processss,

R J Consani g2 380 .
Working on Firs 81203 -
Sivad Trading 18 50 -
Auma South Afriea (Pty) Lid 3041 -
Working on Fira 61087 -
Groter Gederberg Brandbeskaming 087 -
Groter Cederberg Brandbeskerming 2730

Groter Cederberg Brandbeskerming 6 100 -
Groter Cederberg Brandbaskerming 7 565 -
Grotar Caderbarg Brandbeskerming 5118 -
Working on Fire - Emergency 132 734 .
CSX Customer Sendces 2 257 -
Grotsr Caderbarg Brandbsskemming 5880 -
Masterirsads t/a Trentyre Moomeasburg 2 142 .
Fintech 6000 -
Exdbition Bullding Solutions 0 484 -
Fintach 2168 -
Fintach 2188 -
Vettias Maintenance & Cleaning 29 449 -
Vetiles Mainisnance & Cleaning 65 304 -
Velco Group BA 2280 -
Babcock Equipment 8995 .
Barloworid Equipmant 28 890 -
Imperial Trucks 5 608 -
Continous Professional Development 12 617 -
Viking Pony Africa (Pty} Lid - Emergency 118 287 -
Working on Flre - Emergency 141 147 -
Unisa 1 470 -
Unisa 28 448 .
Man Truck & Bus SA (Pty) Ltd 8634 -
Working on Flre 86 562 -
Northiink College & -
Leadership Academy for Guardians of Govermnance 25028 -
institute of Fire Enginears 26 338 “
Fintech § GO0 -
Namibig Tourlsm Expo 40 244 -
Darling Security Sarvices 34 p47 -
Hazard Bonako Cape (Pty) Lid -
Hidro-Tech Systems

Valeo Group SA

J J Hanakom Verkosling & Herstelwerke
Bytsa Universal Systems

Komatsu South Afroa {Pty) Ltd

Unisa

Leadership Academy

Fintech

Darling Security Services (Pty) Lid
WESGRO

Imperial Group - Hina Trudks

Bytes Universal Systams

Ignia Adviscry Services (Pty) Lid - Sote Suppher
Ignite Advisory Sarvices (Pty) Lid

Bytes Univeraal Systems

Sizanke Trading Capa Town (Pty} Ltd - Exceptional case and it is impractical to

follow the officlal procurament processes.
Cublgenix (Pty) Ltd

83
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Waest Coast District Municipailty
Annual Financly] Stetemants for the year endad 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annua: Fingnclgl Statements

94

Figures In Rand 2018 2017
38. Deviation from supply chaln manzgement regulations (continucd)
JB's Trucke 6822 -
Mocrreesburg Alroons 3 -
Darling Security Services (Pty) Lid 85 B41 .
SASFIN 3144 -
Refaict All Compressors 2627 -
SASFIN Commercial Solutions 5000 -
JB's Nissan 6 6685 -
JB's Nissan 6817 .
Agrico Piketberg 18 030 -
Saldanha Diving and Blasting 8 750
Refeict Al Compireasors 47 231 -
Hezard Bonako Cape 2 459 -
Bytes Univeraal Systems - Sole Supplier 227 785 -
Woller Kiuwer Tax and Accounting - 14 737
First Technology . 52 080
Macnay CC - 16 107
D Stander, van Hearden - 15 000
Barioworld Equipment ~ 8752
Fintach - 5 000
Mafoko Securlty Patrofs - 28 630
Pardeberg Motors - 12 834
Skaarland Ingenleurawerke . 4 254
Bell Equipment . 17 487
Woltsr Kiuwer Tax and Accounting « 57 884
Bytes Univeraal System - Goods or services have already been acquired by the - 106 386
muricipality from = wpecific supplier or service provider and subssguent
maintenance, amandments, or modifications by other suppliers or sarvice providers
ere prohlbited, restricted or Impoafils bacauss of guarantss, legal, fiesnsing or
such othsr requirements, or it will be impractical or unacenoemical to acquire
additional simiar gocds or sarvices from anather supplier or servica provider,
Remsay, Son & Parker < 5ot
Fintech .- & 000
The Conference Company - 4 000
Barioworid Equipment . 10 584
Barlowocld Equipmant - 8336
Global Africa Network - Goods or service have alrsady been acquired by the - 233 8B4
municipality from a specific suppller or service provider and subsaquent
maintenance, emendments, or modifications by other suppiiers or sarvice pravidars
are prohibited, restiated or impossible becauss of guaraniss, legal, llcensing or
such other raqurements, or it will ba impractical or unesonemical to acquirs
addiional similar goods or sarvices from another auppller or service provider,
M C Bakwarke - 5160
Intac College {Pty) Ltd - 48 500
Van Schalk Boakstore - 2110
Unisa - sz
Golden Rewards 1873 CC - 2 620
Future Managers - 1 660
DMISA - 8100
Barioworid Equipment - B 361
Fintech . 5 000
Pex Hydraulics - 220813
A C Praumatios - 8534
Business Engineering - 60 B48
Barloworld Equipment 8737
Fintach - & 000
Barloworid Equipment - 16 458
Henfred Frushauf Trailars {Pty) Lid - g 768
inlwractive Trading 408 CC - 43 164
Fintech - 5000
Barloworld Equipment i 24 820
Bytes Universal Systems - 5400
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West Coast Dietrict Municipality
Annusl Financlal Stetements for the yeer ended 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figurea in Rand 2018 2017

39, Deviation from supply chaln managemant regulations (continued)

Bytes Universal Systams - Goods or services heve aleady been acquired by the - 265 000
municipaity from & specific supplier or service providar and aubseqguent

maintsnence, amendments, or modifications by othar suppliers or service providers

are prohibited, restricted or Imposalble because of guarantee, legal. licensing or

such other requirements, or it will be mpractica! or uneconamical to acquire

additional simllar goods or servicas from ancther supplier or servics provider.

South African Inatitute for Environmental Health - 4 000
Bytes Universal Systerns - 4 365
Exibitions - 9278
Worldng on fire - 33437
Working on fire - 24 438
Groter Cederberg Brancbaskerming - 2643
Worlkdng for water - 4 484
Barloworid Equipment - 9331
B Hars Plumers and Renovations . 6 60O
Engine & Gaarbox Master - 29 518
Ezyed = Goods or vervicss have siready been acquired by the municipality from a - 569 457
specific supplier or service provider and eubsequent maintenance, amendments, or

medifications by other supplisrs or sarvics providers are prohibited, restricted or

Impoasible becauss of guarantes, lagal, heansing or such other requirenants, or it

will ba Impracticable or uneconamiesl to acquire addifional similar goods or

sarvices from another suppller or sarvice providar.

Namiblia Tourism Expo - 20 253
High Power Equipment Africa - 7 583
A G Pneumatics - 12 752
Labour Guide . 2180
Telkom SA Limited - 34M
Tour and Safan Assoclation of Namibla - 3848
Worling an firs - 251
Fintech - 2 800
Pardaberg Molors - 2708
Fire Ralders - 13678
F E S Manufacturing - 28 484
Wast Coast Communications - 3383
De Kock Panaelidoppers - 13985
Beriowortd Equipment - 24 120
€ K Rumboll & Vennote - Exceptional case and il ls Impractical or impossibla to < 1 083 056
folfow the official procuremant processes.

Bytas Universal Systemna - 50 580
Expe Studio Namibia CC - 6615
Whasgre - 21408
PSA Afroa - 2 588
BAACE - 4104
Working on fira - 2ere
Groter Cederberg FPA - $ 862
Working on firs - 7 486
Working on fire - 80 362
Groter Cederbarg FPA - 3298
Fintach - 5000
GSX Customer Sarvices - 2248
K2T Agancies - 2800
DHT Wired - 29 800
Barfownrid Equipment - 16 056
Komatsu SA - 18789
Perdebarg Motors - 39014
SALGA - 17 671
T & F Conatruction - 48 478
June Comp - 11 998
ICABA - 6 511
Fintaeh - & 000

l P
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West Coast District Municipality
Annual Financlal Statements for the ysar ended 30 June 2016

Notes to the Annual FInanclal Statsments
Figures In Rand 2018 2017

39. Deviation from supply chalin menagement regulstions {sontinued)
4188 133 3473764

In terms of the Supply Chain Regulations No 27636 - 30 May 2005 Section 45 the municipality is allowed to make awsrds to
closa family members or porsons in the sarvice of the state, or who have been In the service of the state in the pravious
twelve months. As per the reporting period the municipality mades the following awards

The transactions were concluded in full compliance with the municipalily's Supply Chain Managemant Policy and the
tranaactions are considered 1o be ut arm's length.

Siphenkes! Protection Services - Mr | Classen - Bargriver Municipallty - Clark - 95 260

Global Africa Netwark - Mr 8 Mabotja - Depariment of Agricutture - Director 233 884 233 864

Aurecon South Africa (Ply) Lid - Ms T Majola - Member - 288 000

Price Waterhouss Coopars Inc - Mr © Latiff, Shiflay Machaba and Surech Kana - - 100 138

Membans

IOMU Trading {Pty) Ltd - Mrs A Appollis - Dapariment of Comectional Services - In- - 228 580

servics tralning

AEwn Oxygen Limited - Nomfundo Qangule - Goega Davelopment Corporation - 87 780 122 366

M C Bakwerke - Mrs R Mckrisling - Wast Coast District Munlcipally - Clark 23 847 32 809

Giobal Credit Rating Co - Mr M Ngoashang - Cosga Davelopment Corporation - 171 000 131 100

Nom-axscutive director

MR.WTMN (Pty) Ltd - Mre Y Davis Michasls - Deparimant of Intemational B4 247 78 801
ns - Glark

Blackiird Trading CC - Mrs M Smit - Swartland Municipality ~ Bor Clerk 11 000 44 800

mm1mcc-MereJnaer-WG:DupamomofEduelﬂon- 33 430 32 250
r

lthuba Industries - Mra De Momey - 8ir Lowry's Pass Primary = Teacher 13778 4d 232

;mnPowarcmmcc-thAndm-KZNDepamnantufEducaﬁon- - 8288

‘saoher

JB's Niaean - Mr R Korije - Depariment of Education - Teacher 68 221 31 493

JB's Nissan - Mr R Kerile - Depariment of Education - Teacher 45 405 88 872

Massive Quantum {Pty} Ltd - Mrs F Hendricks - Clty of Cape Town - Empioyes 248 740 75630

ISPY Trads {Pty) Lid - Mrs N Labuso = Department of Ecucation Fres State - 243 181

Kemanzi {Ply} Lid - Mr J N du Telt - Traffic Officer - 104 480

Extrams Boards (Pty) Ltd - Mrs A Matthyae - Direcior 180 4 226

Anka Spysanlering - Mr A Frans - West Coast District Municipality - Employes 4 300 .

D J Vibrations - Mrss H & M Lakey - Close Corporstion - Membars 2 500

Exone Oil Purification - Financial and Fiscal Commission - Employss 32 760

Euraf Agencles GG - Mra R Fourle - Employes 26 040 -

Ladybugs Innovative Marketing (Ply) Lid - Mr R Levendal - Employes 28 180 -

Bublles Houséhould Chemicals - Miss C Pietars - Employes 21470 .

Blue Planet Trading {Pty) Lid - Mr W de Kock - Employes 491 972 -

1 897 683 224827

40. Retlcuiation Losses

Water

Kiolttars purchased - after purlfication 17181696 22 580836
Kioltters sold {16 387 437) (21 @76 300)
Reticuletion loss 704 159 804 638
Percentage 4,45% 2.88%

The nom for water ksses |s 10%. The losses oocurred due to burst pipes and lsakes from the reservolrs to the consumers.
Electricity

¢

No eleciriciy losses were Incurmad,
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West Coast District Municlpality
Annuel Financial Statemsnts for the year endad 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand

2018

2017

41. Reconclliation betwesn budget and sixtement of financial performance

Reconciliation of budget surplus/deficii with the surplus/deficit in tha statement of financial performance. Plessa refer to

appendix A for more detailed diaclosuras,

Nst surplug per the statement of financial psrformance
Adjusted for :

Accounts excesding budget
Service charges

investment revenue

Resort income

Cther own revenue

Intarest on debiors

Transfers recognised - pperational
Accounts not cxeseding budget
Barvice charges

Employee cosls

Finance changes

Ageancy sarvicas

Licence and pamits

Transfera cognised - operational
Bulk purchases

Debt impafment

Depreciation and ssset impaiment
Othar expenditure

Other metarial

Accounts not budget for
Actuarisl gain on road recelvable
Losa on disposal of asset and llabliities

42. Road services
Revenue racognised

43. Actuarial gains recognised - smplocyes benefits
Long service awards

Medical aki benefita
Roade nacejvable

44. Finance Incoms
Short-tarm inveatmants

Primary bank account
Other Intereat

45. Allowancs for impalment

Other receivables from exchange transactions
Trade racaivablas from axchange transactions

97

(6600 512) 48780870

- {1576 178)
(7868713) (12084 317)
(1192868) (182 748)

(835 048) (2898 625)
{63 143) (4 415)

38 607 :
21348 877 .
(3489 30B) (4939 100)
{(29806820) (2022 442)
5568111 2877 40%
(105 485) 20 000

- 1416820
12085267 (1 676 503)
(1385303) {787 600)
(5762077} (8 660 283)
21402423 (18 437 877)

(25604 288) {2 864 896)
- g28821
L 1144054
2401825 2683 300
128521889 120692 500
- 702668
2502226 8003 606
1267 886 !
2170111 6798081
18816008 17 608 145
2037454 2820880
21783463 20726 817
151 187 ;
181197 .
R
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West Coast District Municipality
Annusl Financlal Statsments for the year ended 30 June 2018

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand

2018

2017

43. Repzirc and malntenance

In accordance with GRAP 17 paragraph 88 and 80 the municipality shall separately discicss sxpenditure ingurred o repalr
snd maintain propsrty, plant and equipment in the notes to the financial statements. Below are repaire &nd mainteriance par

usset ciass and nature :
Repalrs and meintonance per acsst clacs BuRdings Infroptructure Other }'“ohléoau'
ne 201
Wader reticuiation . 1 666 520 1656 520
Bulidings 1368115 - 1308 118
Computsr equipment - - 1290 1280
Machinery and squipment . - 4 358 887 4 358 687
Transport asgats - - 1147 363 1147 363
1308116 1686528 5506240 Q8B OM

The repairs and malntsnance expenses for the yesr smounts to R85 752 628, R47 192 742 of the amount partains tc the
cost of repaire Incumed on the provinoial roads in terms of a signed agresment betwaen the Department of Transpert and

Public works on an sgency basis. Tha remaining RB 558 884 pertains to repalr
deplcted in the: note above.

cost Incurred to the municipsl assats as

Repairs snd malmtenance per ussst olass Bufidings Infrestructurs Other .}'ﬂlz- :‘ﬂ?
une
intarnal roads - Water sarvices 2 113 - 22 113
Water reticulation . 8 807 860 - 8 807 860
Buildings 1437929 - - 1 437 020
Computer aguipment . - 6278 8278
Fumfture and offioa equipmant - 48 242 48 242
Machinery and aéquiprnent . 13855223 1235283
Transport assets - - 055 720 BEE 720
1437020 8829 973 2373528 12641426

The repalrs and maintenancs expanse for the ysar amounis to R56 401 768, R48 T80 341 of the amount periaing te the
cost of repaine incurred on the provinclal roads In tams of & signed agresment between the Depariment of Transport and
Public works on an agency basis. The remaining R12 841 428 partsins to repalr cost incured to the municipal asssts &3

depicted In the note above.
47. Materiaio and suppiies
Materials

48. Feos carnad

Environmental health certificates and trading
49. Tranefers and subskiles

Fammer support house

&t,
Distribution Provision

Dictribution Provision

The districution provision relates to the water sarvice concosalon amangement.

387258483 44 553 188
316766 158
1 587 OT1 1167 207
21 356 864
;—- “Mﬂmﬁf:—;:u ke | ey
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